RICK ROSS AND THE “ROSS INSTITUTE”
INTRODUCTION

Although Rick Ross promotes himself as a professional “cult expert”, a review of
his educational background shows that quite apart from being anti-Christian (he refers
to Christians as Bible bangers) has no religious educational credentials whatsoever. To
the contrary, his only formal education is a high school diploma. Self-aggrandizement
and personal financial reward seem to be Ross’ primary motive for his attacks on
Christians and members of other faiths.

As documented herein, an unbiased review of Ross’ activities overwhelmingly
supports the conclusion that Ross systematically engages in anti-social and often illegal
activity and disguises this in the name of “help.” “Deprogramming,” which appears to
be his main source of income, is such an activity.

Ross specializes in garnering media attention to create fear and suspicion in the
family members of individuals in minority religious groups. He then exploits this fear to
get them to pay him thousands of dollars in fees to coerce people out of their chosen
religious affiliation. Close scrutiny of Ross’ “successful” deprogrammings very often
finds broken families and dehumanized individuals who were coerced, lied to,
brainwashed and degraded by deprogrammers into renouncing their religious beliefs.

Public records reveal that Ross has been the subject of at least three arrests,
including an attempted burglary, embezzlement of $100,000 worth of jewelry from a
jewelry store, and kidnapping. Two of these arrests resulted in convictions. In the
third, Ross’ co-conspirators plead guilty to lesser charges while Ross evaded being
found guilty. Ross was sued civilly by the victim in the same kidnapping incident and
was punished by the jury for over $3 million in compensatory and punitive damages.

Although Ross claims in media interviews that his criminal activity ceased with
the 1975 jewelry heist, which he brushes off as an act of his youth for which he has
taken responsibility, Ross has continued his pattern and practice of criminal activity
against others. For example, in the above mentioned civil kidnapping case, the verdict
issued by the jury stated that Ross had “acted recklessly in a way that is so outrageous
in character and so extreme as to go beyond all possible bounds of decency and to be
regarded as atrocious and utterly intolerable in a civilized community.”

As a further note on Ross’ predisposition to criminal behavior and violation of the
rights of others, when Ross challenged the finding in the civil kidnapping case, the
Court upheld the punitive damages award and observed, “A large award of punitive
damages is also necessary under the recidivism and mitigation aspects of the factors
cited in Haslip. Specifically, the Court notes that Mr. Ross himself testified that he had



acted similarly in the past and would continue to conduct ‘deprogrammings’ in the
future.”

Ross’ criminal activity in this kidnapping case single-handedly brought about the
demise to the Cult Awareness Network, which was exposed to be a criminal referral
network for kidnappers. The jury also issued a finding against CAN for $1.8 million,
which bankrupted the group.

Rick Ross’ character was further demonstrated when he filed for personal
bankruptcy in the face of the $3 million judgement against him. As part of the
bankruptcy, Ross discharged a $17,500 debt to his elderly mother.

Despite these arrests and censure from the courts, Ross has not reformed and
has continued to commit criminal and anti-social acts. For example he blatantly admits
on his web site that he has committed over a dozen involuntary deprogrammings
(kidnappings) on adult individuals, mainly Christians, and at least that many more on
minors. Ross neatly omits these matters when establishing himself with media and
instead focuses only on the 1975 arrests which he attempts to dismiss as “his youth”
although he was 22 years old.

The Ross Institute is Ross’ latest money scam. The “Institute” is actually a mail
drop just across the street from Ross’ apartment in Jersey City, which he shares with a
Haryonto Soedarpao. Though Ross and Soedarpo have shared the same apartment since
at least 1998 in New Jersey and earlier in Phoenix, Soedarpo’s role in the Ross Institute
is nebulous. Soedarpo, like Ross, has no degree in religious studies or counseling. While
Ross promotes the “Institute” as a tax-exempt, non-profit organization and solicits
donations from the public, the “Institute” is clearly a front and promotional arm for
Ross’ deprogramming business.

ROSS’ LACK OF CREDENTIALS

One of Ross’ claims to fame and legitimacy is that he has acted as a source for
the media in stories about “cults” or groups that he wishes to label as such.

For example, Ross claims to have acted as a behind-the-scenes "consultant” for
the FBI in the Branch Davidian tragedy at Waco, Texas. Nancy T. Ammerman, a visiting
scholar at Princeton University's Center for the Study of American Religion, was one of
the outside experts assigned by the Justice Department to evaluate the BATF's (Bureau
of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms) and FBI's handling of the Branch Davidians. In her
September 3, 1993, report on the tragedy to the Justice and treasury Departments, Dr.
Ammerman was particularly critical of the government's consultation of Rick Ross and
the now defunct Cult Awareness Network.




Ammerman stated, "In their attempt to build a case against the Branch Davidians, BATF
did interview persons who were former members of the group and at least one person
who had 'deprogrammed' a group member. Mr. Rick Ross, who often works in
conjunction with the Cult Awareness Network (CAN), has been quoted as saying that he
was "consulted” by the BATF. ... "The Network and Mr. Ross have a direct ideological
(and financial) interest in arousing suspicion and antagonism against what they call
‘cults.” These same persons seem to have been major sources for the series of stories
run by the Waco newspaper, beginning February 27. It seems clear that people within
the "anti-cult” community had targeted the Branch Davidians for attention.

"Although these people often call themselves ‘cult experts,’ they are certainly not
recognized as such by the academic community. The activities of the CAN are seen by
the National Council of Churches (among others) as a danger to religious liberty, and
deprogramming tactics have been increasingly found to fall outside the law."

Thus, instead of providing factual data and constructive advice, which might
have defused the situation and saved lives, CAN and Ross exploited tensions to further
their own anti-religious agenda. In the end, dozens of men, women and children died
unnecessarily.

Yet, Rick Ross continues to attempt to profit from spreading lies and hatred
against new religions and continues to hold himself forth to the press and public as an
"expert." Anyone contacted by Ross or contemplating contacting him for any reason is
encouraged to get fully informed regarding Ross' true intentions and background to
avoid being taken in by his lies and thus unwittingly furthering his operation.

CONTINUING PATTERN AND PRACTICE OF CRIMINAL ACTIVITY

Rick Ross has a long-term criminal record. The following is by no means a
complete picture, and investigation of his criminal activities continues.

On December 22, 1974, Rick Ross and Jeffrey Ward Nuzum attempted to commit
a burglary by kicking in the door to a building in Phoenix. They were caught in the act
by the Phoenix police and were arrested. Ross was 22 years old at the time and was
employed as a bill collector for the American Credit Bureau. He plead guilty to a charge
of Conspiracy and was sentenced to 10 days in jail and placed on probation for a period
of one year.

On July 23, 1975, at 11:00 p.m., Rick Ross robbed Kay-Bee Enterprises, a
jewelry store located in the Broadway department store at Biltmore Fashion Park in
Phoenix, Arizona. Ross made off with approximately $50,000 worth of diamonds and
“precious paraphernalia” by presenting the clerk at the store with a note demanding the
diamonds be placed in a box or Ross would detonate a bomb that he had brought into
the store with him. The clerk, Daniel Schroeder, told police that he had followed the



robber’s instructions and that while the jewelry was valued at $50,000, its retail value
was approximately $100,000.

It was later discovered that Ross and Schroeder together had in fact set up the
robbery and that they had later split the stolen property. Ross and Schroeder both
confessed to the crime after police overheard their conversations in which they bragged
about having pulled off the heist.

Ross eventually confessed to the police that he had been discussing this crime
with Schroeder for three months prior to the robbery and that during this time, he had
associated with many criminals. Ross admitted that previous to the jewelry store
robbery, he had bought and used stolen credit cards and had also stolen furniture and
appliances from model homes.

Ross and Schroeder were arrested and charged with the crime of Grand Theft by
Embezzlement for the jewelry store heist.

Ross’ probation from his previous arrest was revoked on July 29, 1975, for failing
to conduct himself as a law-abiding citizen. Ross admitted to this violation of his
probation in open court on November 17, 1975. His probation was then extended to
four years.

Reports attached to court documents relating to the incident show that Ross was
described as an individual who has sociopathic inclinations and cannot see that what he
does is socially unacceptable and dangerous.

In a plea agreement, on April 2, 1976, Ross was found guilty of Conspiracy, 2"
Degree, to Commit Grand Theft, a felony, and was sentenced to four years probation
and a fine of $1,100.

In a civil matter, on May 23, 1979 a suit was filed by Jack Grodzinsky accusing
Rick Ross of having ripped him off based on an agreement that Ross would repair two
cars that Grodzinsky paid for. The Court ruled against Ross and ordered him to pay
Grodzinsky $8,464.65, including his legal fees. Ross presumably paid this off from his
earnings in the deprogramming business.

Also in 1979, another lawsuit was filed against Ross, this one for failure to repay
a loan to his own aunt for $4,000. Ross had borrowed the money from his relatives,
David and Emma Katz, on November 10, 1977, and when their attempts to collect on
the loan failed, they filed suit.

In the 1980s, Ross became involved in a new scheme to make money. He
became involved with a network of criminal deprogrammers called the Cult Awareness
Network. In a letter from Rick Ross to the Cult Awareness Network executive director,



Priscilla Coates, dated July 30, 1987, Ross complained about not getting
deprogramming referrals from CAN and that “some parents are so cheap they prefer to
let their kids ‘bang the bible’ than pay.” This letter clearly shows that Ross is using CAN
to drum up business for his personal benefit, it also shows his demeaning contempt for
Christians.

In another letter from Ross to Coates, dated April 28, 1988, Ross describes his
strategy to manipulate the media to promote his business as a deprogrammer. He told
Coates about his idea to get on television as someone that “had deprogrammed
fundamentalist Christians” in order to “stimulate some [deprogramming] cases in
California.”

Rick Ross’ criminal activity extends to the violent kidnapping of Christians. One
particular kidnapping incident occurred on January 18, 1991. Jason Scott, an 18-year-
old member of a Pentecostal Church in Bellevue, Washington, drove to his family home
in Bellevue. At the front door, Jason was jumped by three men hired by Ross who
wrestled him to the ground and dragged him inside. The three men were Mark
Workman, Chuck Simpson, and Clark Rotroff.

Jason’s mother, Kathy Tonkin, who was also in the house, came outside and told
witnesses watching the incident that Jason was going to be okay and that he was going
to be taken out of a cult.

Chuck Simpson placed handcuffs on Jason, and the men dragged him down the
stairs on his back, into the downstairs living room and into a van. The men, including
Rick Ross, climbed into the van, where Jason was pinned face down by Clark’s knee in
his back and a nylon strap placed around his ankles. Clark, who told Jason to “stop
praying and shut up”, fastened a strip of two-inch duct tape over Jason’s mouth. Jason
was not allowed to look out of the van windows to see where he was being taken.

The kidnappers informed Jason that his church was a cult. Jason asked them if
they were going to force him to not go back to his church by making him change his
mind. Rick Ross answered “yes.” The kidnappers proceeded to ridicule Jason’s religious
beliefs. The next morning, the kidnapper’'s brainwashing procedure began again. Ross
ignored Jason’s request to have his rights read to him by the police, saying that if Jason
did not cooperate, he would be handcuffed to the bed frame.

On January 22, Jason learned that he was at Ocean Shores, Washington. When
Jason broke into tears at one point in the barrage by his captors, the kidnappers
assumed that they had succeeded in “breaking” his faith in his religion.

On January 23, Jason observed his mother on the phone scheduling plane tickets
for Jason to go to Wellspring “Rehabilitation Center” in Ohio and for the kidnappers to
return to Phoenix. Wellspring has been called “a concentration camp for Christians.” It



is run by psychologist Paul Martin who receives individuals and keeps them there until
their faith is “broken.”

On January 23, the kidnappers took Jason to eat at the Home Port Restaurant to
celebrate Jason’s “deprogramming” from the Pentecostal Church. Jason fled across the
street and called the police. A policeman arrived, took Jason’s story, and put him in the
back of his jeep. This is described in detail in the police report made by Jason Scott
and in a separate report written by Jason about the incident, entitled, “Testimony of
Jason Scott”.

Mark Workman and Chuck Simpson were arrested that day. Rick Ross once again
evaded criminal charges but he was the recipient of a civil suit for the attempted
deprogramming.

In 1994, Scott filed a civil lawsuit against Ross (and including the Cult Awareness
Network) for the "involuntary deprogramming” for Conspiracy to violate his civil rights
as well as Outrage and Negligence.

A jury found Ross and the other defendants liable for civil rights violations and
negligence. The victim, Jason Scott, was awarded $875,000 in compensatory damages
and $4 million in punitive damages. An additional award of $1 million in punitive
damages was levied against the Cult Awareness Network. CAN lost their appeals and
later filed bankruptcy and closed down its operation.

Instead of honoring the court judgments resulting from his criminal behavior in
the Jason Scott case, Ross filed for bankruptcy. This even included disposing of a
$17.500 debt to his own elderly mother.

Ross appears to be without remorse for his acts of kidnapping and involuntary
imprisonment, which are crimes as well as human rights violation. In his own words,
Ross admits to the illegal kidnapping at least 12 adults since the “wrongdoing” he
engaged in in his twenties. In an August 2003 news article, Ross answered allegations
of his lack of credibility due to his previous convictions, including conspiracy to commit
grand theft for embezzlement of property from a jewelry company, by stating, “I regret
what | did in my youth. | admitted my wrongdoing and restored everything to those
who lost something.” Ross omitted mention of the Jason Scott kidnapping and two
dozen other kidnappings for which charges or suits were not filed.

On his web site, Ross justifies his actions and uses it as part of his sales pitch: s
“Have you ever done involuntary deprogramming?

“Yes. | have personally been involved in about two dozen involuntary cases.
However, about half of those cases involved minors under the direct supervision of their



custodial parent. And as Steve Hassan, who also once engaged in such involuntary
efforts recognized, "Forcible intervention [was only used] as a last resort if all other
attempts fail[ed]."” - Rick Ross

In a notable example of Ross’ doublespeak, he redefines the constitutional right
to individual liberty as “harassment of professionals” involved in kidnapping:

“If you are sympathetic to the families that do involuntary
interventions, why don't you continue to do such work?”

“It is no longer possible for me--because as one cult intervention professional
observed, ‘the truth is that [involuntary] deprogramming is extremely risky in
legal terms’. Specifically, destructive cults, groups and leaders today often
maintain teams of lawyers to harass professionals involved in such work. I
cannot afford the expense and time to fight these efforts.” - Rick Ross

On August 6, 2003, NXIVM Corp. filed a multi-million dollar suit against Ross for
trademark infringement in connection with Ross’ complicity in violating the group’s
trademarks.

RICK ROSS - MENTAL INSTABILITY

Ross has an extensive history of mental instability and dangerous conduct dating
back to childhood, which psychiatrists concluded stems from his anti-social,
manipulative behavior and his sexual problems.

A report on Rick Ross dated March 29, 1967, by Dr. Harold McNeely, a clinical
psychologist, describes Ross’ mental and emotional problems as a child.

A September 10, 1975, report from Dr. Jerome J. Kaye, stated that Rick Ross
had been under his care from 1957 through September 1971. In 1965, at age 10, Ross
was put on the psychiatric drugs “Deaner” and “Librium” which he took daily in an
attempt to suppress his anti-social behavior.

A November 26, 1975, report by Dr. Thomas O’Brien states that Ross is “an
opportunist” and that during Ross’ second jailing, he showed “many signs of serious
psychological decompensation”. Apparently during his second jailing (for the jewelry
theft) Ross made a serious suicide attempt.

The January 14, 1976, “Presentence Investigation” of Rick Ross for the jewelry
store embezzlement describes the July 23,1975, incident and states that he has spent
six weeks in jail since being arrested. Ross stated that he was seeking help from the
Fillmore Mental Clinic. This report recommended Ross serve a maximum term in the
state prison.




A March 25, 1976, Arizona State Hospital report on Rick Ross by Dr. Domiclano
E. Santos states that Ross sought help at the Fillmore Mental Health Services because
of “anxiety, depression and sexual problems.” Dr. Domiclano reports that he saw Ross
as, “an arrogant, self-centered individual with some hostile tendencies” and as “an
individual who has sociopathic inclinations”. He further stated that, “Ricky has a
personality disturbance which started even as a child. ... He does not seem to profit
from his past experiences and cannot realize that he has a responsibility to society to
control his behavior ... [H]e does not seem to identify himself with society and its laws,
and believes that punishments are an injustice.”

RICK ROSS AND THE “INTERVENTION” CON

The con job perpetrated by so-called "deprogrammers” on the public goes like
this: After frightening their marks with vicious, blatant lies about a family member's
religious beliefs, "deprogrammers” insist the parishioner in question must be
"deprogrammed” or suffer dire consequences at the hands of their religion. In this way
they manage to extort thousands of dollars in fees from a now-desperate family.

For these "services," Rick Ross came highly recommended by the Cult Awareness
Network, whose executive director touted him as one of the half-dozen "best"
deprogrammers. Through violence and intimidation, Ross and his cohorts kidnapped
parishioners of various faiths and held them for days against their will in an effort to
force them to recant their religious beliefs. By the time Ross and CAN were finally called
to account for their actions in a court of law, the damage to the individuals and their
families was devastating.

From all outward indications, the Ross Institute is performing precisely the same
function as the old Cult Awareness Network. By promoting intolerance and hatred on
the Internet and to the media, Ross attempts to establsh himself as a “credible source”
for at least one gossip columnist, Jeannette Walls at MSNBC.com. This in turn promotes
his deprogramming business.

If you know anyone who has been victimized by the false information spread by
Ross, or anyone whose family relationships have been harmed by Ross’ “intervention”,
or anyone who has been a victim of a deprogramming attempt, please provide them
and their attorneys with this information and documentation.
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INDEX OF DOCUMENTS CONCERNING RICK ROSS

A report dated March 29, 1967, on Rick Ross by Dr. Harold
McNeely, clinical psychologist, regarding Ross’ mental and
emotional problems as a child.

A January 10, 1975, “Order Holding Defendant to Answer Before
the Superior Court” for attempted burglary by Rick Ross and Jeffrey
Nuzum.

Miscellaneous court documents starting with the January 8, 1975,
“Waiver of Preliminary Hearing” signed by Rick Ross. He states that
he understands that he is being charged with felony of attempted
burglary.

A “Plea Agreement” by Rick Ross, dated March 6, 1975, in which he
plead guilty to “conspiracy” in exchange for the attempted burglary
charge to be dropped.

A “Presentence Investigation” dated March 6, 1975, based on the
plea agreement lowering the charge from attempted burglary to
conspiracy. This document describes how Ross had consumed
some drinks and he and Nuzum had decided to commit the
burglary. They broke a window to the building before they were
caught.

An April 3, 1975, mug shot of Rick Ross and “Order of
Confinement” for having been found guilty of “conspiracy” in the
attempted burglary. An April 3, 1975, court document giving the
“Conditions and Regulations” of Ross’ Probation. This document
ordered him to confinement in the county jail for 10 days and a
year’s probation.

A July 25, 1975, Arizona Republic article that describes Rick Ross’
role in a staged armed robbery attempt of a jewelry store. The
article states that the retail value of the theft was $100,000.

The police investigation and criminal complaint filed against Rick
Ross and Dan Schroeder for Grand Theft/Embezzlement reclassified
from an “Armed Robbery” to “Grand Theft by Embezzlement” filed
against Rick Ross and Dan Schroeder on July 25, 1975. This police
report describes how Ross conspired with Schroeder and “robbed”
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the jewelry store by pretending to have a bomb in a box. It gives
the story of how they were caught.

A copy of a “Probation Violation Report” on Rick Ross, dated
August 5, 1975. This states he violated previous probation (for
attempted burglary) by committing the crime of “Theft By
Embezzlement” by staging a robbery at a store in which $50,000 in
jewelry was taken. This report proposes that Ross’ probation for
the earlier crime (conspiracy for attempted burglary) be revoked.

A September 2, 1975, court document entitled, “Information for
Theft by Embezzlement”. This document states that Ross and
Schroeder stole 306 pieces of jewelry consisting of rings, watches,
pendants, earrings, broaches, tie tacks and cuff links.

A September 10, 1975, report from a Dr. Jerome J. Kaye, stating
that Rick Ross has been under his care from 1957 through
September 1971. In 1965 Ross was treated for being hyperactive
and was given “Deaner and Librium daily”.

A November 26, 1975, report by a Dr. Thomas O’Brien on Rick Ross
in which the doctor states that Ross is “an opportunist” and that
during Ross’ second jailing he showed “many signs of serious
psychological decompensation”. During his second jailing (for the
jewelry theft) Ross made a serious suicide attempt.

The January 14, 1976, “Presentence Investigation” of Rick Ross.
This report describes the July 23, 1975, jewelry store robbery and
states that he has spent six weeks in jail since being arrested. Ross
stated that he was seeking help from the Fillmore Mental Clinic.
This report recommended Ross serve a maximum term in the state
prison.

A March 24, 1976, Supplemental Report on Rick Ross by his
probation officer (for his sentencing).

A March 25, 1976, Arizona State Hospital report on Rick Ross by
Dr. Domiclano E. Santos. The report states that Ross sought help
at the Fillmore Mental Health Services because of “anxiety,
depression and sexual problems.” Dr. Santos reports that he saw
Ross as, “an arrogant, self-centered individual with some hostile
tendencies” and as “an individual who has sociopathic inclinations.”



TAB P The Rick Ross sentencing document in the jewelry theft, dated April
2, 1976. This shows Ross was sentenced to four years in jail and
fined $1,100. Ross plead guilty to the charge of “Conspiracy 2"
Degree to Commit Grand Theft”, a felony.

TAB Q A lawsuit filed against Rick Ross on May 23, 1979, by Jack
Grodzinsky accusing Ross of ripping him off. This was based on an
agreement that Grodzinsky would provide Ross with the money to
purchase and repair two vehicles for Grodzinsky. Ross was to sell
them and return the loan from the proceeds. Ross failed to do so
and was sued by Grodzinsky. Ross lost the case and was required
by the court to pay Grodzinsky $8,464.65, which included his legal
fees.

TABR A lawsuit filed in 1979 by David and Emma Katz (Ross’ aunt and
uncle) against Rick Ross. The Katzes loaned Ross $4,000 on
November 10, 1977, and he refused to pay it back.

TAB S Letters from Rick Ross to the Cult Awareness Network executive
director, Priscilla Coates, dated July 30, 1987, and April 28, 1988.
In the letters Ross complains about not getting deprogramming
referrals from CAN and that “some parents are so cheap they
prefer to let their kids ‘bang the Bible’ than pay.” In the second
letter he stated that he planned to stir up business by getting on
television as someone who “had deprogrammed fundamentalist
Christians” and thus “stimulate some cases in California.”

TAB T An extract taken from Rick Ross’ “Curriculum Vitae” which gives his
actual educational background as opposed to his media contacts
and public relations and promotional activities to promote
deprogramming business. He has no degreeor expertise in religious
studies or any degree or training or experience that qualifies him to
counsel other people.

TAB U This is a quote from a page on Rick Ross’ web site where he admits
to at least 12 “involuntary” deprogrammings of adults — i.e.,
criminal kidnappings.

TAB V A January 26, 1991, billing statement from Rick Ross to Katherine
L. Tonkin, the mother of Jason Robert Scott, charging $5,569.40
for the deprogramming of Jason, which included his abduction.

TAB W The “Statements of Jason Robert Scott” to the Ocean Shores



(Washington) Police Department dated January 23, 1991, in which
Jason describes his abduction and kidnapping by Rick Ross during a
deprogramming attempt. (Note Jason Scott was an adult.)

TAB X AJuly 1, 1993, “Motion and Affidavit For Order Directing Issuance
of Summons” and the document entitled “Information” charging
Rick Ross with Unlawful Imprisonment in the kidnapping of Jason
Scott.

TAB Y Letters sent by Ross to Judge David Foscue (the Judge in Ross’
criminal trial for the Jason Scott kidnapping) dated January 28,
1994, and February 20, 1994, in which Ross shows his disrespect
for the court. Ross’ associates had plea-bargained and Ross went
to trial on the criminal charges and was acquitted by the jury. In
the letters, he is making veiled threats to the judge in his case.
(Note: Ross was found liable in a civil case that was filed over this
same issue.)

TAB Z An October 18, 1993, article in The Nation, written by Alexander
Cockburn, which mentions Rick Ross’ role in misleading the ATF
and the FBI in the Waco, Texas, disaster.

TAB AA A September 3, 1993, report concerning Waco by scholar Nancy T.
Ammerman to the Justice and Treasury Departments on behalf of
Princeton University's Center for the Study of American Religion.
This report mentions Rick Ross trying to inflame the government
against the Branch Dividians and points out the “ideological and
financial interest” Ross had in “arousing suspicion and antagonism

against what he calls ‘cults’™.

TAB BB A copy of the civil lawsuit filed against Rick Ross and his
accomplices including the Cult Awareness Network, for the
kidnapping and attempted deprogramming of Jason Scott (Scott vs.
RosS).

TAB CC The “Verdict Form” in the Scott vs. Ross case, dated September 29,
1995, which finds Ross 70 percent negligent in causing harm to
Jason Scott; that Ross was involved in a conspiracy to deprive
Jason Scott of his civil rights of freedom of religion or freedom of
travel and that this caused him injury; that Ross acted recklessly in
a way that is so outrageous in character and so extreme as to go
beyond all possible bounds of decency and to be regarded as
atrocious and utterly intolerable in a civilized community; that
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Jason Scott’s damages were $875,000 and that Ross should be
punished in the amount of $2,500,000.

A November 29, 1995, order in the Scott vs. Ross case. The Court
states that the jury in this case awarded compensatory damages in
the amount of $875,000 against each of the defendants and
punitive damages of $2,500,000 against Rick Ross. In upholding
the punitive damages award against Ross, the Court observed, “A
large award of punitive damages is also necessary under the
recidivism and mitigation aspects of the factors cited in Haslip.
Specifically, the Court notes that Mr. Ross himself testified that he
had acted similarly in the past and would continue to conduct
‘deprogrammings’ in the future.”

A bankruptcy case filed by Ross on October 26, 1995. This case
shows that he wrote off a $17,500 debt to his own elderly mother,
Ethel Ross. He also listed the judgement obtained against him by
Jason Scott of $3,125,000 as a debt he wanted to discharge.

A multimillion-dollar suit filed on August 6, 2003, by NXIVM Corp
against Ross for trademark infringement.

Documents showing that Ross has been living at the same
addresses with a man by the name of Haryanto Soedarpo since
approximately 1998, first in Phoenix, and currently in New Jersey.



Maorch 29, 1967

Jawish Femily and Children's Service of Phoenix
1515 East Csborn Noad
Phoenix, Arizona 85014

Attention: Mirs. Jacqueline Cnsign, ACSW Caseworker

Ne: Riek Allen Toss

Dear IArs. Ensign:

This letter is in response to your reguest for a summary of my cpntests with tha fless
family. | wus a little confused us | had recently seen Rick and his family for one
hour and had referred them to the iiental Health Associution Comawnity Ciinic.

| had @ conmunication from the Ceramunity Clinic which indicoted they had made
opplication thers. At cny rate, | cid see Pick and his parents for approximately
26 hours of interview, gsychelogical testing, and psychotherapy tetv.cen

Cectober, 1983, and April, 1554, At that time it wos my impression that Rick had
made quite socd progress in psychotheropy Lut it he still had sulstenttal castional
problems and was in necd of further psychotherapy. Partly becouse cf financial
problems and partly because Rick was visibly much Letter, his Larents choic to
terminate his appointments. /ctually Pick had been an unusually well-mativotec
child in treatment. Even when | saw him fer the recent hour on Jonuary 22, 1257,
it was still apparzut that ick hes a real desire to work out his emsticnal problams.

Here are szne of my racords wi Rick. HHe was first seen et age 6 Ly Tr. ¥eith Meckins
of Child Study und Consultation Service in Fhoenix. The reason for reforral vras

given os "to assist in understunding sone of the aggressive tendencies of this boy”.

Rick was given a Stanford Binet Intelligence Test ond obtained an 1.C . of 129,

Or. Perkins talked to Mirs. Rois and apparently suggested thot she et more limits with
the boy and gave hier o general talk on the essentials of child rearing. *pporently

Mr. Rom did not ottend this confersnce and Dr. Perkins report indicated that the

fother hos spent o very limited amount of time with Nick. T next repost in my

record was frora Cr, Willlain Fielder of Child Study and Consultaticn Service, apporently
becouse of yuncral problems in schuol and specifically ruaning awuy frow home.  This
report was glven in the speing of 1963. Or. Fle!der strongly recommended "long term
enisionce® frem proliees erising out of "detrimentel porent-child relationships™.

Lick wes referred to me in Cetaber, 1963, by Or. Corth Blackham of Child Study and
Consvitation Service ofter Rick hed elrcody boea in end felled 10 adjwat te twe
Sfferaat chouroua situeticrr in e fint two months of scheul. Dr. Clocikhem montioned
thaay iich simply woils vt of the clensssom, refvess to do schesl werk, and generelly



Fe: Fick Allen Ress ( Ry Foge 2

1 3¢ @ ncLative, c:gusm.:ive cttitede altl sugh nat bing di y assaultive or
couressive. Fertially l>c:uu:7Ri ‘:ldc;mc(}:d it cpy hid parents went along with it,
Nisle was tracsforicd to enathidrfs-Xool. Vita the cid of my Fsychotheropy and o
very firm man teacher, Rick mace the best adjustment to schezol that he cver hed
Lefare of sinze that tine peric 1. RLick etteinzted 1o threaten, naripuiute, and out-
crgue his teacher. Vhen all this failed, he swddenly found that he liked his teacher
end worked rother herd to acke raasenably gead gredus, |ad nepzd tict tiiis
mizht launch ki on his tchool carser but cagarent!y ke olig;.2d Lack irts old habits
later,

in c2dition 1o the compleints listed at schoel, iis perzuts told e thet he could accept
no cuthicrity, couldn't cecept any “nes”, vozilked av.uy whien his sarcabs talled to him,
argued interainably about cverything, verbally dominated the home, hcd no friends,
and often followed his mother around home arsuing ond ccpleining uatil she gove

in. It wos agparant that i\irs. Foss wes the rejecting kind of mctiicr vwwho Lends over
Lackwards to <o hings for har kids whea she foels cngry <t thaia. Tick is on adopted
child. In cdditicn hirs. Ross dees feel inundated by this greblen and really dosen't
know what to do about it. Sha does not feel that she is receiving ary kelp cr support
from her husbond but does think that he has essentially turnad cver cii the zroblans
and responsibiiities of child rearing to her. She did tell of cne cccasion where Rick
ran away fro.1 hore and his father sponked hiia. This wus very cflective and Rick

had en improved altitude for quite sune time. Lpgereatly M. Ress werks 3 great deal
cnd vsually feels cuite tired and does rio! want to be bothcred wita the children,

Whea | intervicwed fars. Ross, it was cppuicnt taat sz iz 3 somsshiat overv.cight,
concerned, dutiful Jewish wathar wiis toves Latiss, talics geud wuiv of thar, and
really doeza't like to sce them grow up. | suspect that Rick raay be somewhat brighter
than she is and can often domincte har. She feels sorazwiat bewildered by this verbally
aggressive child and does not get inuch help from her possive husuand in any attempts
to be fiem with him. 1t wes difficult to get e, Tuss to come in. e is a wan of small
to medium height with a slender build. Verbally he indicated concenm end bawilder-
ment with this strange boy of his. tie feels sonzwhat guilty cbsut nat enioying Rick
or spending rauch time wiih fick, but he himx If reatly doce a0t hace much cbout
being a father. Ho opparently enjoys working and is good at his week ond is inclined
to provide the meaty end huge thaat his wile takes care of the rest. 1o secmud some=
what threatened and awed by being in o dostor's office.

It vas evaluotion that Rick was a quite infantilized, demonding, crgumentative,
hostile, fearful boy who was really trying to fight against a severs undeclying depend-
cnce on his mother und having real difficulty in trying to identify with o vague,
shadowy, woak father. Ho wos fifghtencd by his own powcer fo dominate ond to
monipulate, apparently partially realizing trat he could got himzalf iats real difficulty
even by getting what he wanted. He is still striving for the orwmigotence of tac

young child, He is trylng to establish the scif-control and firmness which his porents
hove not been oble to effectively demorstrate to him, \hen he did meet firmnen

in the nsture of the one male teacher, he put up a great struggle but finally occepted
ﬂmnulwbybchgoblobeﬁe'mlydowmnhodm.

Lo er e
L) “ . P I T O . . .
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In his therapy hours with me, Rick tclked and worked constantly on his groblems.

He ventilated a great deal of hostility and came out with many hestile fantasias.,

In c2diticn to becoming mere aveare of his feelings, this boy nceded almost some basic

cducction that there are somne other people out thera besides ki and that these people

have feelings too. He waos a very narcissistic, scif-centered boy with a very strong

with to be a leadar. Actually he had cccomplishzd Leing a lzader Sut his followers

progressively got tired of his child-lil:e goms2s es they oll grew clder. o wics very

attrected to the Romans and had many fantasies of being a ruler or king. Cven in

this lost hour with hin recantly, he till demanstrated thet he liked me, had related

to me, and still wanted to pursua his psychotherapy. | had particuiarly reforred him

to the Community Clinic because | thought that multiple therapists «aight be needed,

peychethenany teth for him and for ena or toth zarents, Vhen | sow Ricl in January,

1657, ke roparted muny nroblems whick are essentially ca calersion of his old problems.
‘&e is making some failing gredss in school but has monipulated the school by switching

| G mm— - e e ———— . —— O aie = e -
E

“He does soma sicagwalliing and tells that his mother haus said that he crics or screams
in his slcep. Recently ho and anothier boy were Involved in sinaching o truck w'- “aw
and wicre caught by the pollce.  Apgarently ha will ¢ befors the judge in the Ler
future about this windew sinsshing,

At the ca ! of thiz kour | did tai% Lriell) te his porents, Thev rezerted that Qick now
les, makes poor grades il schiool, (3 abaut 1o g3t kicked vu of schovl, end is still
very orgunentative, “With Rick's parmission, | did puint out his underlying scaval
problen which could pluy on important port in oll of his inwre obvious difficultics.

1 than vary fienly stressed that Rick hos a real proble: und that he it graatly in acad
of professional help aad that Rick's busic succass in lif2 now hongs i the balance.
V.hen ‘hey ralsed doubts as to their abllitics to pay for my scevices, | strongly
recommended the new Nviental Hoalth Association Cemnwmnity Clinic. | do hape they
carry throvgh now In cbtainiing sone type uf professtonst helg 3o acwhere, rarticulardy
as | both lika Rick and am strongly oware that Rick has o good chance ta work out his
problecs if he has a resl opportunity.

Sincerely yours,

4

HALDLD £, AeNERLY, T, D,
CLINICAL PSYCHOL OGHET
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IN THE JUSTICECOURT® ' /0 .

—NORTHEAST PHOENIX PRECINCTY, MARICOPA COUNTY, STATE

STATE OF ARIZONA
0085133
vs. No._l18122
£
RICKY ALLAN ROSS AND ORDER HOLDING DEFENDANT TO ANSWER
JEFFREY WARD NUZUM BEFORE THE SUPERIOR COURT
Defendant(s)

I HEREBY ORDER that the defendant(s)

RICKY ALIAN ROSS AND JEFFREY WARD Nuzud

be held to answer before the superior court on the charges that, in __NORTHEAST PHOENIRrecinct, Maricopa
County, Arizona on or about the 22nd day of December, 1974, RICKY ALLAN ROSS AND JEFFREY
WARD NUZUM, attempted burglary in the night-time of a structure building of GRIFFITR
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY located at 1612 East Gardenia, City of Phoenix, County of lhrlcopb
all in violation of A,R8,, Secs, 13-301, 13-302, 13-108, 13-109, 13-110,




L + (5
7 5 co !t ¢
i NORTHEAST PHUL.NIX JUSTICE CC .RT, Mari:opa County %
2
3 STATE OF ARIZONA, 2085133
4 Plaintiff, No. 15143
5 s,

6 RICK ROSS, and

WAIVER OF PRELIMINARY HEARING
JEFF NUZUM,

vv'vvv-ﬂvvvvv

Defendants. i
8 |
o .
10 I UNDERSTAND that I am charged with the crime of

" attempted burglary which is a felony under the law of the state
12 of Arizona, and that if I am-found guilty, I can be given a

13 severe punishment, including imprisonment in the Arizona State
14 Prison, in the Maricopa County Jail, a fine or other penalty.
15 I UNDERSTAND that under the Arizona Constitution, I have
16 a right to a preliminary hearing at which a macistrate, without
17 making any determination of my guilt or innocence, will decide !
18 whether there is sufficient evidence against me to establish
19' probable cause to try me on these charges. |
20L I UNDERSTAND that I have a right to a lawyer at the

21 preliminary hearing and that if I am unable to obtain the service
22: of a lawyer without incurring substantial hardship to myc 1f or

23% my family, one will be furnished for me free of charge.

24| I UNDERSTAND that the prosecutor would be required to
25 present witnesses and evidence against me at the preliminary

28: hearing to demonstrate that there is probable cause to try me on

27; the charges and that I would have the right to cross-examine

28" guch witnesses and to present evidence of my own innocence.

2; I UNDERSTAND that if the prosecutor failed to show
:D: probable cause to try me, the charges against me would be du-1»+d.
n: I UNDERSTAND that giving up my right to a preliminary

323, hearing gives the State the right to try me for the offenses
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charged without any determinazion of probable cause by a

2' magistrate.

Cr.085433
3
4 CERTIFICATION AND WAIVER
5 After reading and unders:tanding all of the above, 1
6

hereby consent to give up my right to a preliminary hearing

7 in this case.

8 ~>_
i - A 4
9 ‘ §§ 3431[ 7
. RICK
10

Datea this 8th day of January, 197S.

11

12 I have explained the significance of the preliminary

13 hearing to the defendant and comsent to waiver of a preliminary

14 hearing in this case.

15,

- . , ) 7 / -

16. ‘dz /"‘ l% ¢ .,....,q,\
. ALLEN A. BAGGARQ.{A?torney

17 Dated this 8th day of January, 197S.
'y

18!

1947 I consent to waiver of preliminaryAhearing in this

20 case.

ATTORNEY
s 8th day of January, 1°7S.
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OF.....NORTHEAST PHOENIX . . . PRECINCT 2
COUNTY OF MARICOPA, STATE OF ARIZONA %
£R085433 ZR~%7
oo THE. STATE O ARTZONA . ... Transcript, Docket No... 18195,
-~

weer. RICKY ALIAN ROSS #nd . . . .

.Complaing of:.. Dave.Hsas

. Pla"‘t.i.‘.i. chlrgins:-‘-- ATTEMPTED -BURGCLARY .rm-m‘*—fclﬂ,

vs.

-ero..ROX. OSBORN ... . ..

............. JEFEREY. WARD. NUZUM ... Attorney for Pisintitf.

1974

December 23

e et e Ce .. ALLEN HAGGARD
Defendant. Attorney for Defendant.

Proceedings

Complaint made and filed this day by Dave Haas charging
the defendant with having committed on or about the 22nd day of December, 1974,
a Felony, to-wit: ATTEMPTED BURGLARY, FIRST DEGREE,
Defendants present at their Initia} Appearance with
counsel,
Defense counsel Allen Haggard files Notice of Appesrance
Release Questionniare--Parts f & II (2); Defendant's
Finaticial Statement (2); and Releage Orders: Own Recognizance ( 2) filed,
Preliminary Hearing set for January 8, 1975 at 9:30 AN,
Defendants released on their own recognizance,

Defendants in Court with coiasel Allen Haggerd, and
sign WAIVER OF PRELILINARY HEARING, “

State represented by Roy Oshorn,
State mekes Motion to ammend complaint to resd A.R.S,

Secs, 13-301, 13-302, 13-108, 13-109 aad 13-110.

Court grants Motfon.,

Court made the following order:

It appearing. to me that the crime of ATTEMPTED BURGTARY,
FIRST DEGREE, has been committed on or about the 22nd day of December, 1974, in
the County of Maricopa, State of Arizons, and that there is sufficient cause to
believe that RICKY ALLAN ROSS and JEFFREY WARD NUZUM are guilty thereof, I order

that they, the said RICKY ALIAN ROSS and JEFFREY WARD NUZUM be held to snswer
che same,

Defendants released. "
Arraignoent set in Div, 18 for January 22,1975 at 8:30

/s/ HAROLD LER
Justice of the Peace
Northeast Phoenfx Precinct




In mP Superinr, &Bm

; OF MARICOPA COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA

THE STATE OF ARIZONA,

NO. 85433

vS.

RICKY ROSS and
JEFFREY WARD NUZUM, INFORMATION FOR

Defend ATTEMPTED BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE .
efendants.
[-29-75

o 3

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA, RI

ROSS and JEFFREY WARD NUZUM are accused this 15th day of January, ‘f )
1975, by the County Attorney of Maricopa County, State of Arizona,
by this Information, of the crime of ATTEMPTED BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE,
a Felony, committed as follows, to-wit: -

The said RICKY ROSS and JEFFREY WARD NUZUM, on or
about the 22nd day of Decembér, 1974, and befére the’ filing of this
Information at and in the County of Maricopa, State of Arizona, attempted.
burglary in the nighttime of a structure building of Griffith Cmstm%iﬁz
Co., located at 1612 East Gardeni:, ~ity of Phoenix, County of Hari.cbb‘ﬂ |
all in violation of A.R.S. §13-301 anq 1?-302, 13-108, 139199 and ‘
13-110; contrary to the form, force and effect of the statute in
such cases made and provided and against the peace and dignity of
the state of Arizona. '

MOISE BERGER
MARICOPA COUNTY ATTORNER -




IN THF @OPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE @WRIZ" '\

.dANDFORTHECOUNTYOFMANCOI’A
75 00300¢6%

STATE OF ARIZONA 1
! No. _%iﬂ_

b PLLEA AGREEMENT

[k, B Rozs '
Defendant J > 8

The r*ate of Arizona and the ¢ ‘endant hereby agree to the foJowing disposition of this case:

vs.

Plea:  The defendant agrees ‘o ple a( am 10 contest to: (’c‘,,/,,,. <

rr-33/7

Terms: On the following nmlvm;xmlmgs. terms and conditions:

1. 'I'I'w crime ta which the defendant will plead gudty cagews & wotence no zecater than / Slota =~ I A3
~M+er and no dess than EegtaLComa é‘h—k 1hr partier stipulate

to the following additional l-~nu.~A’.§—.ﬂ‘m

19

That the following charges are dismissed. or of net et filed, shall not e brought against the
defendant, - . . !fr/{éf._ﬁt*l:) “‘>____ e e e e

3. That this agreement, unless rejected or withdrawn, serves to amend the complaint. indictment, or
information, to charge the offeuse to which the defondant pleads. withont the filing of anv addition-
al pleading. If the plea is rejectad or withdraown, the onginal charees an .u:l:-m:nim"\' reinstated.

4. 1f the defendant is charged with a felony, that he hereby gives up his right to a pecliminary hearing
or other probable canse determination on the charges to which he pleads. o the event the court
rejects the plea. or the defendant withdruws the plea the deteadant herels @ives up his neht to a
preliminary hearing or other srobable cause determamation on the original charges.

5. Unluss this plea is rejected or withdzawn, that the detendant hereby gives up any and all maotions,
defeuses. objections or requests which he has made or raised. or conld as<ert hereafter, to the court’s
cotry of judgment against him and impoction of . sentence upon.him consistent with this agreement.

8. That if after accepting this agreement the court conchudes that any of its provisions regarding the
sentence or the term and conditions of probation wre mappropriate, it can reject the plea. giving the
defendant an opportunity to withdraw the plea.

I have rcad and understand the al have discusscd the case and my constitutional richts with my
lawyer. I understand that by pleading(( guilty) (no contest) | wall be giving up my right to a trial *  jury. to
confront, cross-examine, and compel the MeTidince of witnesses, and my privilege against seilf-ine unination.
I agree to enter my plea as indicated above on tiw terms and conditions set forth herein. 1 fully understand
that if, as part of this plea bargain, T am granted probation by the court. the terms and conditions thereof are
subject to madification at any time during the pericsl of probation in the (\cut that I violate any written con-
dition of my probation.

3=C-057 L

Date ' ’ Defencdant

[ have discussed this case with my client in detail and advised him of his constitutional rights and all
possible defenses. | believe that the plea and dispasition set forth herein are appropriate under the facts of
this case. 1 concur in the entry of the plea as indicated above and on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

I-6-23" ¢ ?

Date

I have riviewed this matter and concur that the p
are in the interests of fustice.

N1

Dute
xvin
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THE STATE OF ARIZONA CAUSE NO. 85433
Plaintiff

HONORABLE PHILIP W. MARQUARDT

vs

CRIMINAL DIVISION I
RICKY ALAN ROSS

Defendant SUPERIOR COURT

PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION

PRESENT CHARGE: Conspiracy, Open~End, as amended
from Attempted Burglary, First Degree,
a Felony.

PLEA: March 6, 1975

CUSTODY STATUS: On own recognizance.

DEFENSE COUNSEL: Allan Haggard, privately retaiqsd.

PRESENT OFFENSE:

On December 22, 1974, at 2310 hours, the
defendant, Ricky Alan Ross, and co-defendant, Jeffrey Ward
Nuzum, attempted to forcibly enter 1602 East Gardenia
North by shattering the rear arcadia door in the center at

the locked handle.

Officer Hernandez spoke with Mr. Ross while

Officer Miner went to the rear of the townhouses where he
observed that a burglary had possibly taken place.

Officer Miner also observed Jeffrey W.
Nuzum hiding in the adjacent townhouse and subsequently
arrested him.

The only statement was made by Mr. Nuzum
when he admitted that he never entered the house. After
that, he reserved his right to speak with his attorney.
Apparently, Mr. Ross made no statement at all.

The above information was taken from the

Phoenix Police Departmental Report $74-~ 125946.

OPFFENSES TO BE DISMISSED:

Apparently, there are no ottcn:i. to be
dismissed in this case.



RICKY ALAN ROSS CAUSE NO. 85433
Defendant

DEFENDANT'S STATEMENT:

The defendant states that he has' known

Mr. Nuzum for about four years and that on December 22, 1974,
they had consumed a few arinks and were driving through the
neighborhood of East Gardenia in order to visit a friend
when they decided to commit the burglary. They broke the
arcadia door window and then decided not to go through
with it. Mr. Ross states that he never saw the police until
he was leaving the premises.

™ He continued that as far as he knew, Mr.
Nuzum must have hidden in the patio next door after he saw
the police. He stipulated that they never entered the

residence at all.

COMPANION ACTION:

Jeffrey Ward Nuzum is scheduled to be
sentenced on April 1, 1975, by the Honorable Philip W. Marquardt,
Criminal Division I, Superior Court. He pled guilty to the

charge of Conspiracy.

STATEMENT OF REFERENCES AND INTERESTED PARTIES:

This Officer has not been able to contact the
victim, Phillip A. Griffith of the Griffith Construction Company,
as of this writing.

PRIOR RECORD:

Mr. Ross contended that he has never been
arrested before, neither as a juvenile nor as an adult, and
a records' check by the Phoenix Police Department proved
negative.

PAGE 2
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RICKY ALAN ROSS CAUSE NO. 85433
Defendant

SOCIAL HISTORY:

The defendant is a twenty-two year old
Caucasian male, who was born in Ohio, the eldest of
three children. He admitted to an excellent relationship .
with his parents and siblings, and indicated this was the
first time he had been in trouble. He graduated from
Grandview Elementary School in 1966, and also attended
Camden Military Academy from 1967 to 1968. He graduated
from North High in 1970, with no particular problens,
having received an. Academic Excellence Medal. The defendant
asserts that he has not been in the military and that he has
never been married.

Since his graduation from high school, the
defendant has held three positions. He was employed with
Aetna Finance from 1971 fo 1972, where he earned $450.00 per
month. Then he became a loan officer with the Valley National
Bank from 1972 through 1974. He was earning $700.00 per
month when he resigned due to his transfer from the home office
to Bullhead City. He was last employed with the American
Credit Bureau, collecting unpaid bills. He worked primarily
on commission, and was laid off when he was arrested due to
previous absenteeism. He stated that his only debt is with
Valley National Bank for $700.00. The defendant could recall
no serious illness, physically or mentally within his family,
and this Officer feels there is no alcohol or drug abuse

problenm.

DISCUSSION AND EVALUATION:

The defendant, Ricky Alan Ross, is presently
before the Court charged with Conspiracy, Open~End.

In review, it appears that Mr. Ross apparently
led & normal, well-adjusted childhood. He was an above average
student and graduated in 1970 from high school. He has no

P

v» v“ -
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RICKY ALAN ROSS CAUSE NO. 85433
Defendant

DISCUSSION AND EVALUATION: (CONT'D.)

marriage or military history, he is in good health and seems
to have no alcohol nor drug abuse problem. Most important,
the defendant has no history of arrests that this Officer
could locate. His employment history seems stable and was
verified by this Officer.

puring interview, Mr. Ross was cordial and
readily supplied answers to questions put to him. It is this
Officer's belief that it was a one time offense for this
defendant to have committed such an act. Indeed, there appears
to be nothing in his background that would indicate that he
would be involved in any other criminal offenses; perhaps it
was a combination of alcohol and a depressing 1.0od, coupled
with unemployment, (the same as for the co-defendant) that
prompted his behavior. Further, it is significant th;t the
defendant did not enter the premises after the arcadia door
had been smashed, and it was when he was leaving that he
was spotted by the police.

while it is felt that restitution for
damages should be paid by the defendant, the anount_has not
been determined since the victim could not be contacted. It
is felt that the defendant should be fined and also serve
a few days in the County Jail for his participation.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is respectfully recommended that the defendan
be ordered to pay a medium fine for his part in the present
offense. Further, it is respectfully recommended that the de-

fendant be incarcerated in the Maricopa County Jail for a
period of ten days.

PAGR 4



RICKY ALAN ROSS CAUSE NO. 85433
Defendant

RESTITUTION/REIMBURSEMENT :

It is felt that restit.tion should be paid
to th; victim in this offense, however, since contact could
not be made, it is felt that it should not be ordered. .

Reimbursement would not apply in this action

as the defendant has retained a private attorney.
Respectfully submitted,

H.C. Duffie .
Chief Adult Probation Officer

“

N [Ll'd- C.«/b)w'
By: }I‘l’;ﬂ- %

Elizabeth C. Barkley
Deputy Adult Probation Officer

ECB: km
3/725/7%

wn
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, / P IN THE SUPERIOR COURT 2 .
b i
/ o Of Maricopa County, State of Arizona
E E ZON - -
THE STATE OF ARIZONA B No. yj V_S 2
ORDER OF CONFINEMENT

t.’,’ /' )
| D¢
@//’) ﬁ (// - 5
Defendzmt Division No.‘ékv\z

TO THE SHERIFF OF MARICOPA COUNTY:

The above named defendant having (been found guilty of) (entered a plea of guilty to)

the crime of
IT IS ORDERED that the defendant is remanded to the Sheriff of Maricopa County,
P

‘zdy Wi th%the right to bail pending sentenciag=inmmim-

the defendant or on his or

Arizona, to be held in cus
AL pPpLagr’ AL
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any bond deposited by

her behalf is exonerated and the sureties thereon released

3 /\//( day of _CEM/j /G 25—
\¥'§\ U A e WP -———-é,¢

PHILIP . LiARQUARDYdEe /

DATED THIS

41.70

e
MAL Ura oimn
'"OfNUL ARIONA




IN THE ’ERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF .ONA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MARICOPA

75 G o g Q2

THE STATE OF ARIZONA ; Criminal Case No.
vs ) ; g
; CONDITIONS AND REGULATIONS = s
R e KY . ,ﬁLﬁN | OF PROBATION ' -
o nt —
enda R ° ‘S ) & ™~ E
The Court having on the __.3____&«1 olg___, 19 , suspended the impuiﬁen’ g
of sentence upon the above named defendant for the period of / (year(s ifmwonshe) from said date®® ; :.:

and placed said defendant on probation under the chorge ond supervision of the Advh Probotion Departmen

duting such suspension,

1t «s ordered that the imposition of sentence is suspended upon the lol|oving:o:\‘ivion:.n‘ regulations

of probation (only those checked are oplicoble).

1. The defendant’s conduct shall at oll times be as o law-obiding citizen.

2. Defendant shall not feave the State of Arizona orchonge ploce of residence
without first securing approval of the probation officer.

X Ok

3. Defendant shall repart to the probation officer at least once each month
in weiting or in person as directed ond shall report at such other times es
moy be required by the probetion officer or by the Court.

4. Defendant shell participate and cooperate fully in :ny progrem involving
profess.onal assistance ond counseling, whether vocetionel, medicel or
paychologicol os directed by the probetion ofticer.

§. Dafendant shell not induige in the excessive use of intoricating liquors.

Defendant shall remain gainfully employed or enolied os o student et ol!
times and shall keep the probetion officer edvised of such employment
or schooling.

7. Defendant shall surnort all depende.ts and poy all debrs ond obl: qetiens
contracted, and the ¢ . endent shall not contrect eny new me er obl jatiens
withou? the counsel and permission of the probstion officer.

X O OK O

. Defendant shall not essaciate with any person of lewiess reputetion or
with ony person who has @ criminal record or who 13 on prebetien or perele
without the consent and permission of the probetion officer,

9. Defendant shell suhmit to urinalys s test.ng as direcred by probotionelficer.

0a

Defendont shall not possess o¢ use eny nerceties including marijvana or
dangerous drugs n violatien of any low end shall net associete with any
person thut uses or traffics in nercotics, merijuene or deangerous drugs
violation of eny lew. .

D 11. Defendant shell make and pay restitution in the tetel emountel §
through the Clerk of the Superier Court of Mericepe County in reguler pey~
ments of $ per menth to

and by the of each month thervafrer,

D 12. Defendant shell not possess or control any deadly weapen or firearm withe
out the consent and permission of the probetien officer.

m 13. Defendent shall pay to mil%l the Superior Court of Maricopa County

a fineun the emeunt to be peid ng lev
.......h_c_‘ﬂnug V7S - Aiapardadd

8 14. As o term and condition of probetion end 1 eccordence with Section 13-1687,
A.R.S., the defendent shall be confined end incercere in the county
(@] of Maricopa County, Arizene, for g period of
!uxchl),(mv! te date ":M -
D 1S. Other rerms and cWnditions: o u
U el Tow. Ggpa 7 S A apsd <ot
‘“x[ stBren 4o atredk .

DATE
RECEIPY AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

1 hereby achnowledge recoipt of @ copy of the foregoing Terms end Conditi of Probeti dered by
e Court a this case, ond | understend that upen my vieletion of eny seid rerms ond conditions of probetion,
o @y ongaging i creminel prectices, or hoving become obendoned 1o improper sssecistes or @ viciews life, the
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Zona fub//(_
Clerk ls held (Pho ”’-"")

as suspect in g@ 25, 1975
-jewelry theft

By ROB KASTROW'
A jewel firm employe and his & ~om-

$43,000 in diamond jewelry- was recov-
. ered from a Wednesday night armed
robbery, Phoenix police said. :

Daniel A. Schroeder, 28, of 5540 N.
62nd Avenue, 3 jewelry sales clerk at.
the Broadway, 2410 E. Camelback, and
Rickey A. Ross, 2, of 3155 W. Cheryl
Drive, were being held for investigation
in the theft of jewels having a retail
value of $100,000 from the store, said
Detective Sgt. Joe Lease. Wholesale
value of the jewels was estimated at

The remainder of the jewelry is in a-
bank safe deposit box and’ is o be
recovered by police this morning,
Lease added

The loot #as found In a cloth sack in
the refrigerator at Schroeder's home, .
the detective said.

Using investigative leads, Lease and
Detectives Kenncth Patterson and Gus
Oviedo arvested Ross and Schroeder at
their homes Thursday night.

Lease said Ross, who is unemplo)ed.i Mdl’e o . oY Pa
posed as the robber in the theft. B houit Sﬂspects in the;t
Schroeder, who told police he was al ab u . ,
diabetic, said he planned to use money Oentipned-fromPage-B-1: . -
Irom sale of the jewels to pay doctor bills for treatdient of his.{aillng eye- 2

Contlnued on Page B3 sight.

. *ThE two of them plamned - the rob- =
bery and went .through the whole act
just like they plonned it Oviedo sald.

e robber asked {0  see sme. .

+ watches’ Wednesday *night before clos-
ing and .while Schroeder .was placing
watches on the glass.case, the robber
handed him a note demanding that he
-empty- the--case of--all the. jewels,.
Schroeder told police Wednesday night.
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FUR‘I'HER DESCRIP].‘ION OF SUSPECT:  SHOULDER LENGTH DARK HAIR, STRAIGHT AND DIRTY,
- SLIGHTLY CURLY AT THE ENDS, BRCWN EYES, WORE BROWN RIM PRESCRIPI‘ICN
GLASSES, FULL FOREHEAD AND IVKJSTACHE WEARING WHITE T-SHIRT, WITH
ROUND NECK BROWN WAIST LENGTH JACKET WITH SLIT POCKETS, LI"" % BROW:

POSSIBLE SPEECH FROBLEM. NO ODORS DETECTED ABOUT HIS PERSON.

WORKS 12 PM -~ 9 PM, VARIOUS DAY{3 CFF EMITLOYED WIT: COMPANNY

APPROXIMATELY THREE YSARS. DOURIFUL IF HE CAN IDENTIFY SUSVECT
FIRST OFFICBRS Ci iCENE: GSUPFLEMENT REPORTS - CFFICER J. KOREN, #2bhl
CFFICFR D. WIELSCH, #2787
SECUREL SCENE AND {mmu*n ROBBERY HGTE.

INV. LEAD: McGANY, LAWRENCE, BTORE SECURITY. ALSO TOUCHED ROBBERY HOTE.
I

I. D. OFFICER: A. TAVERNC, ALOLL PROCESSED SCaONE
I -

PANTS, BROWN COITON WORK TYFE GLOVES. SPOKE WITH A SLUR T HIS WORDS,

. : /flf ! : A
VICTIM ﬁf/é’ SCHRO Efj DANIEL | W/ 26 PSS  U4-1-49 5540 N. 62nd AVE., GLENDALE
—— ‘PFENEQ"&’QW 5 I
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- HR NAME T B
KAY-BEE INTERPRIS

CLEARED 5 ARREST Q)
EXCERTIONALLY CLEARED -

PN D UNFOUNDE]

t Sgt. W, Yelsch
Det. T, Hudgens

1. Farmer, Kathy, emplovee

2. Bores, Shervyl Home phone: 956-0416 Employee

3. VWhite, Mary J. Home phone: 267-8785 Employee
4. Millonzi, Sandy Home phone: 992-9327 Employee
5. Cartledge, Shawn Mome phone: 955-8766 Employee
6. Fenning, Paul Employee in Men's Department

Typed note; blue paper sack; shoe box; newspaper; two granite rocks
All marked as evidence and placed in propert- T,

Property Obtained: 306 pleces of jewelrw consisting of rings, -<hes, pendants, |
B earrings, watchbands, broaches, tie tacs, cuff links. Total retail

value approximately §101,000.00. Cost approximately $50,000.00.
Approximately $100.00 in cash,

|
- —— 1
f

SR

On.7/23/75, at approximately 2059 hours, a White male subject robbed Kay-Bee Interprises
the jewelry shop located in the Broadway Store at 2410 E. Camelback, of approximately
$50,000.00 worth of various diamond and precious paraphernalia by presenting the victim
clerk with a note demanding the diamonds be placed in a box or he would detonate

a bomb that he had brought in with him.

Thig;investigator arrived on the scene at approximately 2105 hours, and found the scene
‘secured by field officers J. Koren and D. Nielson.

Officer Koren presented this investigator with a piece of yellow lined paper, commonly
referred to as legal pad paper 7%" x 5" that had been folded twice and stated this was f
the note that had been given the victim and to his knowledge the victim, himself,

Nielson and another subject, a Dept. Mgr. hhd all handled the note.

The note reas as follows: Remain calm, follow directions, you're being robbed. I am !
desperate. This package is a bomb and if anything goes wrong, I will blow us all up.
Keep talking to me about watches. Put all the diamonds in a box, pretend to sell me

a watch, go to the register and empty it and give me a package and don't send anyone
after me or I can still blow up the bomb and I have a gun too. It should be noted this
note has no corrections nor does it appear that the typist hiad typed over any one
particular letter, however it does not contain any punctuation.

Investigator then proceeded to the jewelry dept. which is located 18 steps directly
north from the south entrance of Broadway which exits into the mall area and onto the
Camelback parking lot side.

|
]
i
i
x
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5-072808

Hackworth 1035 © 7/24/75 9:09AM CIB A862rd
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The jewelry area itself, placing the
‘easterly direction and be facing the -afale Sh'iwide.
~Jewelry area and the silverware area which the cler in this ar 1
again to'the west and facing the clerk in the Jjewelry servicing area.

‘To the back of the jewelry area is the cosmetic counter which would put both clerks
in the cosmetics and jewelry clerk back to back. Directly to the north is the Men's

Wear Dept. and a little bit to the west, amother cosmetic area. The jewelry counter

itself 13 a 22" glass top counter, approximately 6 to 6%"10ng,withithfééichairS'

setting at the counter, facing the west. At the far north end of this counter was

- a display of wristwatches in a circular type display case. Two of the aforementioned -

- chairs were setting against the counter and the third being-at the far north end of

“:." the counter was pushed back away from the counter as if somebody had shoved the

+. - chailr back In order to get out. Directly in front of this chair and womewhat to the
" right on the counter next to the watch display was a blue par bag that appeared

to be of the type that Sears and Roebuck Co. uses, however t: iting Sears was on

the bottombide and the upper side was plain with the open end .r the mouth of the

bag facing in a northeasterly direction. Therefore, placing the opening of the bag

away from the victim-clerk and toward the suspect,

This investigator leaned forward anc peered into this paper bag and saw another box
approximately the size of a shoe box werapped in newspaper print, folded very neatly

at the corners and taped. No attempt was made by this investigator to examine this
package at any further length.

"Bomb and Arson Detail and Sgt. Wally Welsch and T. Hudgens were summoned to the
scene who examined the package, opening it and determined there was not a bomb.

iﬁ; J. Fields, Patrol 17 arrived on the scene and evacuated all offices and remaining
‘store personnel from the immediate area and to the outside, while the Bomb and Arson
Detail completed their work.

" While outside, this investigator contacted victim #2, Daniel Schroider, White male 26,
v who was working behind the counter at the time of the robbery. =~ — - — - - e

Schroider gave the description of the suspect as being a White male, approximately

35 years old, approximately 5'7", 150 1bs., with a noticeable pot belly, dark brown
dirty string hair with a slight curl at the ends, a full face beard. He states

the subject was wearing a white t-shirt, round at the neck and a brown jacket with

slit pockets, approximately waist length. He went on to say that he could not recall
the trousers of the suspect other than they were lighter than the jacket and that the
suspect was wearing brown, cotton type work gloves and that he also had a slight speech
impediment, indicating that he slurred his words. He noted no accent about the

. sugspect nor could he place him 1in any local within the country, such as the South or
East.

3  Hackworth 1035 7/24/75 9:38AM CIB A862rd | 75-072308
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LVICTFIM B MAME (FIRM INAME 5 3155 -

D KAY-BEE INTERPRISES

L I TR AL TIATS CLEAHED Y AaRREST OR - . OVER 18 f N UNDER 18
EXRCEPTHOMALLY s LB ANED . YEAR OLD ‘» YEAR OLD ' j
ALs § AL ' ) ST RIS e
: - PREVIOUS CLEARED BYT;
S e AR D UNFOUNDED D ARREST OR t-i‘:;’::smmuu

interview of victim, Lt. Fields entered upon the conversationvagd:tﬁéﬂ
' the suspect was wearing glasses and he stated>looking-a§;Ltl Fields

ve the same type glasses that the Lt. was wearing which_aré!brdwn
escription glasses. o

" type pr

t older stated he was In the process of emptying the jewelry case, proceeding to take
ﬁig«ccuntfand place them in the safe when the suapect apparently walked through the

afo anenti ned south doors off the Camelback side mall, walked to the counter and

down, placing a package onthe counter and said, "I want to see some watches."

Victim stated he asked if he wanted to see men's watches and the sugpect answered,
leg, I would like to see men's watches." Victim then asked suspect if he was

interested in sports type or dress type watches and the suspect replied, "Let me

see them all." Victim stated he then placed a tray of watches in front of the suspect

“when the suspect produced a fiided vellow piece of paper that : victim could not

‘determine where it came from, handing it to the victim who op © and read the

aforementioned note.

Victim said he immediately turned his bacl! and opened a sliding door that contained
various watches and took a watch box ad proceeded to place the ddamonds, rings,

broaches, tie tacs, and other type jewelry in these boxes and complied with the note
asle was instructed to.

This investigator asked the victim if the suspect had made any comment toward the
safe which was visible from where he was sitting and the victim answered with the
expression that the suspect did not ask that the safe be opened, however he nodded

slightly in that direction and he did not open the safe as the note had not instructed
him to do so.

Victim was questioned at length about the suspect wearing the dark brown work-type cotton
gloves and he answered with a number of Hs customers come in to the store wearing

gloves and it is nothing out of the ordinary as there had been some motorcycle riders

in there recently and they too had not removed their gloves.
Victim was then questioned by this investigator how many times he had read the note
and he answered with at least two times. This investigator then asked him to repeat
what the note sald and the victim replied with it said be calm, follow directions, I'm
desperate, I have a bomb and keep talking to me about watches, go to the register and
get the money and not to send anyone after hin.

Victim stated he did empty the complete showcase af approximately $1090,000.00 retail
price in diamonds which contained rings, both men ad women's, watches both men anc
women's, diamond watches, diamond watchbands, pendeznts, broaches, tie tacs, cuff links,
and earrings, all in the pierce style and then remcved approx. $100.00 from the cash
register and placed dt all in these boxes, then placed it in a average size shopping
bag that he took from underneath the counter and gave them to the suspect who turned
and walked directly away from the counterand out the south doors.

Hackworth 1035  7/24/75 10:00AM CIB A862rd | 75-072808
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ea and: told all the people in this area that th
forithem to get away, - g ‘

‘Vibtim sgatgd*ﬁe immediaﬁely went to the cosmetic area a

.,Victiﬁistated'there was approximately maybe one or'twb minutes elapsed before the
Police were notified. . SRR .

This investigator then asked the victim how long he had viewed the suspect’ during
i, :the robbery and he stated anywhere from five to ten minutes as the suspect continued
~talking about the watches and such stuff while he was emptying the trays and getting
.the loot ready for him, as words to the effect that you have some :nice watches, do
ou have .an Accutron type watch, I like these, and words to this effect,

; ﬁidthn,wga.then asked if he thought he could,idenéify'the:suspect 1f he'séw him again
“and he stated he was very doubtful as he never really got a ' look at him.

I.D. technician A. Tavernaro #A1014 was summoned to the sceme und took photographs

~of the counter area and mocessed the chair and counter for prints. See his supplement
for further details.

_Qgtectives J. Thompson and Mike Nikolin assisted this investigator in interview of
' various witnesses, see their supplement for further details.

Det. Sgt. W. Faudkner provided this investigator with the names Joe Mazza of 2730 N.
Myrtle, Tempe, phone 947-0274, who is head of security, but was not present during
- the robbery and might have information for follow up officers. :

Sgt. Paulkner also stated Lawrence Ed Mc Gann, a guard in the store of 4332 N. 23 Place,
- phone 265-9830 was on the scene during the robbery, however was on the second floor.
~Be might also be contacted by follow-up investigator.

An attempt was made by this officer to contact the witnesses #1 - 6 regarding possible
; ‘identification or description of the suspect, however none could be contacted at

i this late houseas they had all Xt the store prior-to- the investigators having-the - —
' opportunity to interview them.

i Possible witness #6, Paul Ferning, had told one of the enployees who informed this
investigator that he had seeun the suspect in the store just prior to the robbery,
however he had a date and could not walt around to talk to the police officers. TFenning
works in the Men's Dept. at Broadway in the evening or afternoon hours.

The note was sealed in a plastic bag along with the paper sack and the shoe box and
two granite rocks and all placed in the property room marked as evidence. No attempt

ﬁ was made by this investigator at this time to have any of this property examined for
latents prints or other such evidence.

It should be noted that the newspaper wrapped around the fake bemb was dated the 18th and

; [ . Hackworth 1035 : 7/24/75 10:20AM TIB A862rd 75-072808
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Jewelry,department on the
bed suspect entered the store: and han
note on: yallow lined paper. The note stated 1s egsence
ckaae he had Just set: on the jewelry counter, and t
all the diamond Jewelry in the case. o S

"MR. SCRROEDER ga : the sugpect the Jewelry ‘and he in turn put it in & blue Broa.d
evelry was first estimated at $100,00.00. The suspect then”
_door, and went in an unknown direction. :

The package tha.t 'was supposed to contain the bomb wn * on the Jéwelry counter,rg.'
and Bomb and Arson Deﬁail vas called. ‘

The typewritten note was touchel by MR. SCHROEDER, the clerk,
MR. SNAPP, the manager, Officer Dinelson #2787 and myself, in that order.

P e s . . SN X | oty oy
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o VRS T G 1 AME (EIRM AME 15
[ ] ! KAY-BRE? TWTERPRISES

CLEAFED BY ARREST GRT
A EZPT:_(}NALL.Y Ct,EAREL‘tj.

“!herythink“thcvtnhadapopbem'
"I'11 bet thay are looking everywhere"
"Worked out great®

"Jevelry®

§
After listening for a few seconds, IET, PATTERSON knocked on the front door and it was |
Opened by a’subject who later identified himself as RICKY ROSS. A/0 identified himself
a3 & Folice Officer and aXked if he could come in, RICKY invited A/0 in and stated - -
. -that he was-talking on the phane. o e ST L
- ? PN !

T, PATTERSON then advised RICKY of his rights per the standard rights cand and RICKY |
_ Teplied 'yes" when asked if he understood his rights and wolld answer A/0's questions, |

m.PAmmmmtmmmmtotalktohimWQrobberythattook ?
placeatehooz.Cm]backon.hdy23inuhmalargeamtot3nelrywastam.
At this point, RICHY started breathing fast and swallowed very hard, After :
afwmoremimxteaA/OaakedRIcuﬂhewmﬂdcomedowntmmtalktousandhe ;
agreed to do so. Prior to leaving, RICKY fimished washing the dishes and thenchangedg

i

SGIs J. LFASE gave RICKY a ride to the main Police station at 620 W, Wakhington,

A% Ahe main Police station,/0 questioned RICKY about the robbery and he stated that he
didn'*t know anythibg about it. When asked if he knew DAKTAL SCHROELER, he replied |

—hours, DET, PATTERSON entered the interview room with DANTAL SCHROELER and DET..G, OVIELO.
lof " "XENNETH PATTERS NHIS8L 7-25-75 030k ‘a1365pt | © "15-072808
Ore PAGE = ‘ o ’ N : : | ‘
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o UNDER 18
D YEARGLD

PREVIOUS CLFARESD By

ARRESY (3R £ a0 E0THN B

:m ; L "'
skhg me they have been very nice,®

E
:

When asked sbout the rest of them he explained that RICKY has ti. ther balf in a safe
_depositlox,  When asked about the beard that the suspect had, DANIAL stated that RICKY had

IANTAL told AJO that he had received half of the jewelry and that he had it hidden at his
parents house in Glendale. DANIAL agreed to shew A/O where the jewelry was.

SGT. ¥, LEASE, DANIAL, and A/O went® 5540 N, 62 Ave, in Glendale where ve emtered the
~residence at MR, DONALD SCHROEIER'S request. Once inside the residence DANIAL told DET.
PATTERSON: to use & screwiriver on the rafrigator door, After taking the door apart IET,
. PATTERSON: found & cloth sack with mmerous items of Jewelry inside. (Found and retainsd by
o PATTERSON at 2220 hours). IANIAL then entered the southeast bedrocm whare he removed
- a small capsul and a tin box from a drawer. He stated that he bad started melting some of
~the Jewelry down and that there was approx one oz. of gold in the tin bex and $4,000 in
- diamonds in' the' capsul. '

On the way back to Fheenix, IANTAL stated that he had approx $20,000 dm jewelry in the sock
or 31&3,000 retail value,

mmMummm@ into the County Jail.
The Jewelry will be marked as evidence and placed in Police proberty,

ez 2 T T keNRETH PADTERSON ¢«
: | #1584 | 7-25-75 0304 al365pt
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L statdd "I don't have oll the jewelr 've cnly got half of them®




he' suspéct scianognza
.uninal Investigation

( 3 7—24—75 I interviewed DANIEL SCHROEDER about thesrobbery in order
obtain more 1nformatlon about the robbery. 1I also asked him if he would be willing to
Atak a Polygraph Examinatlon, to which he agreed. At approx. 9:00 p.m.) _DET. PATTERSON

d uspect RICKY ROSS at 9:45 p.m. He had already been advised of his L
PA&TERSON and I again rem;nded of his rlghts. Prlor to ROSS maklng a.e

i up all the Jewelry and took the money out of the register and gave it to him.

it was a big joke.‘ About amonth ago; they both started talklngﬂgéiiodgiy about doing a
fake" robbery. ROSS said he went to the Sears Store in the Metro Center and got a shoe
box and a bag. He took this to his apartment and then both of them wrapped up the rocks H
. 'in the box to simulate a bomb. ROSS said that SCHROEDER had borrowed a typewriter and
“typed the note that was used. ROSS said on the night of the robbery, he went to the
" Shopping Center and parked his car by the Saddleback Restaurant and at exactly 8:45 p.m.,
he walked in the south entrance of Broadway and went up to the Jewelry counter.
he asked to look at the watches and handed DON SCHROEDER the note. He said ROSS GATHERED

‘money from the register was about $77.00. ROSS said he was in the store about six minutes.
'He went back out the same south door; ran to his vehicle and drove home. ROSS said that

he hadn't shaved in about 10 days and let his hair get dirty. He said he stuffed a
t-shirt inside his clothes to make it lock like a beer belly. He also put make up on his

*said that he has’known SCHROEDER for about three years and about a year ago SCHROEDER
‘started talking about how easy it would be to "rip off" the Jewelry Store. At this time.

He said

He said the
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_ BROADWAY DEPARTMENT ST0

CCLOTHING

¥ NOTES ETC 8

PRECIOUS METALS § AULTOS
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+'DEBORAH K. SHIELDS s
Home: 9001 N. Concho Lane, Phoenix, 971-3403
ork; 2410 E. Camelback, 5:30 P.M, - 9:00 P,M,

(Description) W/M mid-twenties, brown curly mediun length hair t
¢ shoulders, possibly had streaks, full beard, wearing g

'+ 7-23-75 at approximately 9:00 P.M. I was dispatched to the Biltmore Pashion Store,
itreet and Camelback. On arrival I interviewed Witness DEBORAH K. SHIELDS.  DEBORAH
stated she was working in the silverware department located on the south mid portion of °
1e store directly east of the victim's counter. DEBORAN stated that | hortly before
0 PLM.. she observed the within described suspect walking past her department and = i |-
etting:in a chalr at the counter of the jewelry department which is directly west of her.|”
DEBORAH states she observed the suspect because she normally ~hes customers that come
through the store at that time due to the fact of the few num . DEBORAH states she
observed the suspect sitting in the chair with both of his hands on his lap and she
thought it was kindiof funny at the time. DEBORAH stated at this time she did not believe
+.the suspect was wearing anything on his hands, however she did not see any jewelry on the
“suspect. DEBORAH stated she then saw the suspect going towards DANNY after sitting in
‘the chair for approximately ten minutes.

 DEBORAH stated she observed DANNY showing the suspect some watches at which time she
.recelved a phone call and didn't see the suspect again,

DEBORAH stated the phone call was from an unknown female who kept her on the phone for
‘some time asking about silverware. DEBORAH stated she was still on the phone when she

_wag grabbed from behind by DANNY and told to hang up and DANNY took the phone from her
and told the woman to call back,

ANNY told her that there was a bomb and he had just been robbed, for her to leave the

. area at which time she observed DANNY telling the other clerks in the store also. DEBORAH
“stated she then went outside.

DEBORAH stated she had never seen the suspect in the store before and believes she éould
possibly ddentify him if she does see him again.

DEBCRAH stated the only thing unusual to her during the robbery 1s that she did look up
at one point and normally DAY doesn't say anything to her while talking to a customer,
however he was putting some of the diamonds in what she thought to be a bag and he did

look over at her and smile and said hello. DEBORAH states she had no idea the robbery
was taking place.

DEBORAH will assist in prosecution in any way possible,
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-8t 9:00 A.M., the recovered property was taken‘-from the propert.
of identifying it. DAY GOVZALES, Gener Menager' for KAY-BEE'
_RPRISES went through all the jewelry and 1dentified it’ from his inventory 1ist
‘his- viewing of the jJewelry.

'complete list of the property missing was made by DM!HY GONZALES but he‘
a‘sales slip

The tote.l “amoun of Jewelry taken was approxlmately 292 pieces and 292 pieces were
accounted far i -the recovery.

plerced earrings with di amond settingsi
tie tacks with diamond settings

: - ddamond watch band |
=~ diamond’'pendants, 9 with
. 3~ diamond pins

28 - ladies fancy diamond rings
ladies wedding ring sets |
ladies wedding rings i
12 - men's wedding rings |

£
G -
1

hains, and 36 without

——

N
&S
¥t

Some melted gold, and 10 loose diamouds that were removed from settings. 5 of the
loose diamonds were accounted for, T,he inventory on the loose dianonds were:
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Av':ga ’ appro:vdmately‘ $’;7 ,189.1;5.

gmonds ~and pendants vere put in separate
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28 9/8/75 3:30pm CIBa68ljsm .| 75-072808
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THE STATE OF A% .ONA CAUSE NO. 85433 (P.V.)
Plaintiff
. HONORABLE PHILIP W. MARQUARDT
vs
__§§__:3 CRIMINAL DIVISION I o
RICKY A. ROSS Py
Defendant SUPERIOR COURT 2, ?i?;
HEARING DATE: AUGUST W8, 1375%
Nz =
N B
) c{‘Dii
PROBATION VIOLATION REPORT =3 G%.
f-\ . ;:é
2 .

PROBATION STATUS:

The defendant was placed on one year's pro-
bation by the Honorable Philip Margquardt on April 3, 1975, for
the crime of Conspiracy, Open-End. The usual terms of probation
were signed by the defendant at that time, and these are attached.
A violation of probation warrant was issued by Judge Marquardt

on July 29, 1975.

ALLEGED VIOLATION OF PROBATION:

Ricky Ross has violated term #1 of the terms
and conditions of his probation by not conducting himself as a
law-abiding citizen. On July 23, 1975, the defendant committed
the crime of "Theft By Embezzlement" by staging a Robbery at the
Broadway Store, 2410 East Camelback Road, Phoenix, Arizona. An
estimated $50,000.00 in diamonds were taken by the defendant.
These were recovered by the police from the defendant's safety
deposit box, and also from the co-defendant. The defendan* ad-
mitted this crime to his probation officer.

ADJUSTMENT AND EVALUATION:

The defendant's failure to remain a law-

abiding citizen leads this Officer to believe that the probation
of Rick Ross should be revoked.



(¥
Py

o di}*j‘:’U n ,.

S 76 0T
RICKY A. ROSS ‘= CAUSE NO. 85433 (p.v.)
Defendant
RECOMMENDATION:

It is respectfully recommended that the Conspiracy
charge now be designated a Misdemeanor, and that the defendant
be sentenced to one year in the county jail.

Respectfully submitted,

H. C. DUFFIE
Chief Adult Probation Officer

ls
obation Officer

Approved:
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)
) NO. 39445
S, )
)
FICEY ALLAN ROSS and )
CANIZL ALLEN SCHRCEDER, ) INFOPMATION FOR
) THEFT BY EMBEZZLEMENT
c2fendants. )
)

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA, RICKY
ALLAN ROSS and DANIEL ALLEN SCHROEDER are accused this 2nd day of
September, 1975, by the County Attorney of Maricopa County, State
of Arizona, by this Information, of the crime of THEFT BY EMBEZZLE-
WENT, a felony, committed as follows, to-wit:

The said RICKY ALLAN ROSS and DANIEL ALLEN SCHROEDER,
on or about the 23rd day of July, 1975, and before the filing of
this Information at and‘in the County of Maricopa, State of Arizona,
cormitted theft by embezzling from Kay-Bee Interprises, property,
t0-wit: Three Hundred Six (306) pieces of jewelry, consisting
<f rings, watches. pendants, earrings, broaches, tie tacs and cuff
~inks, cf the value cof over $§100.00, all iz violation of A.R.S.
§13-581, §13-682, §13-688, §13-671, §13-138, §13-139 and §13-140;
contrary to the form, force and effect of the statute in such cases

made and provided and against the peace and dignity of the State

MOISE BERGER
MARICOPA COUNTY ATTORNEY

By
o)

52/3
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REGINA A. O'AMBROINO, M.0.

September 10, 1975 )

B. Michael Dann

Attorney at Law

100 West Washington Street
First National Bank Plaza
Phoenix, Arizona 85003

Re: Richard Allen Ross

Dear Mr. Dann:

. ] must apologize to you for this delay in answering your letter.
of August 18th. However, I have been incapacitated following back surgery
and have not been able to get to the mail until now.

Ricky Ross had been under my care since February of 'S57 through
September of '71, and he was seen regularly early in his life but more
episodically later on. In July of '65, at the age of 10-1/2 years, because.
of parents' statements that the youngster was exhibiting hyperactive behavior
and having difficulty concentrating and giving his attention to school
matters. An attempt was made to control this with Deaner 100 mg. twice a day
and Librium 30 mg. daily. Thereafter he was seen, as I mentioned before,
episodically only for acute illnesses or injuries and there was no menti
made of any of these problems thereafter. His last visit to the office was
on September 16, 1971, when he was treated for a streptococcal sore throat
with penicillin for ten days.

This is the only information I can-provide for you at this time.

fo/v ~

s amonl)
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St Sprramares NOVEMOER 26, 1978

@b EV6VO0

RICHARD ALAN BOES

THIS PATIENT 1S A 22 YEAR O.D MALE ADOPTED SON OF PAL. AO
~ EneL Ross, M- WAS SEEN UPON REFERRAL OF MR, B, NTOWEL DANN.
HE WAS SEEN ON AUGUST 29, 1975, FOR ONE AND ONE-HALF HOURS, ON
SEPTEVEER 25, 1975, FOR ONE MOUR AND ON NIVO©OER 13, 1975, FOR
A PERICO OF ONE HOUR., THE PURPOSE OF THIS EVALUATION WAS TO AS~
$ESS RICK'S PERSONALITY STRUCTURE, HIS GENERAL ATTITLDE TOARD
mmms»omzmammnmmmou—
. POS1TION OF M1S CASE. : .

ON ALL THREE OCCASIONS WHEN [ SAW HIM, RICKX WAS WGLL ORIENTED
AND ALERT TO H1S SURRONDINGS, HE WAS COOPERATIVE AND UNDERS TOCD
THE SCRICUSNESS OF THE CHARGES AGAINST HIM, RICK WAS WORKING AT
VALLEY NATIONAL BANK AT € END OF 1973 THROUGH OCTOBER, 1974, HE
MAD PREVIOUSLY WORKED AS A COLLECTOR FOR SIX OR SEVEN MINTIS witd
HE AETNA INSURANCE COMPANY, HE HAD ALSD WORKED WITH AVIS FOR A
SHORT PERICD OF TIME PRIOR TO TMIS., BECAUSE OF THIS EXFERIENCE

. - HE WAS MIRED A VALLEY BANK TO MELP REPOSSESS CARS AND WORK AS A
~ LDAN OFF ING H1S PERICD OF EVMPLOYMENT Al VALLEY NATIONAL

Bang, PREADICES WHICOH RESLLTED IN HIS FILING
1 IVIL LIBCERTIES UNION, A=
. _TION D TE JEw! 1-DeF . A NEGOTIATED SOLUTION
. CWAS WORKED OUT AND RICK WAS TRANSFERRED TO BULHEAD CITY BRANCH:

vamtxmm.mmmmmwmw:m

OF THE BANK. WHILE AT BULAEAD CITY, RICK WAS AGAIN SUBJECT 10 PRES-
. QURES FROX OTHER BANK EVPLOYEES AND ME WAS ACTUSED OF JUST WORKING
(ALTHOUCH OUITE CREDISLY) AT MIS JOB8 JRUST EIGHT MOURS A DAY AND WAS '
TOLD THAT ME S-OAD BE TAKING BANKING COURSES AND S0 FORTH ON THE
S10E. ACTUALLY, HE WAS TAZING COURSES PREPARATORY TO A COLLEGE DEG-
KEE, WHIZH WOAD EE NECESSARY FOR HIS ADVANCEMENT IN THE BANK IN ANY
CASE.

ATER RICK RESICNED FROM VALLEY NATIONAL BANK, HE WORXED AT THE
MERICAN CREDITORS BUREAY FOR FIVE MONTHS. DURING THIS TIME, HE HAD
BRONCHITIS AND IN ADDITION TO SEVERAL DOCTOR BILLS THCRE WAS ALSO A
BACKLOG OF MASTERCMARGE RILLS AND A CONSOLIDATION LOAN FROM VALLEY
NATIONAL BANK., 1T WAS BECAUSE OF THESE KINDS OF PRESCURES THAT RICK
TOLD ME THAT HE FELL IN ¥.TH COMPANIONS THAT SAID THAT HE COLD WAKE
" AN EASY BLCXK™ lN?nlswAvrcm!orﬁmrevwaem IN-
DEPCNDONT, AT APPROXIMATOLY THE SAMC TIME, RICK ALSO SPENT SOME TIME
YORKIMN, FOR HIS DAD, WHIQH W CHARACTERIZES AS ™ A HAND-OUT AT ROSS
MUBING.* HE LATER WONT ON (REVPLOYMENT,
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THE MOST SIGNIF JCANT As::cv OF RIOK'S PAST HISTORY 1S THAT ME
IS AN mmx,mvrcnsrwmmmm
CTHING THAT 1S A LITILE SHADY, MIS CHARACTCRISTIC

RESPONSE xs - x'r $ PRETTY DISSTING THE WAY THEY MAKE SUCH A BI1G DEAL
ABOUT THINGS. " HAS A CAPACITY TO DENY THE SERIODUSNESS

PRODLEVS WHICH #E FACES. IR
+E RECENTLY FECEIVIU URE YEAR'S  TEN DAYS IN

JAIL BECAUSE ™ TSEY THOUGHT 1T WOWLD BE GOOD FOR ME. °, 18 OUICK TO
CRY ® THAT'S JLLEGAL® IN SUCH A SITUATION. RICH TOLD ME THAT * | M-
“PLATIED T0 TIE JOOSE=<T WKSH'Y Tr& RING LEADER JAJST DECAUSE ] WAS OLDER. "
RICK SAYS THAT WHEN HE CAME OUT FROM THAT JAIL TERM, HE HAD DECIOCD THAT
HE WOULD NOT GET INTO FURTMER TROUBLE. [N RETROS®ECT, HOWEVER, HE FCELS
NOV THAT THE JAIL TERM JUST GAVE MIM THE IMPRESSION THAT JAIL WAS NOT SUCH
A BAD PLACE AND THAT YOU COUD POP IN AND POP OUT AGAIN. THIS 1S IN SHARP
CONTRAST 10 MIS SECOND EXPERIENCE OF JAIL, WHIOH WAS OVER A LONGER PERICO
OF TIME AND DURING WHIOM THERE WERE MANY SIGNS OF 105 PSYOHOLOGICAL
W.. IN HIS SECOND ‘JAILING, ‘E EE'N’NTS.L\' VADE A OUTTE SERTOUS
T SYICIDE A T. 1T 1S IMPORTANT TO REALIZE THAT THIS £0ULD NOT BE LOOKED
. ON AS AN IMPETUDUS OR IMPALSIVE ACT ON H1S PART., RATHER, 17 18 AN EXCEL~

. uan INDICATION OF OF RICK'S ON-GOING PSYOKI.OGICAL STAB-
LITY. ALDOUGH AN DFPORTINIST, AND ) L WEN FE

h& HE MAS BEEN WRONGED OR NOT GIVEN A FAIR SHARE, 1T 1S MY OFINION
1 THAT THIS OPPORTUNISM AND WHININESS SPRINGS FROM A NEED TO SUCCFED IN

LIFE DESPITE THE FEELING OF OEEP INTER-WORTHLESSAESS, W-EN HE 1S THROW
ON HIS OWN RESOURCES AND OPFORTUNISM IS UNAVAILABLE AND CRYING FOWL PRO-
OUCES ND OANGES, MIS OWN LACK OF SELF-WORTH AND SENSE OF FWPTINESS CVER-
WELM HIM AND A NEAI¢ SUICIDE RESULTED. ' )

4 - _~— ™
k’ “IN ORDER TO UNDERETIND TE BASIS FOR TH1 A SENSE OF
SELF - . WE WJSST TS 1CX'S EARLIER LIFE. %
- PSYCHIATRISTS AND COUNSELORS SINCE AGE SIX. THERE -

’ % DIFFICWL TONER, 1963, RICK MAD BEEN
N T DIFFERENT CLASSRUOM SITUATIONS WITHIN THE FIRST TaD MONTHS

_OF SCHOOL. THERE WAS A OUALITY OF LACK OF POSITIVE SOCIAL CONTACTS AND ANGU- -
MENTS IN MIS CLASSROOM RELATIONSHIPS., HIS NEED FOR CONSTANT STRUCTURE WAS

1 FEEL, HIS WAY OF ATTEPT/NG TO MAVE THE ENVIRUNMENT MAKE MORC CLEAR 1T°'S
COMANDS ON HIM, THIS PHENOYENON 1S SEON IN TWO PSYCHOLOGICAL SITUATIONS)
ONE, THAT OF VMENTAL RCTARDATION WHERC THE CHILD MAS LITTLE CAPACITY TO UN-
DERSTAND WHAT 1S EYPECTED OF THEM AND SECONDLY, IN SITUATIONS OF MINTMAL
BRAIN DYSFUNCTION, 1T 1S MY FEXLING RAZED DOTH ON THE MISUNDERSTANDIMNGS
OF OUCSTIONS AND COMVINTS 1 WOLD ASK MIN IN THE COUMRSE OF THE PSYCHIATRIC
EVALUATIN PENCORMED TN THE JAIL AND ALSO ON THE BASIS OF RICK'S SOOQL
HISTORY THAT M €AS T VICTIM OF AN EARLY AUDITORY OHANNEL SPECIFIC LEARN-
ING DISABILITY. T 1S OUIIE CLEAR, MISTORICALLY , THAT WHEN ADTCUATE LIMITS
WRE SET FOR HIM THAT € DID OUITE WELL AND HAD A VERY STRONG POSITIVE RE-
LATIONSHIP WITH TCACERS. QORRENT STUDIES BEING D'WE AT UCLA QiiLn NEuRO-
PSYCHIATRIC CENTER INDICATE OUITE GLEARLY THAT ThE RESIDUAL OF THIS KIND o=




PROSLEM 1S OUITE FREQUENTLY A PSYCHOPATHIC-APPEARING OPPORTUNISTIC
PERSINALITY SiXH AS RICK'S WHICH OCCURS IN MEN AS OPPOSED TO A HYS-
TERICAL PERSONALITY TYPE EVOLVING 11l FEMALES. | THINK THE LESSON IN
NE QURRENT SITUATION FOR RICK 1S OUITE CLEAR. HE WOULD NOT FROFIT
FROM Tr€ SITUATION IN JAIL, NCR 1S . CANNY ENOUGH TO AVOID BEING THE
SRUNT OF OTHER INMATES® AGGRESSIONS., WHAT ME WIRKS BEST UNDER 1S A
PERICD OF PROBATION WITH RATHER STRICT AND SPECIFIC CONDITIONS FOR 178
FULFILLMENT, JF THESE CONDITIONS ARE NOT MADE SPECIFIC TeEN RICK wiLL
TEND TOD DENY AND FORGET THE IMPORT OF MIS OURRENT EXMERIENCE AND AGAIN
BECOME OPPORTUNISTIC.

ONE OF THE ADVANTAGES OF SECEING RICK ON THREE SEPARATE OCCASIONS
OR A SEVERAL MONTH TIME SPAN LIES IN HIS PRESENTING HIMSELF UNDER DIF~
FERENT CIROMSTANCES. ALTHOUGM RICK WAS EXTREMELY ANXIOUS TO THE POINT
OF MISUNDERSTANDING OUESTIONS AND COMMENTS WHEN | FIRST SAW MIM IN JAIL,
AETER HE WAS OUT OF JAIL HE CALMED DOWN CONSIDERABLY ALTHOUGH FRANKLY
D10 NOT. APPEAR TO LOSE MIS RESULT TO STAY OUT OF THERE AGAIN, ] FEEL
THAT THIS LAST RATHER BROLONGED JAIL SENTENSE INADVERTENTLY ACHIEVED THE
GOALS OF TE ORIGINAL TEN DAY SENTENSE. TMHERE WCRE TWO ASPECTS OF Ricx's
BEMAVIOR WHICH PERSISTED THROUGHOUT THE MONTHS THAT | HAVE KNOWN MIM,

JEF TABILITY AND DISTRACTIBILITY WHEN ME 1S ENGAGED IN
CONVERSATION. THESE ARE NAL 1818

A CODITION FOP WHITH RIOK WAS TREATED BY DOCTOR JEROME KAY, PEDIATRICIAN,
IN JULY, 1965, TrE ASSOCIATION OF TI€ HYPERWENITIC CHILD WITH THE OHILD
WO MAS AUDITORY DR VISUAL CHANNEL LEARNING DISASILITIES IS WELL KIOWN AND
1 FEEL THIS FURTHER SUBSTANTIATCS THE LIKLIMOOD THAT THIS IS A PLAUSIBLE
EARLIER DIAGNDSIS. MOST OF THE WORK IN THIS AREA HAS BEEN DONE SINCE 1970,
HOWEVER, AND MORE EFFECTIVE MEDICINES TO CONTRO. ‘MH1S CLADITION ARE NOW
AVAILASLE FOR YOUNGSTERS, THAT WAS THE CASE W-EN RICK WAS A SMALL CHILD.

. A SECOND ASPECT OF RICK'S BLHAVIOP WHIOH MAS PERSISTED THROUGHIUT ALL
o ms INTERVIEWS WiTH ME WAS HIS IWENSE NEED TO PLEASE AND SEFX APPROIA-
TION. ] FEEL THAT THIC OULTTV SO000 BE TUREN TN POSITIVE USE THROKH
ON-GOING CONTACTS BLTWEEN RICK A'D A VELUNTECR PRIBATION OFFICER., [ THINK
THAT TMIS NEED 0% MIS PART 10 MAVE OT'ERS LIKE WHAT HE I8 AND 16 DOING RE-
LATES TO THE WMIRE LONG-STANDING FEELING THAT ME IS NUT CLOSELY IN TUNE WITH
EVENTS THMAT ARE MAPPENING AROUND HIM. '

THERE ARE OTHER ASPECTS (F RICX'S DACKGROND THAT WE TOUCHED ON IN THE
_COURSE OF H1IS PSYCH!ATR!C EVALUAT JON. TreSE CONCERN HIS RELATIONSHIPS IITH

' 4VERE HAVE DECN PROL_EW5 AND DITPTCUCTIES. Tre FOBER RELATIONSHIP HAS neeu
MARRED DY RICK'S NOT BEING ABLE TO MULT M1S PARENTS EXPCCTATIONS PARTIALLY
AT LEAST DECAUSE HE 01D NOT ALWAYS UNDERSTAND THESE EXPECTATIONG AND THE LAT-
TEN RECLATES TO MANY OF RICK'S FCELINGS OF LACK. OF SCLF-WOWTH.



mm_gn:wwz& ALLOWED TO
Acm:vt-' SOME SUCCESS IN & SOCTALLY AFPROVED LIFE-ST™MLE/ HE MAS AL~
“SEXDY BEGUN ON TMIS AND SEDMS TO BE CETTING OGICAL GRAT]=~
FICATI 0! WORV.ING FO? H1S AINCL THIS JOD ALLOWS HIM T™E RREEDOM
YO USE msgwwm@‘ltu CONSTRUCTIVE WAY TO SECURE
oS THINK, A FINE ZO0LUTION TO TE PROBLEM UF MIX-
RICK'S PSYCHOLOGICAL NCEDS FOR CBVIOUS SUCCEES AND APOROVAL WITH
1S NEED TO MAKE MONEY [N RELATIONSHIP TU THE AMOUNT OF EF¥ORT ¥C PUTS
qﬁ.‘vﬁm“'ﬂ‘mv.‘?v FECLING 1S TMAT RICK HAS MAD AN EARLY NPECIFIC
LEARING DISABILITY WHICH HAS LEFT IT°S SCARS IN TERMS (F CXTREE ANXIETY,

. e e e e o e Py < —
|
A}
.

“TION WILLOETFOR PRODATION WITH RATHER BTRICT LIMITATIONS AND oot TIONS.,

;‘ .“0““«. m“m .”2'>—l".
" Tious P, 0'BRIEN, N.D.
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THE STATE OF ARIZONA
Pla/ntiff

7764 03 adun Ny
v CAUSE NO. 89445

HONORABLE EDWARD C. RAPP
Vs

CRIMINAL DIVISION G
RICK ALAN ROSS

De fendant SUPERIOR COURT

PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION

PRESENT CHARGE: Conspiracy to Commit Grand Theft, Second
Degree, Open-End, amended from Theft By
Embezzlement, a Felony.

PLEA: November 26, 197S5.
CUSTODY STATUS: Released O.R.
DEFENSE COUNSEL: Michael Dann, privately retained.

PRESENT OFFENSE:

According to Phoenix Police Departmental
Report #75-072808, on July 23, 1975, at approximate.y 2100
hours, a white male suspect robbed Kay-Bee Enterprises, the
jewelry shop located in the Broadway Store at Biltmore éashion
Park, 2401 East Camelback, of approximately $50,000.00 worth
of diamonds and precious paraphern§lia by presenting the vic-
tim clerk with a note demanding the diamonds be placed in a
box or he would detonate a bomb that he had brought in with
him. The clerk, Daniel Schroeder, described the suspect as
being a "white male, thirty-five years old, five foot seven,
one hundred fifty pounds, noticeable pot belly, dark brown
dirty stringy hair, a full face beard." Upon arrival of po-
lice, the clerk indicated he followed instructions explicitly
and instructed police that while the jewelry was valued at
$50,000.00, its retail value was approximately $100,000.00.
On July 24, 1975, information was received that Mr. Schroeder
had in fact set up the robbery, and suspect Rick Ross was the
person responsible for the robbery itself. After questioning

both Mr. Ross and Mr. Schroeder, they later admitted to the

PAGE 1
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RICK ALAN ROSS R CAUSE NO. 89445
Defendant
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PRESENT OFFENSE: (Cont'd)

crime, and each suspect indicated he had received half of thc
jewelry. Mr. Schroeder led police to hic parents' residence,
where he showed police that the jewelry had been hidden in-
side the refrigerator door. Mr. Ross indicated to police
that his half of the jewelry was hidden in a safety deposit

box.

OFFENSES TO BE DISMISSED:

According to the Plea Agreement, the original
charge was dismissed after the defendant pled to an Amended

Information.

DEFENDANT'S STATEMENT:

"Three months previous to July 23, 1975, Daniel
Schroeder began to approach me with regard to a planned ;m-
bezzlement of $100,000.00 at the Broadway Store in which he
worked. I finally agreed to his plan and committed the crime
July 24, 1975. I did this because I was convinced it was to
my advantage at that time and would help Dan out of serious
financial problems. All the items embezzled were later re-
turned."” Mr. Ross advised that he felt he needed the money
for security, but had no specific plans for the money. He
stated that at the time of his involvement, he was associat-
ing with lots of "criminals"™ and admitted that he is easily
led. He indicated that he was on prgbation to this Department
at the time of the instant offense, and stated that the first
charge had happened the same way. Mr. Ross indicated that
the police were notified that he was involved in the instant
offense when a newspaper article was read by a third co-

conspirator who has since been *cut out of the action.”

PAGE 2



. ‘ . . -
77 G cD‘l.‘?,.U 1, 0

RICK ALAN ROSS CAUSE NO. 89445

De fendant

DEFENDANT'S STATEMENT: (Cont'd)

This third party then contacted police and led them to Mr.
Schroeder and Mr. Ross. He stated that he “elieves the third
party, Mr. Newsom, has "ruined my life. I don't believe any
of this would have happened if he and his friends hadn't ap-

proached me."

COMPANION ACTION:

A presentence report is being prepared for co-
defendant Daniel Schroeder for the same charge. After inter-
viewing both Mr. Ross and Mr. Schroeder, it would appear t;at
both co-defendants were equally involved in the instant of-

fense.

STATEMENT OF VICTIM:

Mr. Geisler of the Broadway Department Stofé was
contacted by :elephone. He advised that the store recovered
most of the jewelry which had been stolen and stated that
seven or eight rings had been melted down but the gold and
the jewels were returned also. He advised that he wished to

make no statement, adding "We got our property back."

STATEMENT OF REFERENCES AND INTERESTED PARTIES:

Investigating Detectives Berry and Corey, as well
as their superior, Lieutenant Twitchell, of the Phoenix Police
Department were contacted by the writer. The officers advised
that they would not oppose probation.

Deputy Adult Probation Officer Randy Walker con-
tacted the writer. He advised that Mr. Ross had originally
been assigned to his caseload when first placed on probation.

He advised that the defendant never reported to his office

PAGE 3
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RICK ALAN ROSS : CAUSE NO. 89445

Defencant
STATEMENT OF REFLIF ICES AND INTERESTED PARTIES: (Cont'd)

and thus Mr. Wi <er was forced to make inquiries of Mr. Ross'
parents. He advised that when the defendant's parents were
contacted, the defendant's parents were completely unaware
that the defendant had been arrested and were understandably
upset. Mr. Walker added that Mr. Ross came in to the depart-
ment shortly thereafter and was "hostile and irate that his
parents had been contacted." Mr. Walker advised that Mr.
Ross was then transferred to the caseload of Charles Samuels.
Mr. Walkef further indicated that due to the defendant's com-
plete lack of cooperation, he would not recommend probation a
second time.

Charles Samuels was contacted and he advised that
due to the instant offense, he has instituted revocation pro-
ceedings against the defendant and advised that he recommended
the original charge be designated a Misdemeanor, with the de-
fendant being sentenced to one year in the Maricopa County
Jail. He stated that in his’ professional opinion, he did not
feel the defendant deserves a second chance with probation,
due to the fact that the instant offense was committed approx-
imately sixty days after the defendant had been placed on pro-
bation and, further, the fact that the Robbery had required
an enormous amount of planning, indicating that the defendant
completely ignored any instructions given by the Court or the
probation department,

The defendant's attorney, Michael Dann, was con-
tacted and he advised he believes his client can be success-
ful on probation because Mr. Ross now realizes he cannot con-
tinue his past behavior and has sought psychiatric help on

’

his own.

PAGE 4
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RICK ALAN ROSS L CAUSE NO. 89445
Defendant

PRIOR RECORD:

The defendant did not indicate that he had a
juvenile record and there is no evilocnce to the contrary.

The def;ndant's adult arrest record indicates
that in December of 1974, he was arrested for Attempted Bur-
glary, for which ﬁe was placed on probation for a period of
one year after the charge was amended to Conspiracy, Second
Degree, Open-End. Court records indicate that on April 3,
1975, the defendant was placed on probation for a period of
one year with added terms of $250.00 fine and ten days in the
Maricopa County Jail.. The probation department file indi-
cates that both of these special conditions were later sus-
pended by Division 20. At this time, the disposition hearing
for revocation is set for February ll, 1976 in Division 20.

+

SOCIAL HISTORY:

Mr. Ross advised that he is the oldest of three
children adopted by Paul and Ethel Ross in Cleveland, Ohio.
He advised that his famil} is of the Jewish faith and that
they have adhered strictly to that faith through the years.
He stated that his mother is extremely active in the Phoenix
Jewish Community Center and that his father is the owner .£
Ross Plumbing Company. Mr. Ross indicated that the family
has lived in Phoenix approximately nineteen years. The de-
fendant indicated that he and his younger siblings have all
experienced personality and behavicral problems, and the de-
fendant attributed this to the fact that his father tends to
be passive while his mother is protective and aggressive.
One of the attached child study reports on Mr. Ross indicates
that his father "worked a great deal and usually felt quite

tired and did not want to be bothered with the children®; in

PAGE 5




RICK ALAN ROSS
vefendant
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CAUSE “NO. 89445

SOCIAL HISTORY: (Cont'd)

addition, "it was apparent that Mrs. Ross was the rejecting
kind of mother who bends over backwards to do things for her

kids when she feels angry at them.”

EDUCATION:

Mr. Ross stated that he attended his freshman
and sophomore years at West High School, his junior year at
Camden Military Academy, and graduated from North High School
in the Phoenix area. The attached reports indicate that the
defendant experienced problems thtOuéhout hié‘elementary
school years in the form of hyperactive behavior and atten-

tion span.

MARITAL HISTORY:

Mr. Ross advised that he has never been married.

e o

stated that his parents and he have since effected a recon-
ciliation and can accept each other's life styles with more

eage at present.

PAGE 6
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RICK ALAN ROSS ' CAUSE NO. 89445
Defendant

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY:

In 1971, the defendant advised that he was em-
ployed by Aetna Finaunce as a collection agent and advised that
this job lasted approximately one year when he resigned for a
better position with another finance company. He stated this
secorid job was terminated "due to a personality confiict with
the new manager approximately one year later.” In 1973, he
related being employed by Valley National Bank until October
of 1974, when he stated he resigned his position of loan offi-
cer to return to the Phoenix area. He advised that he was
wbrking in Bullhead City, Arizona, and felt that he was not
achieving success at the rate which he wished. After return-
ing to Phoenix, he stated he was employed by America-~ Credit
Bureau as a collection agent but related that he was fired
three months later due to excessive absence and illness. }n
September of 1975, he statcd that he found employment with a
cousin who is owner of an auto salvage company. He advised
that he is currently a sales representative for that company
and is earning approximately $675.00 per month. The writer
has the defense attorney's assurance that the defendant's ar-
rest record will present no problems with the family business
and that the defendant can maintain full-time employment with

that company.

HEALTH FACTORS:

As a child, the defendant advised that he was
diagnosed as a hyperkinetic child and explained that this is
a nervous disorder. He stated that he was on medication for
this, and this is verified by the attached medical reports.
He denied having any serious accidents or illnesses with the

exception of a nervous collapse, dhich he advised he suffered

PAGE 7
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HEALTH FACTORS: (Cont'd)

while incarcerated in Maricopa County Jail on the instant of-
fense. Mr. Ross indicated that he is ~arrently seeking help

through the Fillmore Mental Clinic.

ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE:

The defendant denied any alcohol or drug abuse

and there is no evidence to the contrary.

COLLATERAL COMMENTS:

Mr. Ross stated that he feels Le has done every-
thing he can to rectify his past action. He stated that he
served approximately six weeks in jail during his second ar-
rest and stated that "in this time, I decided that I must re-
main free. I have no intention of ever performing any 4ct
which will incarcerate me again."” He stated that jail was ex-
tremely abhorrent to him and advised that he could not survive
in that kind of atmosphere. He added that "I feel no purpose
would be served by further confinement.”™ He explained that
he intends to continue working full time and added that he now
has the support of his family, which he did not have before,
and believes he now takes probation more seriously. He adde« .
that in his opinion, he felt that had he received incarcera-
tion for the first offense, he would have been motivated fé
be more successful during his term of probation. He advised
that he is not a criminal and described a criminal as "someone

who looks at crime as a livelihood; I used it as an escape."

DISCUSSION AND EVALUATION:

Before the Court is a twenty-three year old

Caucasian male charged with Conspiracy, Secnnd Degree, Open-End.

PAGE 8
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Defendant

DISCUSSION AND EVALUATION: (Cont'd)

Records indicate that the defendant's home life was not as
stable as it might have been and that anparently problems at

home led the defendant to hyperactivity during his school

years. The defendant indicated that at least one other child
in the family is experiencing similar problems to his own.

Mr. Ross explained that while he did not have his parents'
support for a time due to his different life style, he feels
he does now have his parents' support. He states that he does
not believe himself to be a criminal and tﬁat while he did not
adhere to conditions of probation initially, he believes he
can now do so. He explained that he feels he cannot survive
in a jail or prison due to his nervous disorder and advised
that he feels he can be of more benefit to the community if
he is not incarceratced. Further, he indicates that he nqw
has steady employment in a job that he feels that he will en-
joy and has advancement possibilities.

From departmental records and the defendant's
statement, it would appear that Mr. Ross never removed himself
from illegal activities or companicns that were involved in
illegal activities. The writer feels very strongly that pro-
bation is a privilege and not a right, and it is fel® that the
defendant has been given adequate opportunity for success. He
did not cooperate with his first probation officer at all and
then became angry when the officer followed Lis responsibili-
ties. The second probation officer indicated that he has
spoken at some length with Mr. Ross and discovered that an
enormous amount of planning went into setting up the Robbery,
both on the part of Mr. Ross and Mr. Schroeder, these pre-

planned, premeditated activities occurring within the sixty

’
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RICK ALAMN ROSS : CAUSE NO. 89445
Cefendant

DISCUSSION AND EVALUATION: (Cont'd)

day period of probation, Mr. Ross explainad at some length
that ne felt he was not an appropriate candidate for proba-
tion, partially due to his mental status. The writer cannot
see why it would be more difficult for Mr. Ross than for many
other clients to be incarcerated, and it is felt that prob-
ably no one enjoys being locted up. After considering the
information gained from the police department, the defense
and the defendant, as well as two probation officers, this
Writer cannot justify a recormmendation of probation in this

case. o

RECOMMENDATION:

It is respectfully recommended that the defend-
ant be sentenced to serve a maximum term in the Arizona State

Prison.

RESTITUTION/REIMBURSEMENT:

Neither restitution nor reimbursement is appli-

cable in this case.

Respectfully submitted,

H., C. DUFFIE
Chief Adult Prgbati Officer

. 4
A riaf Pl g s
Gael Neugebauer v
Approved: Deputy Adult Probation Officer

GN:mls
January 14, 1976
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THE STATE OF ARIZONA 2 * CAUSE NO. CR 89445
Plaintiff
HONORABLE DAVID J. PERRY
vs.
CRIMINAL DIVISION 27-J
RICKY ALL =N ROSS
De fendant —\\_;j SUPERIOR COURT

HEARING DATE: APRIL 1, 1976

- (=)
SUPPLEMENTAL REPOQRT =

report, Mr. Ross requested an appointment with the investigaES;
at the Probation Department. Mr. Ross spoke for approximatelgj
one hour and it was apparent he was concerned about the
pending disposition of the instant offense. His primary

points of concern were that the writer had not properly

.,

considered the many achievements accomplished by the defendant

since his last arrest and the fact that he was greatly misled

by his defense counsel on the original charge (not present

counsel), thus prohibiting him from properly cooperatind'with

the Probation Department. He spoke at length of his sincerity

at present, his motivation to cooperate, his remorse for

his actions. )
» Deputy Adult Probation Officer Elizabeth Barkley,

who prepared the original presentence report, whose office is

directly across the hall from the undersigned, overheard

Mr. Ross's comments. She later informed the writer that

Mr. Ross had made the same claims previously. As a result,

2 g~ - meeting was set up for January 29, 1976 at the

probation department with Mrs. Barkley, Mr. Walker, the

defendant's field officer, and the writer. (Mr. Samuels,

the second field officer, was not present due to an unawoidable

court appearance). As it was discovered Mr. Ross had given

each officer a similar statement, he was confronted with

the fact that his veracity was seriously doubted.

RECEIVES
DAVID J. SRAY

PAGE 1 WAR 21978
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RICKY ALLEN ROSS CAUSE NO. CR 89445
Defendant

The defendant explained that he did not feel concerned

with regard to his first criminal involvement with the

v

judicial system buat is now sincere and added we would
pe forced to rely on his present performance for proof.
Af+ter considering the above information, the

writer wishes not to amend the original recommendation.

Respectfully submitted,

H. C. Duffie, Chief
Adult Probation Officer

R ~
By: A
Cael ¥eugebauer,(Deputy
Adult Yrobation Officer

\

Approved:

- -/

S ‘..-:v/ / \ a—r(‘q’_b

#Wchael Hodge, Supervisor

GN:jm
March 24, 1976

I have reviewed and
considered the
Probation Officer's Report.

Grbowed LZt; 5

Judge //

Y [a.«.:( 39,(97¢
Date .

e af""" 1, 1776¢
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March 25, 1976

This is a report on Ricky Ross, 23-year-old white single male sales repre-
sentative, who was scen fur the first time on 12-10-75 at Fillmore Mental
Health Service, referred by Joy Carter of Catholic Social Service. The
patient sought help because of anxiety, depression ari sexual problems.

He wanted to be able to understand hinself better.

He vas scen at Fillmore 13 sessions, once 4 week, cach lasting for fifty
minutes. Whea I first saw hinm he was fcel ing anxious, nervous, depressed
and complaining of difficulty sleeping. Hle ascribed such feelings as
stemming from his involvements in several thefts and burglaries as a result
of which he had been ia jail two times, He expressed deep comcern that
this would create a bad reputation for his future and especially for this
reason stated that he wants to change his life style.

N

Ricky indicated that the reasons why he got involved with criminal activi-
ties was that he had had several jobs and although he enjoyed workirg in
banks and collection agencies the low salary and slow promotion ar cthe
accunulation of unpaid bills pressured him to buy and use stolen credit
cards and later on to steal furniture and appliances at nmodel homes. He
was later on approached by a jeweler friend who offered him partnerskip

in an inside job diamond robbery which lead to his second arrest and
imprisonaent.

It had been known that Ricky Ross had been scen by several psychiatrists

and counselors when 6 to 14 years old. He wvas disgnosed as a hyperkinetic
child which later on lead to general behavioral problens in school being
negativistic, manipulative, and argumentative. 1 saw Ricky as an arvogant,
self-contered individual with some hostile tendencies. He vas oriented in
all dinensions and had some tendencies to be overproductive fn his speech,

and to sanifest some degree of circunstantiality fc his thinking. He had

aa {nclination to monopolize the session and had a problem listening. lNe
becomss evasive and defensive vhen his inner feellngs are exposed or slighted.
Nis associstions wvere mot loose. HKis thought processes are not {isorganiszed.
e hes ne disturbence of perception, no paranoid {deations, ideas of refer-
eace ot léuas of inlluence. uls affect vas appropriste to his epekan thoughts.
There was ne inpeirseat of memocy ané his fund of (nfermation was comsistent
with his oducstion, There vas 80 evidesce of peychouis sesm ta hia,



RE: RICKY ROSS
Page 2
March 25, 1976

~J
~R
‘ Y\o\
o
Q@
o
“c
—
~>
I3y

It is my opinion that Ricky has a personality disturbance which started even
as a child. He had emotional maladjustment, never learned usual lines of
conduct for socializing as a result of which as a child he had outbursts of
rage, was demanding, a manipulative and argumentative child with no friends
and was defiant. He does not seem to profit from his past experiences and
cannot realize that what he does is socially unacceptable and dangerous and
does not realize that he has a responsibility to society to control his
behavior. He has had expressed guilt feelings for what he has done the first
time but rcpeated what he had done despite the fact he had been reprimanded
and punished for it. He was unable to control his impulses regardless of

the punishments. Ricky seems to demand immediate and instant gratification of
his desires and needs with no feelings for the interests of others with whom
he had some emotional attachments. He does not seem to identify himself with
society and its laws, and believes that punishments are an injustice. He has
a tendency to extegnalize responsibility, though he is gradually assuming
responsibilities now. He has problems learning because of his inability to
listen,

1 see Ricki as an individual who has sociopathic 1nc11mcions.—

and as a person with learning disabilicy.

Recommendation is strict probation with specific limitations and intensive
guidance or psychotherapy. He will not benefit from any form of incarceration.

Prognosis is fair to guarded.

ﬂm ca’a no E Jonls/H.D.

DS:jw DOMICIANO E. SANTOS{ M.D.
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IN THE SUPSRIOR COURT ' TR -
e ENTR Y
of \ [XRYY S )
NARICOPA COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA N St o )
Ding x
— 20=3 4-2-76 _HON. pAVID J. PEREY WILSON D PALMER  ceen
—_._..— o AR ] PO PN M:‘_e_s——e:ilt_z- Caonty
CR 89445 STATE OF ARIZCNA County Attorney = Schumacher
Related v APO
Case: -
RICKY ALLAN ROSS shexiffle-Office
CR al
/ B. Michael Dann
SENTENCING
The Stateeis represented by Palmer Schumacher.
The Defendant is present with counsel B, Michael Dann.
Court Reporter Melvyn Levin is present.
Mr. Ross, yoo»m-eherged-by-ﬁte-seaee-ei-htim-ﬁﬁ

m. 31‘

you appeared before the court on Nov. 26, 1975 and entered a plea of gquilty to the
charge of Conspiracy, 2nd Degree.

Defendant is asked if he has anything to say or legal cause to show

why sentence should not now be pronounced.

No legal cause 2ppcaring and based on the determinatio of cuilt,
IT IS THE JUDGMENT OF THIS COURT that the defendant is guilty of

Conspiracy, 2nd Degree, to Commit Grand Theft, a felony, in vi 1tion of A.R.S.
13-331(B), committed July 23, 1975.

IT 1S ORDERED suspending imposition of sentence for a period of { 4 )years

from this date and placing defendant on probation under the supervision of the Aduvl
Prebation Department of this court in accordance with the formal, written Judgment
and Order Suspending Sentcnce and Imposing Terms of Frobation signed hcrewith.

rine imposed - $1000. plus $100. surchar ge, total $1100. payable by
1977.

IT I8 ORDERED defendant shall report to the Adult Prubation Departmsnt

no later than 3130 p.m. this dats.

A

' The court advises the defendant concerning rights of appeal and writom
3 -| motice of thoss rights is handed to him.

P9
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POWERS, EMRCNREICH.
BovurcuL & KURN
ATTORNCYS AT LAW
aul1E RO, SPLUNIYY BAUILDING
24%4 NORTI{ CONTRaL AVINUR
PIHOENIX, APIZONA B30D4
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Aunvrneys fur Plaintifef
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA 3 < ';'
w g
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MARICOPA 4
JACK GRODZINSKY, a married ) =C_. *;
man, ) ’ T N 9 -
) , ‘Ic ;(’q - \:-g ;
Plaintif€, ) No. o0
)
vs. ) COMPLAINT
)
RICK ROSS, a single man, } {Contract) .
)
Defendant. ) 2519 —
)

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, JACK GRODZINSKY, hereinafter
referred to ac "PlaintiCf", unless othcrwise specifically desig-
nated hercin, by and through his attorneys, POWERS, EHRENREICH,
BOUTELL & KURN, and for his Complaint against the Defendant, RICK
ROSS, hercinafter referred to as "Defendant™ unless specifically
designated otherwise herein, states and alleges as follows:

COUNT ONE
I.

That Plaintiff is a resident of the County of Maricopa,
State of Arizona, and has been so domiciled at all timds relevant
herein. f

II.

That Defendant is a vesident of thc County of Maricopa,

State of Arizona.
IIX.

That all the cvents and tramsactions hcvein took place

in the County of Maricopa, State of Arizona.

(‘:3‘*5557()"
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Iv.
That on or about the 26uh day of March, 1978,
Plaintiff and Defendant cntered into an "Employment Agreement.”
A true copy of said Agreement is attached hercto as Fxhibit "A®
and by reference ls incorporated hereln.
V.

That pursuant to said Agreement, Plaintiff loaned to
pDefendant the sum of $2,500.00 so that pursuant to the terms of
said Aqreement, Defendant could purchase ond repair an automobile
described in said Agreement.

VI.

That as of the termination of said Agrcement, Defendant
had not repaid, as required by the Agreement, the $2,500.00 prin~
cipal amount plus the agrcecd-upon intcrest at the rate of 10% per
annum Crom the date of the execution of the Agreement.

VII.

That demand has been made upon Ross for the payment of
said principal and interost but Defendant fails, vrefuses and
declines to pay such amounts dvuc.

VIIX.

That in addition to said principal and interest which is
currently due, Plaintiff is cntitled to his reasonable attorneys
fees pursdhﬁéhﬁb A.R.S. §12-341.01s that such reasonable attor-
neys fees are ln an amount not less thon $1,000.00.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays Judgment against Dcfeddant. g
RICK ROSS as follows:

1. For the principal sum of $2,500.00.

2. For interest on said principal sum of 52,500.00 at

tha rate of ten parcent (108) per annum from the date of the exe-

cution of sald Agreement attached as Exhibit "A", until paid.
3., For Plaintiff's reasonable attorneys lees incurfgg

as a result of having to bring this action in an a.ount not less
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than $1,000.00.

4. Por Plaintiff's taxable Court costs hexcin.

5. Por such other and further velicf as decmed proper
by the Court.

COUNT TWO
I.

Plaintiff vealleges as if set forth in Cull herelin all
the allegations and statements contalned in Count One of
Plaintiff's Complaint.

IT.

That on or about the 8th day of February, 1978,
Plaintiff and Defendant entered into an “"Employment Agreement”.

A true copy of said Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit "B-°
and by rcference is incorporated herein.
111,

That pursuant to said Agreement, Plaintif€ loaned to
Defendant the asum of $3,400.00 so that pursuant to the terms of
said Agreement, Defendant could purchase and repair an automobile
described in said Agreement.

Iv.

That as of the termination of said Agreement, Defendant
had not repaid, as required by the Agreemecnt, the $3,400.00 prin-
cipal amount plus the agrced-upon interest at the rate of 10% per
annum from the date of the execution of the Agrecement.

V. ,

That demand has bcen made upon Ross for the paymentuofxﬁ
said principal and interest but Defendant fails, rcfuses and’
declines to pay such amounts due.

VI.
That in addition to said principal and invevest which is

currently due, Plaintiff is cntitled to his reasuna.ie attorneys




19
20
2l
22

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
a1
32

79 0060 ;

H

fces pursuant to A.R.S. 12~341.01; that such reasonable attor-
ncys fees are in an amount not less than $1,000.00.

WHRREFORE, Plaintiff prays Judgment against Defendant
RICK ROSS as [ollows:

1. For the principal sum of $3,400.00.

2. For interest on said principal sum of $3,400.00 at
the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum from the date of the exe-
cution of said Agreement as Exhibit "B until paid.

3. For Plaintiff's reasonable attorneys fees incurred
ar a result of having to bring this action {n an amount not less
than $1,000.00.

4. For Plaintiff's taxable Court costs hercin.

5. For such other and further rclief as dcemed proper by
the Court.

DATED this :225 day of May, 1979.

POWERS, EHRENREICH, ROUTELL & KURN

oy )?mew

J,~Scott Burns
North Central Avenue, Suitc 800
PYoenix, Arizona 85004

Attorneys for Plaintitf

STATE OF ARIZONA )
) ss.
County of Maricopa )

JACK GRODZINSKY, being first duly sworn upon his oath,
deposes and says:

Tthat he ia the Plaintiff in the foregoing Complaint:
that he is entitled to make this verification: that he has read
the foregoing and knows the contents thercof; that the same is
true of his own pcrsonal knowledge, oxcept as to those matters
2lleged upon information and belief, and as to those matters he
believes them to be true.

? SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN/to before me, a notary public, this
22 day j

of May, 1979.
Whiee2'

‘Ngtary Public
My commission expires:

J=C-17%7

-4~
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EMPLOYBENT ACGREEEENT

'J‘IIJ:-‘./;I\(‘.RRI-:.'- BNT 15 madg and entered into lzhi«:.-ﬁé‘/f/f‘d.\}l of
' (LT /F ‘MJ19£H_”, by and belween (/AL L

I ENE EAN Y L adinalter calied Ownyy, amf RICK oS, dba
WK LNVESTHRYTS Nereinafloer calloed Ross. o

-~
—
2
~
~—y
I
-

WS PAYSS

1)  Owner wishen Lo have Ross purshase, vepair and sell a motorg
vihiele on his behaelf.

2)  Owner shall provide Rossg wilh the woney neoeessary Lo Inrehane
A motor vehicle and to pay for its eomplete vepaiv and vehabi lilation.

1) Ross uhall purchase, repair and nell said motor vehicle, on
Owner's bohalf, cither himself or through others.

In considoration of the mutual promine: snel forth herein Ownor
and Ross agree as follows:

1) ‘the term of this Agreement uhullz)c cyr a poeri beg innineg
with the cxoculion hereof and ending on l;hc.%é)_"‘d-.\y of 7 L_¢-)':__Q__ ’

197.% . - (

2) Owannr #hall provide Rous with the sum of §

and Ross shall purchase the following moter vehicle for and in‘the

name of Ownoer.
72 Dak

Make and Year: o/ Qe [ .'.\.._/2(.5{./\:,./ * N\
Model and Colex: I AR/l ) 1,j{§=])’
vehiele TD Number:, 7 ° AR i
Lieonsae Number: T crmmm

Cr i e —— sww W @ e s e

for s mcmms rmmm .S m RS EmSEA B W O ru

3) owner shall provide Rosg with a sum not to exceed $_—=-:2;f%'_d/0(>
and Ross, cither porsonally or through his agents, cmployecs or subcon-
tracltors, sha)ll completaly repair, rehabilitate and sell the motorn

vohiele rvafarred to in Paragraph 1 above.

4) Owner shall be entit ?d to the return and Ross shall veturn O
Owncr the sum of S:’QU.{Q’_ﬁ(" .. __or the amount cdalled for in Para-
graph & of this Agrcement whichever sum i greater.

5) At such time as Ross has completed the purchase and repair
of the wotor vehicle referred Lo in Paragraph 2 above, and has sold ‘aaid
motor vehicle for Owner, Ross shall pay Lo Owncr the two {\1}0\!{!}!;58 pdvangdd

0L G '

to Roas ugdcr paragraphs 2 and 3 above, totalling § P L SR Y
plus _/_’_m_% interest  therccon in the amount of § ,,.—.—.174..1’.’.-.-‘1.,6 (e
which @quais the total rcturn to Owner of S_._‘,...Q FISCIC

6) Owner and Ross intend that the relationship botwoen thom
exeated Ly thic Agreeoment is that-of cmploycer and independent contractox.
No agent, omployee, Or scrvant of Rocs =hall be or shall be daaned Lo
be the cmployce, agent or scexvant of Ownar, and vigee verza. Owner ie
jnterasted only in the results obtained by Ross: the manner and means
of conducting the work are to-be under the sole contyol ar? Jirectisn og
LKosc. rurther, Ross shall be solely and entirely responsiby  for His aets

~

EXHIBIT “A"
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and for the acts of hin ayonts, employees, workmen and subcontractors
during the performance of this Agreement, and Ross warrants that all
such persons shall be competent and qualified.

7) ‘The work under Lhis Agreement shall be performed centixeoly
al: the risk and responsibility of Owner, however, Rous ehall for the
duration of Lhis Agrcoment, carry public liabilitvy and Qamage insurance
1 an amount sufficient Lo protect both Owner and Rosns.

8) AL all times Auring this Agrcement, title and xoqistrntion of
{he motor vehicle referred to in Parxagraph 2 above shall be held in the
n.unes of Owner. '

9) Tima iz of the ctsence of this Agrecment. .

10) ‘'this Agrvecemnnt shall inure and be pinding upon the heirxs,
sucensnors, asuigns, and.personal representatives of Ross and Owner.

21)  Readings and captions of scctions arc for convenience and
roforence only and in no way dofine, limit ox deseribe the scope
or intent of this Agreement or the provisions of suuh scctions.

12) This Agreement shall be construed undex the laws of the State
of Arizona.

TN WICTNESS WIEREOF, the parties hexato have exccuted this Agree-
ment on the day and yecar first above written. “:>

i

RICK/ROSE, dba RAR

c)%;’/é /r///l////gu itrf

-
INVESTMENTS, L1D.

Ross

7204

Owaer
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HMPLOVMENT  AGRERNERT

PTHLLMAGREEMENT 6 m‘??‘""d entered into thiu

‘ r by anil Lolwaeoen
(-5/36 Z I~ ', hereinafLer called Owner,
AR TRVES THENTS '/I'l).‘, Bereinallor en) Yoed Ros,

VECUPATS ¢

1) oOuner winhen Lo have Rows parchasa, vepair and sell a motorn
vobicle on hig behal .

2) Ownaer shall provide Rous with the money ncca:nsary to purchase
sadd mwotor vehiele and to pay for its complelbe raopair and rchabiditation.

3)  loss shall purchase, repairv and szell said wmotos vchicle, on
Owner s hehal f, cither himself or thuough others.

in consideration of the matual promises set forth herxein Ownerx
and Rous agqroee ag follown:

1) The term of thin Agrcoment nhall )?R‘r a poriofd MHegipning
with i execut ion haercof and ending on the lay of /
1o ,”b- 0, il 4 //? ¥ ’

2)  Owner chall provide Rors with the um of § .
and Rens shall pmvh\ @ the "nnowing motor wvohicle for And in the

name 0L Ownax.
Make and Yoarx: 7__’7_ _ ) { -___ )é‘ /__ _
Model and Cra!or-_ ‘ (QT [

vabicle 113 Number:
Iicense Nuwber: e e e e e —v——

3) Owner shall provide Ross with a sum not Lo exceaed S?JOIJ\i_
and Kosz, either perszonally or through his agents, comployoes o1 subgon—
tractors, shall complately repair, rehabilitate and zell the motor
vehicle referrad Lo in Paragraph 1 above.

4) Owncr shall Dbe entxt cd to the roturn ad Ross shall return to
Owner the sum of § 9__d_ _._._“__-._ or the nmount called for in Pora-

graph 5 of this l\gru*m(‘nl. whichaver sum is greatov.

) At such time as Ross has complated the purchase and ropair
of the motor vohicle referred to in Paragraph 2 above, and has sold naid
motor vehicle for Ownar, Ross shall pay to Owner the Lwo .mm\nl," advanced
{o Noss ynder Poavagraphs 2 and 3 nbove, totalling § ._54 0 ,0b e
plus 8 2 intcrest  thereon in the amount or s o, dd':____.__-“
which equalis the tolal rcturn to Owner of § C/O Q___ . L

¢) Owncr and Ross intend that the relationship betweaen then
created by thin I\gxcomonl i that-of cmployer and independent contractor.
No agent, omployece, or servant of Ross =hall be ox =hall be Aeomed €O
bcz the employen, agent ox sexvant of Owner, and vico versa. Qwner is
jpteraested only sn the results obtained by Ross; the manner and medans
of vonducting the work are to-be under the sole control and direction of
rosz. Further, Ross shallbe solely and entirely responsible for his acts

~

EXHIBIT "B"



and tor the acln of hin agontys, caployces, workwen and subeontractors
during the e Cormance of this Agrecment, aml RosS warrant g Lhat a1l
sueh porsons shall be competent and qualiticd,

‘1) The work under this Agrecment Sha 1l by penformed anlivaly
at the rink and xesponsibility of Owner, however, Rosg chall for the
Juration of Ihis Agreemenk, cirry public liability and damago insurance
i oan awount sulfficient. to protect both Owner and Rouo,

8) AL all times Auring this Agrecuent, Citbe ol vogistypation of
Uhee motor vehiele reforred to dn Parageaph 2 above 3holl bhe held dn the
totee O F Quner,

9)  Time i of the cuuence of this Apraement.

10)  "his Agreement shall inure and he binding upon the heirs,
mecennors, ausigng, and.poertonal representalives ol Noss and Owner.,

11)  leadings and captions of sections ave for convenience and
yolerence only and in nv way define, limit or descrile the scope
or inrent of this Agreanent or the provisions of such sections.

12) Phia Agreomant shall be conslrund ander the laws of the State
afl Arizona.

IN WITNESS WHERBOF, the partics hercto have oxccuted this Agroea-
ment on the day and year first above written,

e -,
— .,

.‘-/'3%'

4’.:"
INVETRENTS, Lth.

\]

WEeRY ROBS, "dlt TR
Rons

—27 / / (lﬂner



DR DistesUTION

R M
L BN P I
4 rQk ety
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT [t 1o viva ot
RY DV EES
Of HIMA!:()‘-
MARICOPA COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA I NTLNGING
-840 February_27, 1981 ‘_”ﬂﬂ_@%}%ﬁﬁ%&a_._._. _ WILSOND PALMER et
AETTT RSN et R g TS TR AR S . L —— 8 = "-7-"-':-”.'17‘==.'"‘?J :"ﬂl-me#eg
C 389503 | Jack Grodzinsky . J. Scott Burms
vs
Ricky Alan Ross Ronald B. Fineberg
L ]

ORDERED approving formal written Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law;

ORDERED entering judgment in favor of Jack Grodzinsky

and against Ricky Allen Ross for the principal sum of $6,490, togethe:
with plaintiff's court costs in the sum of $226.65, togcther with
plaintiff's reasonable attorney's fees in the .sum of $1,750. The
total judgment of the foregoing in the sum of $8.466.65 shall bear
interest at the rate of ten percent per annum from the date hereof

until paid, all in accordance with formal written order signed.

by the court this date.

CLERK 01 e ¢oenne

MALL DISiRILU i: 3 L ENGTR:
Recewved: MAR 2 198)

vardar )

February 27, 1981 Processed: MAR 8 1997 * —— -



ARIZON A SUPERIOR COURE, County ol Mo o

. f ‘,’,‘ ) !v‘; '-/
DAVID KA ol EMMA KA, huashand K 9 /‘(' A .
atnl wile, o X

Phaintittn,

Vi
LEE YRS N
CIVIL, ACTION NO. G370 %

FLey Ronss, o sinale man,

Detomedant o

SUNIMONS

CEEE S TAEE OF ARIZONN TO THE DEFENDANTS: RICY

R

e

YOU NRE TEREBY SUNINTONED s vequined toappeay aud delend, within the time applicahle,
et action wm o oot T aerved seithiin: Mizenn, vonr shall appear aned detend withn 20 davs alter
the seraee o the Smmmmeand Complamt apun congevelosmne of thee day of setviee 1 serverd ant ol the
Skade ol Nozange ) whether Iy el NEANTE RN Ia H'p'_i\h'u'l[ ar e tified Hl.lil, o hy |||||»|!‘1';U|nn vou shall
appean and delend witlion 30 davoatter the werviee al the Simmeans and Complinnt apeon von is complete,
evelinnve of the dan of serviee Where process is sevved upon the Xrzong Diteetin ol Insiranes as an
insurer s attorney looveceive seaviee of legal process st ol e as st e esneer Wl oot bes ve.
auited taappea mswer or plead antib evpivation: of 10 davs after date of suels serviee apon the Direetor,
Nevview by aevisteved o certilied madl withont the State ol Arizomis conplete 30 divs after the date of
tlinee 1he receipl and allidavit of seeviee with Hae Caonrt, Serviee Ty poablication is |'|:lll|!|-'l('$ll)tl;l)‘\ alter
the date ol Tist pablication. Diceet service is complete when nuede, Serviee opon the Arizoun Motor Vie-
il Superintendent is complete 30 davs alter filing the Mlidavite of Complianee and retum receipt or
Oflicer's Wl RO 80 ARS S8 20-232 0 28502, 28-503,

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFHD that in case of vomre Lailore toappear sond delensd within the tinne
apphealdee pebenent T alelanlt mew be rendesed aainst vor for the veliet denimded o the Complaint,

YOU ARE CNTCTTONED thit in oriler 1o Hppear and diteaed . o st Bile e Answer o e
v o s el witls the Cloak o this Coant, aceompamed by the necessay Filingy dee, withon the

e eepan o e vena e tenprved Lo serve o Copy ol any \nsaweer o sesponse tpon the Phavmtit Iy tnrpes
O o VRS S RGP D,

P v e sabilieas of plaintills attornesy is. David Bo Guslalsen
122% N. Central,
Sutte 1108
Phacenix, Arisoanag BH00



Y f1ey

z:upmuo. LA ®

vuurt of the State of Arizona in ond for the County of Maricopa

S Numboer: ©395343

0 o S

DAVID KATZ and EMMA KATZ, huaband and wife
va.
RICK ROSS, a ainglo man

)

)

) of Procosa by u
) Privato Parcaon
)
)
)
]

Ce e e s . e 0 e -

tare o) Arizona )

vennty ol Marlcopa) so:

Tho Affiant, boing aworn, statos: T on fully
qualified to acrven procons in thip cauas, havinn
boon no appointed by thn Court; that {n)hn

rocoived tho following judicial dozumenta Crow

the following attornoy!(s) in tho follaving warn »y

Summon: and Complaint
Soptombor 19, 1979
llruvo Domaroe

Docur s nta racaisny:
At anepieasd
Macoivaag Pren

Tt 1 peeaonally sorvod the same on those named horaaienr .

rlace aed 1n the mannar (ndicated and/or pursuant to Ntule 1.

e

the, tinw,
AR5,

abade with a porsen of suiteble age and Aiscrction who re-ldea =haroin a:
Lhe defandant(n) vaual place of abodo.

‘1 the named dolandant(s) wan/waro named am a partnox in a partneraship

ha/ahe/they was/were served both individually and no a partner in saild
sartnership.

fh\h it the dofondnnh(s) B0 namod wau/waro a corporution, that tho parsen
v ved an yeated bolow in an officar, gonoral managing aceni, divector or
rtatutory agont of aald corporation(u).

UPON: RICK ROSS, in person, by leaving one copy with him whileo at
1123 East Maxyland, #8, Pllocnix, Arizona on Octobor 16, 1979 at the
hour of 9:50 p.m. of said day.

Cauc male, 5'10", brown halr, moustacho, becard, slim

That servica in cach inatancc.consnistod of leaving with the oneiyv )
1amed a true copy (5) of tho above deacribed dudicial gocwezmnt(s).

2~ A

Danicl Ronnie

Ot o4 o A oy o W .

SUBSCRIBED AND SUOIN. %N DNLIJESE 8. Cu

~—ee=auDctobpx_18._1979__

R =n0ay .
Elke m. Shenborger

- -

Novembeor 13,1982

e oy - - - -

MY COMMISSIGN RUIMIRES

NOTARY PUBLIC

- v o

Affidavit of Soaev/

. (39 BT
o Civil Proceduro, copy(s) wan/wers left at tha daferdait(6) usual placa .

1 4.50 Soxrvice
8 6,00 Milen MICHABL J. PFLENINC
Milan : PRIVATE PROCESS SERVICE
Milos P. O. ROX 30862
2.00 Notary I'eo PHOENIX, ARIZON;. 85030
& Sux Chargo 25)-1155

Foan Paid

$12.50 Total

——t
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.'\Ilullln'f,\ (I Flavind a1 i
FHCTHHE BUPERERTOR COURE OF P TOPATE OF AT ZONA
THOAND FORCPHE COUNTY O MARTCOPA
DAV AT cnind EMMA FAY, )
Nshand aned wi te, ) >
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Plaintayte, ) N, ¢ iy
)
v )
) FHIET AMENRDED COMITLATNT
I Reess, o iwgle aun, )
) (Comntb et
Dorfonddant, )
)
Plant b, DAVIED AT and KMHMA BATZ, Tog Hhed e eause
b tiem ot thie Deteasdlan b, RECE RO, ol Teaqes s 1ol Towss
|
Floalt ot b b Fimes velovant hiertedin DAVID KATZ and EMMA
KAES, Toverinal boor velenaed o o e Blaint thba, weres hashiand andd
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z= 2rs

=

| Desbrslanl T hes sume ol 5 0,000.00 s Phes T o o varsshiyesy Y chirek

~

Al within two months sudetegquent Lo T SREBE day ol Januwary, 1977,
] Plhaotatol s Toamed bo the Delendant Lhe dum ol 52, 5%00,00 in eash.,
v

'| oo about the duth day ol April, 1978, tho Delemdant

3} 'i teperid Hhee mam ol 51, 000000 g part tal paymant of his indebtodne:s:s

/ Loy bl Byt i ).,

R Y

" Oy abiout the 200h o day ol Aprid, 1979, thee betendant
10 Perpened P i ol 550,00 g ot Payment ol his indeht edoegses
”!; Lov i P harnt iy,

12 ‘ Vi

13 I’ The Braintitba have demanded pepayment ot (e remaining
11

poinerpad toan b baree o gy, O 00, st inberesit, and L

Ih l Debendaat Dot bk vk c o rasd o mnkae Vierpaymentt o demandedd by

16 ¢ tlas lavnt g,

|
U Vi
18 I Thee Deterdant owes the PTaintil s the cam ol s, 800,

gk . . ) , .

19 [ bos intervest, amd o saeh muw is jund Ly due, owing, and anpaid by
20 Lhe Dot endant
ra Vil
11Ys i
/); Pt ovent thiat Dhiis ot vony §e KT AT T D A SR R TTN  ET
2 . , , .

|.||a~ vkl b bo verave Tl pesiomady e b b ey st tees o e
24 i Proviecul o ol this get com i saant, s AL Y ool o l-'-l.‘i«‘l‘l'b'-
h Cabile b borneys ' L Lo frrveiecut bon ol this action i S0, 00,00,
)h; WHISREFORE, 1 Eaint i1 poray Ul Court tor aadagment e i nesg.
2 l thee Doeslomdomnt, o 1] Tawss s
“R ' [ Foor damanges o Ll aogoanl, o) S, 400,00, Pl satorest
Yatl [

Pl thee vate o 0% pee aunum on Lhe original boan bnnbanees wee i

t
404 Phe Jieepment s entoerod:
4 E Ao Fer Entevest oo Ul gadiment ot the Tghest 1ot
T . ‘ .

oollowed by Law anli ] the soame fa paid;

k
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. R. A. R.

RICK ALAN ROSS

7-30-87
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RICK ROSS  CuLT EXIT - COUNSELOR LECTURER CONSULTANT

April 28, 1988

Ms. Priscilla Coats
1917 Hampton Lane
Glendale  , Calif. 91201

Dear Priscilla,

Just wanted to drop you a line and say "hi". How are you?
How goes life in the big city of Los Angeles? Everything
here is fine, by the time you receive this letter the first
chapter of my book will be complete and the second very
close. I'm very pleased with the work thus far.

It is necessary for me to complete about two more
exit-counseling cases this year to support my project.
However, there is a slight possibility that I might receive
an advance from a publishing company in New York. Whatever,
a couple of cases right now would be great. Do you know of
anything?

Cynthia Kisser in Chicago has given me a couple of
referrals. However, they did not come through. Just
ambivalent families who really couldn't make up their minds.
You know how that goes.

"Enclosed is a study regarding Fundamentalism and a couple of
articles concerning specific groups and early warning signs
of involvement. Additionally, is a cassette with clips from
various radio programs in which I participated. Thought you
might £find this interesting. Perhaps, there might be a
radio program in the L.A. area that would be interested. It
might be controversial (good for ratings) to have someone on
that had "deprogramed" fundamentalist Christians. It might
stimulate some cases in California. .What do you think?

The table of contents for my final outlilne is enclosed.
This should give you an idea of exactly how the book is
broken down. Each chapter should run about ten pages, for a
total of less than two-hundred. Don't you think this type
of book is 1long overdue? Need your help to keep this
project going. What do you say? How about the "Geraldo
Rivera Show"?

Drop me a line when you can and let me know what you think.

Sincerely,

KL

Rick Ross

RAR/lma

22‘. E. CAMELBACK SUITE1 PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85012 (602) 264-0324



ITHIS IS TAKEN FROM THE C URRICULUM VITAE OF RICK ROSS ON HIS WEB PAGE]

Curriculum Vitae of Rick Ross
INTRODUCTION

Rick Ross is the founder and Executive Director of the Ross Institute (RI). Rl is a
nonprofit corporation and tax-exempt educational institution devoted to the study of
destructive cults, controversial groups and movements. Researchers and the media
around the world have often cited the RI Internet archive as a meaningful resource.
Rick Ross is also an expert consultant, lecturer and intervention specialist regarding
destructive cults, controversial groups and movements. He has worked with hundreds
of families, mental health professionals, attorneys, clergy, law enforcement and each
year responds to thousands of inquiries. Ross has been qualified and accepted as an
expert witness across the United States in numerous court cases. His testimony has
typically focused upon the behavior of destructive groups, their persuasion technigues
and undue influence.

EDUCATION
1969 Attended Camden Military Academy, Camden, South Carolina

1970 Graduated from Phoenix Union High School, Phoenix Arizona



{TAKEN FROM RICK ROSS” WEB SITE]

By Rick Ross
Initial EIssues/Response

e Have you ever done involuntary deprogramming?

“Yes. I have personally been mnvolved in about two dozen involuntary cases.
However, about half of those cases involved minors under the direct supervision of
their custodial parent. And as Steve Hassan, who also once engaged in such
tnvoluntary eftorts recognized. “Forcible intervention [was only used] as a last
resort if all other attempts fail[ed].™



RICK ROSS CONSULUTANT

January 26, 1991
BILLING re: Jason Scott

Ms. Katherine L. Tonkin
Precision Floor Covering, Inc.
228 Central Way

Kirkland, WA 98033

(206) 828-0630 work 827-3214

Fees

five hours of prep. time at $50.00 per hour= $250.00
seven days at $500.00 per day= $3500.00

total fees $3750.00

Expenses

legal fees/retainer- $1500.00
room rental- $122.78
taxis- $36.00-
meals-$54.40
tips and airport carts-$6.00
phone- $100.00

total expenses $1819.18

Total fees and expenses= $5569.40
paid by check #1156 1-28-91



OCEAN S4ORES POLICT DEPARTMENT

STATDENT . Page | of
- 41017
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DATE: //ZV§/7/ CASE NO.: Ul
/) :
TIME: LOCATION:
PLEASE ?RINT THE FOLLOWING TKFORHATIPN;
. ) q/ &
FULL NAME: <‘,977" \)455‘/‘/ &
(L3sc) {Tizsz) (Middle
’ P
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1, THE UNDERSIGNED, 3EING A WITNESS / VICIIM T0 A A« /Mj(/w , DO HEREBY FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY
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SIGNED: aozr A2 < >t WITNESSED: \>< A;V‘k

(OSPD SF 02/85)
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TESTIMUNY WUF JASON SZOTT

FrRIDAY THE 18TH

MY BROTHER, THYSEMN, wALLED MeE UN iHe lefb UOF JAN AND INVITED
ME TO HIS BIRTHDAY FAamTY. 1+ WUULD HAVE HALU YUUTH 5ROUF AT
THE SAME TIME AND HRD MADE R FRIOR CUMMITTED 70 THAT. ON THE
18TH i CALLEDL RIM AND rold HIM THAT @ WUULD BRING HIS CARFET
SCRAFS OVER TO RIM AT 12908 NE JoTH rFfi. I weNT UVER TO 12308
NE 78TH FL ABOUT SIXISH . 1 1uUi ALUNE MY FRLIEND FOM LYMAN
FOF HELF AND COMPANY . [ BACEED IN THE DRIVE WAY, FARKED AND
LEFT MY TRUCE . i TOLD i0OM TUO STAY HERE WHILE I TOLD THEM
THAT I WAS HEFRE.

I WALKED UNDEFR T1HE UCUOVERED ~REA TO HE FRONT DUOR WHERE 1
WRS JUMFED ON oY iHFEE [(HUESS. THEY WRESTLED ME O THE i5RUUND
~AND DRUS ME INSIDE . I FANIUCKED AND STRUGSLED &S HARD AS I
COULD TO 5ET FREE. [ ALSO vELLED AT THEM " I HAVE MY FRIGHTS
AND THEY'RE BEING VIOLATED'" THE THREE THUSGS (HAT GRAREED ME
ARE MARE WOREMAN, CHUCE olfFSUN, AND @ AN HRAMED CLARE ]
DON'T HAVE HIS LASIT NeMe).

A FEW WITNESS5ES CuUbcy UN R whRAT WADS HAEFENINIG AND DIDN'T
DO ANY THING. MY MUM WelNT Oul SIDE FEASSURLNG THEM THRAT I
WARS E0INIS 7O BE G AND MR I Wes EUING U b [AREEN GUT OF &
CULT. MEANWHILE, § WwAS @EIvING iHEM = ARRED TIME SOIMNE DOWN
THE 9TALRES BY ER&BBLNEG (Ae AAiND FALtLs AND R LCHING A5 HARD A3
I COulD o CSHUCE TOLD Me imAal § flCRED HIM O IN THE SROIN AND

MaRE TOLD MeE vhHAaG 1 KITCRED HIM LN iHE CEts (L THINED.

CHUCE FUT THE HANDCUFFS UN ik (wAlloH WErRE =0 TIGEHT MY HANDS
M FEW MINUTES LATER weidl NUMG AiND 1 INGLED <D BECARUSE OF THE
LUSS OF UIMIZULATION TREY WERE LCULD) 51 LOUOFEED WfF T My mMOM
AND SAID " HOW LUCULLY vUU Du iHLIS" oHE LUUEEL Al ME WITH A
CEVILISH SMILE SkEUSsED ~NU sAID T3 FOR yuUr OWN 500D
YOUTLL SEE LMTER . CLaFn Fui HIS dRlus UvER MInNgE 70 TRY AND
Wk THEM UFP DUrRIME THE mIlLE VO UlERN SHORES. THeY ULRUG ME
DOWN THE STAISS G MY zACHE AND INTUS (hE DUWN STElms LIVING
FOUM. [ STRUGELED. (ELLED RNU KICEED Ul [ OULDN?T USE MY
HAENDS. THE FRESSBURE FRUM THE FMEN TRYLINS U LIFT ME CAQSED
THE HANDCUFFS 70 DIG INIO iy WRISTS LEAVING DARE THICK
SWOLLEN FIMSS ARUUND My WEISTS. (HEY DEU ME Ul imHE EQIDINU
HACKEDOOR UF THE HOUSE. ~ICE wAS SEYING HURRY HET HIM THE‘
JAN'. MY BECE WA oUeEE [ wed THE CERENT FRoal =D LAW@ AS
THEY TUGEEED ME iGWARD THE vain. [ uRveE oy cEST h&SISTA@EE )
STIFFENIMGEG UF Lire m BUaRD. Mg ikrEE ridbiss LOULDNT T BET Mg
IM THE VAN 30 mlui »ND MY prUiTHER SThaRTED EHUVLNui ; ﬁAD T{“
HENDS UM THE DUUR RaiNblo mivg mLICE [Ukce imEil UFF =2 iH% }Thtt
HUYS FINALLY Ul il o THE VAl THEY mii JUMFED 1N THE YAN
INCLUDLNIS =lile ~ND iy srOTHER.

I WAS UrYLINE ANU FRAYINEG, ikRREIFLIED iU DERIH. L DIDNTT ﬁNDw
WHE I THEY WERe 1SUENSG iU vy wiild Me ol U Me, 1HUUGHTS UF



ARUSE, TORTURE LIKE SEING TIED TG A LCHAIE, EDRQED_TD &ISTEN‘
AND WATCH LIES ON A TV, AND BELINE MENTALL Y HAPt? rDﬁ HEE THE
THINGS 1 STOOD FOR, FAN WILD THHMUUGH MY TORMENTED, STRESSED

MIND.

THE VAN TORE OUT OF THE BACE YAKD. I WAS FINNED FACE DOWN BY
CLARKE?'S ENEE IN MY 2ACk <N MARE OVER MY LEES &5 HE TIGHTLY
SECURED A 1 [NCH LEASH-LIFE MYLUN oTRAF » ROUND MY ANKLES
CLERE WAS TOSSED ~ rROLL OF 2 iMii;o Wwiveg =U0LL OF DUCT TAFE AND
WAS TOLD TO MAKE SURE I WAS wuleT HE FIFFED OFF A EIGHT INCH
LONG FIEZE AND FASTENED TO My railc FROM EAm TU EAR RICK
l.OOKED AT ME AND SAID TO sTOF ~RAYING ~AND SHUT UF. MY WRISTS
WERE SCREAMING WITH #ALIN 3 CLARE HELD THE mAaND CUFFS BY THE
CHAIN IN THE MIDULE. We STOFFED SOME WHERE 10 EAT AND THYSEN
WENT IN AND BRUOUGHT UUT SOME BURIGERS I WAs IN A FANIC STATE
OF SHOCE AND C0OULD NOT EAT.

1 DECIDED TU COOFERATE mNL ImiEU U MAEE (HE TRIF A%
COMFORTABLE AS FUSSIBLE. CLARE TRIED 10 HELF ME BE
COMFORTABLE BUT IT DIDN'T WUERE BECAUSE THE HAND LUFFS WERE
S0 TIGHT. I ASKED UGVER AN UVER FOR THEM TO LUDSEN THEM BUT
THEY WOULDKN'T. CLARE ,fMARE AND LrdlE =Ll TalEED ABUUT
VIETNAM AND ALL THE HURRIFYLAE TORTURE 3TURIES THAT WENT
ALONI WITH THAT WAR 0L BUESS & FEAR 1TACTIC) . THYSEN WAS
ALONG FOR THE RIDE AND HE mOLDED mi5 WITTY TWO LENTS AND
CHEWED HIS 7OBALULUY. i LUUREL rAINFULLLYy @ olEEE AND HE
LOOKED #WAY WITH GUILLT WRITTVEN ON RIS FACE. 1+ OFENED MY
MOUTH TO LOOSEN 1hE i@mFE b (0Lw Al 1 wUGLUONT T falk LF |
COULD KEEF THE TVAFE CUUSENEL oUi Lerrr HermolieNED 11 TO MY
FRIE AND S5&AID, "1 00 whAaT HE BUSS 1ciils iiE (Gl

THE RIRQE UVER WA vERY STeESoFUL. 1+ TRIED 10 oEE WHERE WE
WERE 30INIEG AND TURNED MY mZeD. o LUGUKED LLi THE FRUNT WIND
SHIELD FROM My ~INNED FUsSETION UN He FLUOR UF THE VAN AND
SAW AN UVERHEAD IRAFF DL S00N RerAbENG Trecndi; oUd 1 BENEW We
WERE 1E0INE soUTH o PREE LeAled UVER <ND SLUCEED MY YISION
OUT THE WINDOW Wiir His Aril &iNo L TURKNED MY reAb BALE AROUND
AND LUOKED AT TAE brAch. vO0OR. ., oEFURE (HAT TIME AND ~FTER
THAT TIME, HAD TRIED TU LUUL UUT THE wiND SHIELD BUT lHEY
BLOCKED MY SIGHT WITH THEIR ~RMS ENEES LR HANDS. LEAL ING THE
WITH THE FEARS AND THE ANGUISH WAS FHE HARDEST BATILE IN
TRIF OVER.

WE PULLED INTO & RAVEL DRIVE WAY -ND FULLED UF TO A HOUSE.
THE VAN WAS BAUKED Il IHe 3AFAGE (ND FaRcED.  Tre amlAsE C00R
WAs SHUT AND © wSEED it I WhS 3diNeg 70 BE ABLE TO WALE.
CHUCE. SmlD THAT HE AUFEDS fmei THa wlblo de FoSsIeLe. [ SAT
UF [N THE “YAN AND WRITED fUR RBUUT TEN MINUTES WHILE MARK
AND RICH SECURED i'me HUUSE rur MY mREIVAL. CiAeE STILL HELD
ME BY THE CHsIN Or THE HAND LCUFFS AND ChUCE 3700D BY HOLDING
THE LEASH UF 1HE mivkLE ~E3TFRALNG. mIC0E RANUD ARE FETURNED AND
THREEATENED ME MNOT U MAkE wiNY STUFID MOVES. IHEY THEN MOVED
THE ANELE FESTRARINT OF «ROUND MY ENEES 3SU & CUULD WALE .



THEY HELD THE LEASH UF THe RESTRAINT VEFRY TIGHTLY, LETTING
UNL Y ENOUISH SLACE 7O Wriik..

WE WENT IN THE HUOUSE ANU 1 RECUESTED 0) 150 THE BATH FOOM. 1
COULDN'T EVEN 50 cBCALZZ & WAS =0 NERVLUS AND STRESSED OUT.
WE WENT UF SFIRMAL oTAIRS UNiU 1AE =ECUND oTUORY UF THE HOUSE
AND WE WENT IN THE gATid =0GM. 1+ WAS FUT DN THE SHOWER WHEFE
THEY FULLED THE TAFE UFF BUI THE HANDLJUFFS WEFE STILL NOT
LOUSENED.

THE FOOT RESTRALINT WAS LOUSENED mND FOOD WAS SERVED. I WAS
STRESSED OUT IN iHINKING rHei THEY WERE GULNS 0 FUT DRUGS
IN nY +00D T0 w&IZOMFLISH iAelR FURFOSE.

iHEY OLD ME THAT MY HURULH WS = ndl il Alkio TULD ME BRIEFLY
WART THEY WERE UIN 10U u0 U ME. I ASHED THEM IF THEY WERE
SULNG 7O FUORCE (E 70 WUV bl omle 1o Lire oERNALLE BY

M LN ME TO cHesiEe cir dHiNb. = 10E sall U D

TheY LUUOSENED The HAND JUFFS FinALL s me IEF alMOsT 9 HES. 1
FEGUESTED 10U Zii I iHe oriti 1 Jdb BELAUSE 11 wWas VERY
UNLCOMFURTRBLE SLTTIMNG 1N HE SHUWER MY SRCE AoRED=— fHE ¥
FHISMEED.

MY MIM BROUGHT ME A FLLLUN HAT DIDN 1 #Hell «T ALL AND THEY
EFROUGHT ME SOME FOOD (7 WAS W UHICKEN SANDWICH AND SOME
FRUIT JUICE. I LIDN’T TRUST JHEM AND WasS SCEFTICAEL »ROUT IT
I THOUGHT THEY WOULD FUd DRUGES [N I7 30 THET . WOULDN'T
FIGHT AS MUCH: oUT [ ~ik IT BECAUSE [ JAS S50 HUNGEY.

CHUCE WAS 50NE AND  § HEMRD SUUNDING i TAE OiHER +00M
FOR 20 MIN.

RETER CHUCH 1SUT BALE « wWAD imeEM DN & =00 WITH TWO DDUBLE
BELs AL THE DFRAWERS it4u codel ancid udl UF iHE DRESSERS aND
MIaenT STANDE AMD FUT 0 AR LLGSETS 1 00k OFF MY SHOES AND
LHAULE, WENT ARUOUND THE ~oUr ColedidiNis ¢ AiND TOOE MY SHUOES

Il STARTED i RGALIN #={uaJUlicks 1 ABOUT 1Y CHURCH y MY
FlanNCE, MY FASTUR, OWUR wlrsHLIF, 1P CHURCH oUFERINTENDENT,
THAe sIBLE, OUR Sa&lLVATIUN, dUr saFT1l=M, UUR OUCTRINE, OJUFR
HOLINESS 3STANDARDS, Y 1RULE, ME @ND MY SELF WURTH, HE
CALLED ME HNAMeES LIFKE STUHLD ~ND USH HERD,HE DEGFRADED ME AND
MY SCHUOOL HE TORE AFART Svemy oMl THAT [ Was aND STOoOoD
FOR.I WAS 80 FURIOUS AT mifle Me #r5 WU =1SHT U0 FUT LOWN
EvERY THING 1 LoVE.

i mEQUESTED TU HAVE THE FULLICE oOME (N wND FEAD ME MY S1SHTS
AND HE omI[D "SURRFY THAGT 3 NUT odliid TO HAFFEN AND IF YOU
BIVE ME ANY TRUUBLE Q'LL ~ANDUUFF YOU 10 THE BED FRAME AND
IT WON'T BE COMFGRTABLE! ' ~c LUONIINUED TU TEAFR AFART MY
LRURCH @S I UDEMANDED w~iEdain O HAVE MY ~1GEHTS KEAD TO ME.



I TOLD MY MOM THAT WHAT oSHE whs DUINE WAS WRONIS anD THAT SHE
COULDN?T FORCE ME T4 CRANSE (1Y (IND -ND THAT [ WAS SIGHTEEN
AND I COULD DO wNYTHLIMNG HRT I waANTED TO DO WITH MY LIFE.
FHEY ALL SAID THIS WAS GUing id SE FoM MY JWin 300D AND NOT
TO FIGHIT IT . RICK SAID THiD WwAdLE FRUOUESS WAS GOING TO EE
AS HARD Ao [ WAD LUl 7o ke 00 .0 J0LLY Fidril 17 AND THET
WOULD FIGHT ME RACE UNTIL THEY Wiid U HAD SUCCEEDED IN
BEATINIE ME DUWN MENIT&SLLY U THE ~UINT U SURFENDER. THEY
MERLCILESSLY USED ANY TriNGg L iicy ioUULD PELNE UF LN BESTING (4
FERSON DOWN MENTALLY. Li whAd ous!t Like iih ihe MUVIES WHEIN &
FolaWe WAS IN The LUSITJDY oFf iHE eNEMY MAND THE HBEAT HIMm UF
MENTALLY BY MUOCE L1M3 ANO TEMe LiNia AF S FND SLANDER ING  THE
THINGS THEY STOOD rUr -ND « OUSHT FOR ANUD LOVED.

MY 10M EVEN USED MY FAMLILY MEMBERD misAlns i ME [N SarING THAT
I WOULD NEVEF ©E wilileF{ED iF 1, @FTEF HE WaS UONE, WENT BACH
T0 iRE CnURCH. Shg meBU Smil 1 wolie oo owmd VSN UUT OF THE
Wit UF MY BEARNDFR oF 1 cUrNELY BRLUM o TR LAUrCH. L oAID L
DON'T ZARE ABUU: MY GFANLF-THER = Wile. o7 wve HAEVER SEEN UNE
DIME IN My FOURET FROM AL 6Y Wiilbe wicde 50U 1 DUN'T EXFECT
ANYTHING FrRUM ML, -

RICE SAIL, “"THISZ [5 UBELESS FlidHING. Q75 LATE. LETS ALL 50
TU sED. "

A OEBURARD SLEFT wmi ermlbh O iHE TWU ENTRFANLES UF iHE FUOM AND
WHEN [ WENT (U HE bmTH mUUH =l iHFES bUARRDS ALUCUMFANIED ME
TO THE BATHROGM AND UNE wrile [N He 2@ THRJIOM WITH ME FOR THE
FIFST TWU DAYS WHILE ke Uimer 1wl Wal fEu UUT SIDE THE TWO
EMTEANCES UF THE BARTHRUUIM.

DAY 1 THE 13TH=-=AT

1L WOkEE WP AT 1usU0AM WiiM,m bmilE ACHE &ND ~EGUESTED SOME
REFIRIMN. THE HUAFUS werd Udid 1w wuSTiFy fRHEIF BRUTALITY ON
ME THE HIGHT ob rUmE, 240 1Her weEFE BAifa WNICE. i GOT MY
ASF LR LN wS WICE wnME L Mls drid ~USE AND THE FiRST WURDS
OUT OF HIS mMOUTH WERE THIMSS UGwiN 1af&UING MY CHURCH. I
LISTENED FOR ABUUT 20 MIN wmivh 307 =€Ac FIFED UF HIM TELLINIG
ME THAT THE WAY [ WORSH1IF @0D WAS UNBLBLICAL AND RADICALLY
CRAZY HE MADE FUN UF 11 27 cuiiF Livia meOUND ~ND MAE LS FUN OF
MY FIANCE. [ HAD MY ARMS - Goeiel el wes FAELD. MY MOM UAME IN
THE RUOOM AND § STarTED - woriiUTtoiv. 1 rEciel. " WaNT MY
IEATS READ TU Mk =7 IHe FUkae miEd GlW! mmaT f0U 13UYS RRE
COINIE IS RSALNST fms Caw mide o7 wd L v U Feusgiidle O THE
FULLEST ! " RIUE LUURED (i fIE Cirk  wesS THE SADDEST THINS
HE' D EVEes SEEN Ao SAIL. "3UEKY. fFab. YUbie MNUT LEAVING THIS
FUUM AND 7OUT D bETiER LUUFEFRiE AND NUT sive Ak AaNY  TROUBLE
UR LLL HAND LUFF 1UU iU oHe ey FisaMe sk 1D of MURE
UNLUMFUR TABLE iFRN iHE RIDE WJVER.

I LOOKED AT MY MU &iND S&ao, W AN Tl e RS AN U
Makke ME VTHINE THE wAr s 0U weidi IE L0 Y =HE ookl w7 O ME WITH



A SAD FUFFY FAZE AND S5At0 damT 1T s FOR MY OWN 1500D. THEN
SrE 1307 UF AND corTe ArDEM ZAME TN RNl STARTED IN ON ME
~BOUT EBRO. FERN AND RICE LID ide sSiaME. THEY TOLD ME HOW MUCH
UF w LIAR HE «SFU. fERN) bUrFriselior IS5, ANU THEY BROUGHT UF
ALl THE THINGS iHAT WERE i vHE AFOLLICE REFORT OF THE WHICH
FErel T AREFCNED a8 iHeloia 0 oruineRS wiai 10 USE ihe
BATHROOM THE LIGHTS irRiT CHANBELD [N irdg ROUM [N SCCORDANCE
Fo THE vIDEUS iFc: WEFd sE£irlid. HE moUSE TO MY LITTLE
EROTVHERE MATT WHeN HeEr rUJiw LGRS, L THE BATHROOM, THE
MENTAL ABUSE [NFLLSTED wid 1Y skJIHER (HYsEN cURING HIS
DEFRUESRA&MMING . I 5A7 ULIETLY UN THE BED FISGHTING THE
SUFFOSED LIES IN MY MIND. L BNEW THE TRUTH &BOUT THE
SITUATION BECAUSE [ WAD » FART OF IT HND shlW [T HAFFEN.,

FOR THE REST OF THE Onr w100 HUMILIATED ME B¢ CALL INIG ME
MNAMES LIrkE; STUFID FERSOM, MusH HEAD, ~OBOT, KERNAL (MOCKING
ZEU0. mERND L DOULLON® 7 FlEm: SACE DECHUSE [ wAsS MU UsE. oin)
MATTER WHRT I SALD IN DEFENSE OF oy CruriCH, 1T was TOEN
AFARET, RIDICULED, MOCKEELD MND 160DE FUN UF. My MEALL WERE
VERY FILLING, HIGn CALORIE JISHES Llee: CRESSeER0LES, REAL
AEAVY FrTTY MEATS cird ~0OFr CROFS DRENCHEL [N SEk—s-0UE
SAULCE. MY SALALDS swril [N SALAD URESSING. THEY BARELY 15AVE
ME ANY VEGETABLES. LowdULL pel TWO CARROT LHTICKS UR
LUOUFLE FIECES UF SAcAly WITH BEVERY fesl EVEN i HOUGH §
FECUESTED MUORE VEGETABLES ZAilH (1M I WaS FED. RLL MY MEALS
WEFE SEREVED Ui rAFER FLETES AND rLaSTIC FURKS BECAUSE THEY
QIDN' T TRUST ME. thiEy muUdami 070 USE ~EiEUlar FLATES AND
SILVERWARE M8 wWErridiis. MY oFErbF A2TE LOUNSISTED UF EXTREMELY
SUGARY CARLORIZ iEREMLS. emr Tali CRUNCR, Uit UAiMESsL WITH HALF
AND HALF  AND TONS UF ofUwWn oUidar, (UARST ORLIFFLING WlTH
EUITER, A BANANA AND A upmivioe. L WHD RV Y amEFT LORAL UF
SAFING A LUL UF L7 US LRELNELNEG THE WATER THey BAVE ME
BEZAUSE 1T SMELLED DIFFERENT AND MOST UF ~LL [&STEU
DIFFERENT. THE WATER SMELL=D STALE. WATER CUESN'T USUALLY
SMELL BUT THIS sTUFF Lilu.

A5 EACH DAY WENT OGN 1 ATE LESS ARD LESS A5 § a@0T MORE
DEFFESSED . I WOULD HRvE [(IMES JF NAUSEA [N (HE BATHROOM AND
FIMGLLY T THE YERY =MNo @ 3507 SCME EIRND WP FLU SYMPTOMS FROM
IT &LL.

THE TIRST DAY I LDEFFOGFEA&MMMIMNEG WE DIDN’T SEE ANY Vv IDEOS; RUT,
FEOM 10 @.M. T3 =F0UND Flo mliGHT o MULRED EVERAY THINSG THAT
U WAS AND CALLED i AW 101UV, FO0L AND iHe UTHER NAMES TO
Fi=Y 0 BREAK Mz WUWN S0 M2 JoULD Craes At MIng. carllEr
THIS MORNIMNS & RSEED - 100 v GUESTION S0 =ICE rOU ARE SOING
TO MRAEE ME CHANEE MY MLIHD WEaRn kST 1Y wice. © == SAID" THAT!'S
My JOBY.

THE SECOND DAY e Z0TH
THEY ALL SO0T UF -iJURND 7 «ANO MADE SURE THEY MADE & LOT OF

NUISE TO WAKE ME UF WHICH THEY DIb . o1 6Uf 39 s081NG
SITHVING N A SED (IG0 rrivwiins weekE vOU WEFE ~D BEINGFORZED



TO LISTEN TO A GUY WHU fYud DIDN'T WANT TO HAVE ANYTHING TO
DO WITH TEAR YOU AFART. I COULD TELL THAT HE ENJOYS
BELITTLING FEOFLE wmiSAINST THEIR WIiLL, SECAUSE HE FUTS A LOT
OF EFFORT IN TO WHAT He DUES. [ HAD ZAFPTAIN CRUNCH FOR BREAEK
FAST IT Wm3S WITH mmir AND HeaLe, 70U THICE 70 EAT MOST OF IT.
TWO FIECES UF TOARST CATE & LUOMNE VHEY wiere wULD AND DRENCHED
WITH BUTTER ALL THE MEALS HONESTLT WERE NOT VERY 15000. I
DIDN'T EAT BUT Hfwr ur ime CZSREAL &AND UNE FIECE UOF 70&ST AND
I U7 I7T DOWN. mICE CAMZ IN AND WENT &1 T SEAIN ABRDUT MY
CHURCH AND HOW =ZRD 17 wWhd. Veblalis ME mei THIE MRDE UF
SLANDER ABOUT MY FASTOR AND ALS0 REFEATING EVERY THING HE
DID THE DAY BEFGRE. iHIS DAY He koAlly STARTED BEATING UF
OQUFR SALVATION METHUD . we weT OUR sAlvaTlON HROM THE BOOK OF
ACTS WHERE THE FlRsST UHURCA SI1AMTED o 1 T0LD mICE " YOU HAVE
TO DIVIDE THE WUORD ~ANU UsSE IT IN LONTEXT. YOU CAN'T GET
SAVED UUT OF AN EFISILE VHUSE FEUFLE FARE RLFEEADY BSAVED . "HE
FEALLY WENT AT BAFTISM [N JESUS NAME TRYLMI 70 TELL ME THAT
IT WASN'T BIBLICAL WHEN, [ KNUW THAT [T’5 THE UNLY METHOD OF
BAFTISM IN THE NT CHUFRCH. HE ~LWAYS BROUGHT OUT HIS HEEBREW
FARALLEL AND SAID IF YOU WANT TU sELIEVE IN ONg SOD wLL vOU
HAVE TO DO IS FAY MY SYNARGOGUE $3350 A YEAR. WE'LL GIVE YOU A
BEANY AND YOU CAN BECOME & JEW. BUT IF YOU WANT TO BE A
CHRISTIAN YOU HAVE TO BELIEVE IN THE TRINITY AND ONLY USE
THE NEW TESTAMENT. i TOLD HIM THAT (HE OLD TESTAMENT WAS THE
MEW TESTAMENT CONCZEALED AND THE NEW TESTAMENT WAS THE OLD
TESTAMENT REVEARLED rHEY SlTH 30 TOGETHER WHEN THE ~FOSTLES
FREACHED THEY FREACHED GUT OF THE utD TESTAMENT AND ALL THE
FROFHESIES THAT ARE IN LLO (E5TAMENT LCONCERNING THE HOLY
GHOST BE QUT FOURED IN JOEL &:ig mnD UTHER FLACES AND THE
FROFHESY OF JESUS gEimts BORN IN [SAIAH J:& THE s0TH
TESTAMENT ARE TO bBE USeD TOGETHER.

HE REALLY DIDN’ I =&y ANYMHING BUT WENT ON 10 RAI3 ON ME ABROUT
MY S5TANDARDS . 1 THOUWSEHT In ryY MmIMD ¢ I HAaVE FAITH IN YOU
5UD THAT vOU WiLL uoELIVER ME 17LL 3TAND OM YUUR WUFD AND ITS
FROMISES wND [ ENOW TOUTLL DELIVER ME JUST SHOW ME THE RIGHT
DGOR TO OFEN &ND i°H Udl GF HERE. [ FRAYED A LOT UNDER MY
SREATH FLEADING THE BLUOL UF JESUS UVER MY MIND AND THANE ING
50D FOR THIS TRIAL . I HAD TO UOBTALH Al ATTITUDE OF
ERATITUDE THROUGH THIS wAOLE HIMa. o iZOULDNY T FUT UF ANY
VISIBLE DEFENCE OF E@ET mMAD OF bl TEs HECHUSE FOR UNE THINS
IT'S NOT CHRIST-LIKE wiD ThE WHULE ~FOZESS FEEDS OFF OF
HATE. [T TUENS THE HATE THAT 00U HAve in ruuR HEART TOWARD
SOME THING THAT'S MOV i 70UR GROUF AL TURNS 1T #ROUND AT
YOUR GROUF MAEING (HE FEOFLE sul JsEl 7J wuve SEEM LikE
HIDEOUWS ENEMIEE.

FICH SSENT & woT OF VIME <EADIMNE FEUM 1HAIS puOk OF METHODS
OF FINDING OUdl [F 7UURE BROUF WA m JULT: SUT 2 FOUND OUT,
HFTER A DAY OF LISTelNIMs 73 HiIM, riml iHE wUesST1ONS vuu
WUULD /HSH ARE SU eiekAL THAY RouUdi 200 JF iHE LCHURLDHES TN
THE U.S.s buUlll BeE CULIS. L ooASkeD MY UM WHeEN AND WERE ARE
YOU 50IMS ARE 70U QUlNGe BACE 1O CHURLKAR SHE LOURED AP ME
LASTLY ShaYIMEG "L wG’ T rNUW braBE, 0 wbn’ 1 RNUW. EVERY UNE



I'VE BEEN TO FALLS UNDEFR THe QUESTIONS THAT YOU WOULD ASEK."
SHE BASICALLY SAI0 TU ME iHAT wLL THE CHURCHES ON THE EAST
SIDE ARE CULTS.

IT WAS KIND OF ruUiNY ecilnUbce eVERY THINEG THAT RICE WOULD
"FPREACH" AGAINST he WUULD DU T3 PME. UNE EXAMFLE IS
"ISOLATION", mICE'S DEFINITION UF THIZ 1S NUT BEING ABLE TO
ZONTACT UR HAVE “ANY FELmTiUNS WITH ime OUT SIDE WORLD. &UT
HE HAD NYLON STRaFS GVer ThHE WINDUOWS @ND TWO BUARDS AT EACH
DOOR KEEFING ME IN THE ~JdPM. ALMOST EVERY STEF IN FINDING
QUT IF A GROUF [5 ~ CULT 15 50 wENERAL THAT EVEN GROUPS LIEE
DIET CENTERS AND ALLUOHUL ICS mANONYMUUS RRE CULTS . THIS MAN
IS A DESTRULTIVE FERSON FIFFING YOUR FAITH LN 150D AND THE
SBIBLE . SFEAKINIEG I[N 1UMSUES [s SIBLICAL AND mICE IWISTS IT
AEUUND AND SAYS L1135 A TRANLE STAIle YOUR IN WHEN YOU SFEAE IN
TONSUES., HE MISFEFRESENTS iHe BIBLE IN SAYINGE THAC IN
CORINTHIANS 12 THART UNLY m rew reUFLE 1N THE CHURCH CAN ONLY
SFEAF IN TONGUES WHEN 1mnRc 20 IFTURE ~ASSAGE REFERS TO THE
GIFT OF PROFHESY &ND NOT THE WAOLE CHURCH IN GENERAL. THE
WHOLE =00k UF AC0TS DEVUTES ITS SELFS IN FRELCURDING THE FIRST
ACTIUNS UF THE AeUSTLES D mLL  (heOUGH OUT THIS BOOK THE
HOLY GHOST WAS GUT FOURED THaiI THE AFOSTLES FREAQCHED AND IT
IS FROMISED TO EVEEY UNE(RCTS Z:3%).

FICH'S METHODS I DEFRUGRAMMING ARE NOT SIBLICAL BECAUSE !
FOLLOW EXACTLY lwMmT THE pIBLE 5ATYS RBOUT SALVATION aND IT
SAYE TO REFENT .FOR THZE 2&EMISSION OF SIN AND BE BAFTIZED IN
JESUS WNAME wND { WILL meCEIVE (HE HOLY &HOST IN WHICH I DID
AND 30D 15AVE ME VHE mUlLy QBRUST =D The EVIDENZIE OF THAT [S
SFEAKING IN T0MNuUZs. <15 cFFOrRT 15 N vaIN BECAUSE HE
FRUOFESSES TO USE THE Slhles sUT mE uwsSES THE BIBLE QUT UOF
LUNIEXT., HE TRIELD TU MAre o2 SeELIEVE iHe&i 1 JUULD BE SAVED
By ONLY BELIEVIMNG [N JEZ=Us «mdliANsS Z0:9i. THE fgUUE UF RUOMANS
18 mil EFISTLE 1IN WHIUH iMz ~EU0FL.e ARE ~LEeADY SAVED. FAUL LS
EAarYING LW THAT FASSAEE 0 vikbke  1ZOMFLETE =REAE WITH JUDAISM
MND TOTELLY CONMFESS JEBUS CHmIST. 1 CUOULLN'T fSELIEVE THE
SOEIFTURES rHRT 2 LSEL 0 &y [0 LeFROBFRAIT ME WITH. THEY
WERE SO GUT OF CONTEAT IT was PFUNiNY. WAEN HE DIDN'T ENOW HOW
T GNSWER & WUESTIGH uf MiNE mE SaID "WE HAVE 0 50 TO THE
EREERE AND FIND 2JdT wHAT T rEALLY 2AYS" 1N SAYING THAT HE
FRIED T BEAT DOWH MY et Lid IHe flla JAMES VERSION. BUT I
THOUGHT iN MY fINe © ir @ A kE T ske pdor GHOST BY
SELIEVING TiHE rING JARES wermSL1Un rmEn iT3 uk FOR ME. [ LUANT
FEAD HREEE ANY Watd. imc =FOouiENTE He =ZFOUGHT UF WERE ALWAYS
CHANIBED TO = 2IFFEREMT =SUBJECT ZEDaLes HE JULLLN'T ANSWER MY
GUESTIONS.

FICE DESTROYED MY MOMS FALITH (M @OD AND NUW SHE DUESN? T EVEN
FREAY. MY BROTRhER HAD A AwceSUME WALE WL A &SUD AND NUW HE
HELIEVES HE LAN HE A UHELISTLIAN iHAi UHEWS | OBRALICO.

WE SAW & FILM LALLED MARJUE = r L ABUUIL A Skl FRUCLALMED
Frimk wOREING THe ORE LIBckAL SU LCALLED FENTELUSTAL CHURCHES
FOm MONEY. FE «ofiTS BEins A o THELST et I UNE FART OF THE



FILM IT SHOWS HIM ON & MOTEL ED WITH ~ FILE OF MONEY IN
FRONT OF HIM AND HIM CROUCHING OVER IT LIKE A VULTURE

“THANK ING JESUS" AND ZOUNIF HI1IS DIVIDENDS FROM THAT NIGHTS
"FERFORMANCE". RICKE TRIED TO MAKE ME BELIEVE THAT ALL THAT
MY FASTOR WAS OUT FOR IS MONEY. RICE ASKED ME WHAT KIND OF
CARS FASTOR KERN HAD AND L TGLD HIM . RE WENT ON MAEINS FUN
OF BRO. EERN BY SAYINSG 1F mE rHMAS THOSE NICE CARS WHY ARE
OTHEFR FECFLE AT FOVERTY LEVEL IN vOUR CHURCH. <ICHK ALSO WENT
ON MOCKING BRO. HEEN BY LUOTIME » SCRIFTURE IN THE BIBLE
FEFERING TO THAT IF A MAN CANT CONTROL HIS CHILDREEN THEN HE
ISN'T FIT TO FASTOR w CHURUH. mICE 60T SOME ~ALSE INFOR-
MATION FROM MY CRACKEED BROTHER ABOUT NATHAN AND HIS "S0
CALLED" RERELLIOUS WRYS . mick TRIED 10 DUOWN SEADE BRO.HERN
SAYINE THAT HE ISN'T FIT 0 e iHE LEADER OF THE CHURCH
HECAUSE HE CANT ZONTROL HIS E1DS WHICH IS NOT TRUE .1 LIVED
WITH THE KERN?!S3 [N COUTOBER WHENM 1 =017 EIUKED OUT OF MY HOUSE
WHEN MOM LEFT THE CHURIZA AND BRO. KERN FATHERS HIS CHILDREN
LOVINGLY AND STekNLY.

AFTER THAT WE 3AW S0OME FILMS JuN THE FfUTTER HOUSE ULCHJURICH THAT
FICK HAS DESTRUYED . [7 wWAs FIND OF FUNNY EBECAUSE THE FILM
CREW ALWAYS MADE 1THE +ASTURS OF THESE UCHURCHES LOOr LLIKE THE
BAD 3UY AND RICHE A3 THE HERUO =@AVING THeESE FeUFLE FROM A S0
CALLED CULT JHE FeEALLY EMPHADIZED A W CT ON MIND ZONTROL ~AND
THAT I WAS EZINSG ZLUWLT MINIFLLATED [ DOINEG WHAT EBRO.EERN
WANTED ME TO DUO. BUT mICE 0N THE OTrRER HAND WAS FORCING ME
BY & DICTATORIAL AANITIFUGLATIGH wND I HAD 70 LO WHAT RICE SAYS
OF BE HAND CUFFED V0 THE EBEDL rElAME . WHENM [ JAME TO THIS
CHURCH IT WAS mY CHOICE 70 CHAMGE.

WE SAW m COUFLE UTHEERE FILMS UNE UN THE MOUNIES RND + SALLY
JESSIE FAPHAREL CSCCUMENTREY WITH mICH N IT. [ JUST 2AT THERE
LOOKED LISTENED smaND EEFT MmN urbki FILND ~B0UT EVERY THING .
RICES STUFF THAT HE TOLD Mg LIDN' ¥ LINE Ur WITH ‘HE FALCTS
ABOUT WHAT HE SAIL ABOUT ThHe olBLE AND THE CHURCH AND THE
OTHEE THINGS THAT MY (UM LUSED TO MREE HE JHURIDH LUOR BAD
EECAUSE I DID MY UWRN INVESTIGATION -bB0ui oVERY THING AND
CAME UF WITH MY Gwn OF Liilain.

DAY THREE THE <137 MONUAY

[ WOEE WITH HE SAME Ra@Ch Aled i 300 =0rE ~SPIRIN FROM
CLARE AND BREAEFAST WAS CATMEAL WITH mALF wND HALE ~ND BROWN
SUGAR . TWO COLD FISCES OF TUAST GReNisHED (mE FefER FLATE
AND A BANANA CUFLELD ARCUND iHE rAFER BOWL. § COULU ONLY EAT
HALF THE OATMEML iU (RE omiiaivd A8 re DArs Wil hi L RTE
LESS &N LESS 1 wui U vVlmel rmls L|y (MRG0 ALMUBST FELL
ASLEEF LISTENING 9 =il CUNTINUE TO Tomm wOWN MY CHURCH,
AFOUND & Foi1. THEY LET ME VArE A SHOWER EY MY SELF IN THE
BATHROOM AND I ENJOYED EVeErmy NINUTE oF FRLIVACY. (HE BATHROOM
WAS THE UNLY WhY o+ LUULL LET U FMY iHOUSHIS 10 650D ~ND TRUST
HIM IN DELIVERING Me . THEY Wekk @bsd TIMES UF BXATREME
STREESs #ND ANELULISH sELAUse L skL] LIKE -~ (#AFFEL LARORATORY



ANIMAL TORTURED EY EXCRUCIATION SXFERIMENTS . 1 COULD FEEL
THE BATTLE 50 UN IM MY MIND SETWEEN BELIEVING IN WHAT WAS
FIGHT AND BEING FOSRCED TO BELIEVE WHAT WAS WEONE . THE
CHURCH HELFED ME CLEAN UF MY ACT SEFORE 1 CAME TO THIS
CHURCH I HAD Gdic 7O 8007 Vel DIFFEFENT CHURCHES AND THEY
DIDN'T DU wmNY iHING 7Jd OFR FOR ME . [ AAD LONIS HAIR AND I
CHEWED ~ND SMORED TOBACUD RivD I wWANTED 7O STOF BUT LIKE A
CHAINS THOSE BAD HARITS AND MY HURRIBLE LLIFE STYLE HEFT ME
IN BONDAGE . THE CHURCH HELFED ME SORT THROUSH MY FEEL INGS
ABOUT THINGS IN MY LIFE &ND 3AVE ME SOME OFTIONS I COULD
TAEE IN THE EFFECT [ WANTED 0 UIRANGE MY LIFE.

I 50T TO SEE BOTH SIDES OF MY LIFE STvLE CLEARLY AND I MADE
A FEW DECISIONS. I LIkED MY LUNG HALR FOR FASHION REASONS
EUT HOW FAR WOULD IT ZET ME (A A 05 SITUATION EMFLUOYERS
LIKE CLEAN CUT FEOFLE »5 EM-LUOYEES NOT THE SHAGEY FERSON
THAT [ WAS. TORALIZU WAd Jiilt JRAINING (MY WALLET AND SIVING
ME A REASON TO GET UANCER . ALCOHOL WAS ONLY - EXCUSE TO
ESCAFE MY FROBLEMS AT THAT (IME AND WORST OF &SLL FORMING A
DESTRUCTIVE LIFE _uUNG HAEIT THAT MIGHT LAND mME IN JAIL WITH
THE WAY [ WAS GUInNG Wiim 1T . WHU ENUOWS, DRUISS WERE THE NEXT
ON THE LIST FOR ME IF 50D HALN'T COME MY way AT THAT TIME.

I LUOKED FOR 30D IN THUSE JUThEr CHURCHES =UT I ONLY FOUND A
GEOAD NOON NAF OUT UOF HE CHUKICH SERVICE. =ICHS DESTRUCTIVE
COMMENTS DIDN' T FEALLT FrMADE E SECHUSE [ mNEW THE TYFE OF
FERSON L WOULL RETURN 0 2& 7 I LEFT &E0D. THAT NIGHT THE
TRUTH aB0UT SOME Thimigs (HAT 17 101 WS, WERE COMING CLEAF
TO ME AND I G607 @nEkyY o ot 21ARTED NAMING THE FEOFLE THAT
SHE USED TO LUVE N iHE CRURUM BAL NAMES THAT WEFE VERY
JUDBMENTAL. ALED SFEAKTRNIG iLidS THAT SHE REFUSED 10 SEE ANY
OTHER WAY EBUT HEF UWN. © ZSAFLUDED ASEIMNE" WHY ARE YOU SAYINIS
THIS STUFF ABOUT THE ~EOFLE U USeD 10 LUVE AND HOLD DEAR v
TYUU ENOW THEY SRE wiZZ @D FrmbLseE sLENDER" SHE REFUSED TO SEE
iHE RIGHT WAY ~ND 1 <UUEL "YUU ENUW HUSE mRE 500D FPEOPLE
THAT HAVE DONE &My THIrS BUr S000 TO fUU, 7UU HAD MORE FEARLCE
AND JOY THIS FAST sodr i eRiN T UU Ve BEveR HAD i yOUR LLIFE AND
EVEN YOU'VE SAle imAs 7O ME mort . Ske o aeiabel WITH O HAT AND
DENYINIS (7.

FICK STEFFED IN THE JOMVERSSTION TELLING MY mMOM TO LEAVE AND
CHLLING THE SUGRL rHAT WAS o BTAIRS &l DOWN SavING 350
YOU'VE BEEN FaEINS THESE FasT TWO DAYs FUTTING ON A BIG SHOW
WELL LET ME TELL +0U I*VE nEVER ckEEN FmreDl JUuT AND 'VE
CEFROER&MMED 1UVER WU mUNLDREL ~BUFLE S0 IF vuU S3IVE ME ANY_
TROUBLE 1'LL H&ML JUFF YOU 70 imE 8L FRAME FOR TWO DAYS S0
YUY U BETTER MAKE - LECISI0N (0 LUUPERATE GR IT WONT BE '
ENJOYABLE 47 mbiw ~UF voU. ©  He GTHER GURRD CAME DUWN ~ND ':'5"-’:1r
IN & CHelR BY [THE J00R. et WETD 0N FOR =NOTHER HOUR BEATING
DOWN THE CMURDH Cird ke OA0S oefFUrRE. 1 rEe, 30 HelFLESS
STHRENDED mLMOST Line ~INHED. UF 70 A WAkl BFREAD EAGLE AND
HEVING mE FlLESH ~irFED Feun 2 0Um 300 0T HumT S0 BAD
MENTALLY o o bl v Jd rber iHeE TEARS Ur meias oRali A5 L HERAYED
GMDER MY SFRERTH mobIME bl fu cUrFORT g . 1 FELT THE



ANGUISH DRAIN FREOM ME A5 I REGAINED MY COMFUSURE QND SAT UF
STRAIGHT READY FOR MUORE OF WHAT RICK HAD TO SAY AB0UT MY
CHURCH.

FEELINGSGS OF CUMFLACENCY HEWLFED ME BATTLE =ICE'S UNSLAUGHT OF
ACCUSATIONS. THE STUFER HELFED ME [HE <EST Ur RICK?S
ATTEMFTED BRAINWASHINIG., [ JUsT FAREED EVERYTHINSG AND NENT’
QEEWQVE HDWHHrth HLUL; un;ﬂ E?HHéUvrrn ngHﬁgbﬁSHg&\Wéb
SHREUGEED SHUULDERS AiND v Lud T S0unDainG, i CON' T ENOW IT*'s

UF TO0 YOU BUT sE HEAL ZRUTVIOUS." THAT NIGHT I SLEFT
INSECURELY. & MILLIUN GWUESTIUNS WERE 1501 NG THFEOQUGH MY MIND
ON HOW MY BROTHER FEELS nNUW ~FTER HIS oFAINWASHING; ABOUT
50D AND MY MUM ALSU ABOUT HEF OFINION ON VHE FTANSIBILITY OF
THE LUFD +HAT RIUE DESTRUYEL . SEFCGRE 1 CAME 10 ENOW 150D HE
WASN' T AS TANGIELE As HE s NUW & COULUN' T FEEL HIM AS I DO
NOW 1 THOUSHT HE WAS S0 LISTANT EBEINS THART UONLY CREATED THE
WOFRLD AND OIDN'T HAVE HIS mAND ON EVERY THING . THOUGH T
AND FELT LIKE G0D DIDM? i LUOVE ME sECAUSE UF ~il THE FREOEBLEMS
I HAD AND I FELT LIKE [ whAs [N G0ODS JUDBEMENT ALL THE TIME .
I BELIEVED & LOT IN EARM& (WHAT COMES A OUND GO0ES AFROUND
JWHICH I3 TRUE TO AN EXTENT BUT [ LIVED IN FEAR BECAUSE OF
IT o RICE TRIED TO ~UT THAT INSECURITY BA&CE IN TO ME.
TELLING ME TH&T 200 I8N'T AVALILABLE WhHEN HE FEALLY IS. HE
TORE MY eXFPERIENCE WITH @OL AFART LIKE IT WAS SOME FIGMENT
OF MY IMAGINGATIGH. RE TRIED J MakEE ME SELIEVE & IE, w3 IF
THE LIFE @I LIVED iN THE CHURUH Was SUCH & HUORRIBLE
EXFERIENZE THAT I SHOULL orUdd [7 L EVERY Way ~OSSIBLE AND
MAEE IT HIGHT THE SUFFOSED weUMIES 1?7vE LONE 10 MYSELF. THAT
NIGHT WAS TERFIELE SECAUSE MU UNLY Dlo i Fisml @aBEalNsT MY
MOM I FUUEHT FUR FiY HLEMls mND L RN serurke L FOUSHT TH&T
IT WOULD 130 NUWHERE U+ oUW ALl rUR T1E . 1 WAS CUMFLE (ELY
ALUNE MU UNE AFQUND i MYy Sl (U mRELF Me DEFeND MY FATI1H.
FICK ZONTINUED U rir ME ArFARD FOR 8 FEW RUOURS o THAT NIGHTS
SLEEF WAS RESTLEDS 1 TUSSED ~iND TURNEL ~LL NIGHT EXHAUSTED
=ND WEARY [ FINALL: reEci wBleER &R0OURND [ SUesSs & OR S .

I WOKEE UF =R0UND c:30 @alND asikED 70 G CLEANED UF THEY FET
ME GND I ENJOYELD vRE e50&FE 70 MHE oFuwel. TOUATY kWes THt-UG{
OF VIDEUS ~ND #ILk 2Ai0D fhnl THE #EST OF iHE WEEH WOULD BE
THE SAME . [ WAES S0 shaid Tu oUsT HAVE JLodds D HOTHING
MURE BECAUSE T wasS TIFiMG . wE Sak AarisUrL o SIDEJDS TODAY
CHWE SBAW GNE 2N JGhES TOWN Ule O VaRiuds Lulis LikE _
SCIENTOLUETY we 5k m dIOVIE O ke MUUNLIES @D » SHOW CALLED
48 HOUFRS . THeE FILi LREW OF -ig AUULRS fobloweD RICE TJ
ANCHORAGE alASkm 70 b L THIZ DOCUMENTARY uf HIM aND A 14
YEAR OLD NMMED EFIn o inl3 rlD WAS A HID WHY LUVED GOD BUT I
HAVE TO RGREE WITh ~ICH HE WAS & CITTLE EXTHEME IN H1S
CMUINISTRY!" & WUlLU 2mr imds 0l veebeEd @ few orURCH pUl NOT
THE FOUL TRESTMENT UF DEFEUSESMMING o . UIUNT | LIEE THE FACT
THAT THE FASTUR UF iMiz Ciured mic melid oo - iFHE LRIl



AND HAD ERIN TO BELIEVE THAT HIS MOM HAD A DEVIL. AFTEFR
WATCHINIG THIS FILM [ wAs CRUSRED ON HOW RICE DESTROYS
FEOFLES WALES WITH 50D i EMEW SOME THING WAS GOING TO HAFFEN
WITH ME S0 I REQUESTED My MUM CUME IN AND CUOMFORT ME . SHE
CAME I[N AND I FUT ON w 515 MUl FIFRST & FRAYED 30D FROTECT
MY HEART . J/HEMN [ LET THE {EAR 153USH . FOR w HALFS & 500D
FIFTEEN MINUTES [ LET THE TEARS rl1 mLUST FRAYING THRU. I
HAD TO EEEF MY STAMMERINIG LIF3 FROM A FLAFFING. REWORD ME .
I DIDN'T RENOUNIZE MY FAITH wND I DION'T SAY THAT I WAS GOING
TO LEAVE MY CHURCH { JUST Shlo #0M (' SORRY AND I LOVE yOu
« I FHEALLY WANTED 70 GWET THE LUVE pACE FOR MY MOM THAT I
LOST WHEMN TYSEN WENT THROUZH ~IS UDEFROGRAMMING . I GOT REAL
"MAD AT MY MOM WHEN SHE DID irHml 70 MYy SROTHER &ND 1 DIDN'T
WANT TO EBE BITTER 0 My (01 BUl § Was o I "CRAZEED" AROUT &
OF 7 AT NDSHT &ND AFTER Tral milk CAME 1M SAYINE THAT EITHER
HE DID KIS JOB CR ThAT 1 wAD (HE WOFLDs BEST ACTUR. § EAVE
HIM A HUE SAYING “COME ON mlle [ SEE NUW" THEOUSH TEARS WE
ALL WENT Uf 3Twiks ¢UOFR chd FimsST i IME 1iv FOUR DAYS AND I
FOUND UUT WERE . who UCZEAN ZHURES. | 3UESSED THAT WHEN WE
FIST 50T HERE BUT I WASN'T SURE. @ND MNOW &Ll [ HAD TO DO WAS
WALIT FOR AN OFEN LOOFR. THAYT HIGHT wWad FRETTY FUN WE ALl
FLAYED CARDS TaLEED , ATE WATCHED Teve, FLRAYED FINS FONE,
AND FELAXED AFTER MY DAILY GACZUZY AT wROUND MID NIGHT I
FETIRED AND FELL =IiSHP &SLEEF.

WEDNESDAY THE ZZHD

I AWOFE AT 3 wnD 307 UF AND 0T -Ll JLEANED UF RICE HAD
ONLY GNE SUARD 1N ikmE =0U0N D i HE UIMER UNES WERE ~LOuD TO
EET S0ME FRESH mif . DLerE wdS THE adeeb ThAaT STAYED IN THE
=OU0M . SFTER 1 aUl QUT Ui THeE S&ald FGOM wWiE wa TCHED MURE
VIDEOS . mEAL LDEMERNTED —ned VmaT =I10E VRIED (O COMPARE TO MY
LRURCH TRAT Cloii’ o eveN GUlNE LUsSs U eEeeoeL Wl THo MY
LRURICH o HEY e Aol ek +E5E mdll LeidNNeL iMis . NUW L CAN
SAY [TVE SEEN i fmLL seuRlsSe iHebz FEdFiiz wWERE oS S TRANIGE .
THIE ONE LADY UWNED w CEysTae J0MFAMY o 10U WOULD VTAKE THESE
CEYSTALS AND Fid., vhel [ ruum sAalM Jud emilb bmeil 70U bET [N
THE TUR THE CRYysTAcs WOULL §ivVE LU BENERGTY bECAUSE THESE
THINIES SUFFOSELLY ZMIVTEr SME~BT THMAd TUUR S00Y ABSURBED .
WHAT & LIe! T LAUEHED T THAT ONe . THIS L&Dy w30 CLAIMED
THAT SHE HAD & FSvCall Al dmmd wlbi-e MeEDI TAare i i'H?. EF WaS
gﬁ Tt’hQR”EL EHGT . Di {J.\;:;_J fggg‘ ‘.1:‘5-.%!’7?“‘?£HE§:‘EEUUXSS : u"—i:'GBlJIESLF:I-{ ISS
ALY THESE FE0FLE =AlD iMAT 70U +RE aup ~ND YOU H&D 70 uD-
DRERTE REAVEN wii SmriH. @ WA 50 UISEUSTED | ~oiUST GOT SICH
TO vy &TOMALH. iRESE FREUFLE mrvE e ~UDACITY 7O FUT
THEMDELVES UM Uil UDS Level @ [ hed T B0 U Ak 8ATHROOM
RFTER T 5AW THUSE “IDEGS BECAUSE 1« 0T »0 =ICi T MY
STOMACH I RHAD CiarFHSd THAD o o FAAo T0 LAaUGH AT IT ALL
THOUGH BECAUSE JHESE FEUFLE wERE 50 UDELEIVeD . UN THE FIRST
YIDED WE SAW The LREW LDID m £R1EF FASI His TORY UN THE FEOFLE
INTERVIEWED AND THEY wile #DML T TED UN BEINEG STRANGELY

"




DIFFERENT THAN OTHERS THEY S5AID THAT THEY NEVER FIT IN. MY

FOR ME TO GO TO UHIO TU WELL SFRINGS rEHAE AND FICK AND THE
REST AND THE &GURFDS TICHETS wAli TO wil20NA. I FLAYED FING
FONG AFTER WE SAW THE rEST OF (HE VIDEUS =ND SROUND S WE ALL
DECIDED TO 50 CUT 0 EnT «ND [ SALD CUOL. WeE LEFT THE HOUSE
AROUND SUN SET RAND 1 LQULL (ELL THAT THE LURRDS WERE A
LITTLE NERVOUS AEOUT ME BEIMES OUIT S1De FOR THE FIRST TIME Il
FIVE DARYS. WE FULLED I THE MAmkEING Lol UF THE OCEAN SHORES
INN IN We WENT IN o Sile was - CITTLE  HESVOUS &asour THIS
FLACE S0 HE LECIDED TO LEmVE . 1 WAS ~FRAYLING UNDER MY EREATH
130D OFEN = DOOR FLEASE! WE WENT U ihe ohuF ~ITE GROCERY TO
GET SUME THING FO& MY STOMACR , 1 WAS 50 MNeUuscaTED I WRS
GOING TO THROW U . WE rFURLCHASED oLl rAUFzcimle BAND WHEN We
WEFRE AT THE UiHeCE LUl STaNb mLiok LeaMe IN U LHECE UN Us . 1
COULD HAVE LAUZZEDL & olis SToe SUT 1 Diwii’ « FeeEL CUMFURTABLE
RBOUT IT . #ICk WeNT UUT WHEM HE SAW mE NOT 00 ANYTHING. IF
I DID YELL @T THE 3ROCERYT FrEJFLE wOLLL Feve FrEARED SUT AND
FANICKED 50 1 FEFT T LOWN. =Ff TEF THAT we WENI TU THE HOME
FORT FESTARURANT « ~r i &8 HBGUT S0 MUINUITES GF wmITILNG WE WERE
SERTED w1 The STHER END UF THE FESTAUFRANT . @D 1 WiS E0OING
TO FUKE SECRUSE UF iHE STRESS. L flNEw 5ul wmd sdling TO UFEN
A DOOF wND I WRS cUlnia 0 TARE THe FlvsT CheaNoe @ =0T .
AETER Wi G07T mle smm 2TLEF af THE SSimey oram we =ir wOWN AND
I ASKED Il ¥ ¢ JOULLD =g 00 THE BATreGUM

BECAUSE & WAS aUliis 70 Lo0ss i Gl oved o Md PLACE. S ICH
SAID G0 HHEAD AL o LEFT 70 30 170 THe <857 ~00M ALONE FOR
THE FIRST TIME [ FIVE SmYS miD Voo (HE FIRST CHANCE |
G0T 70 FHEE MYSELe FROM THE SONDABE 1 wasS I[N . i WALEED FOR
THE ZATHROGM Mo (HSTEAD GF TURNLNEG Lef § FUOR 5 AE SBATHROOM I
TURNED RISHT ~ND RIT THE FRONT L£O0F wND L rEL) SUCH &
FELEASE . [ WAS Faed samdil il {0 RAN -oesU0Ss THE STREET TO
EARENACLE BILLS rE3TAURANT RAnl ~SEED T4 USE THE FRONE SHE
SAID NG AT FLFsST ThEN @0 SAIlo o Ve Do DAl THE FOLICE I 've
BEEN "FIDNAFFED ZhHo 3AI0 WELw «dy DIDNTT 72U SAY 80 &AND SKHE
GRve ME THE FROCHE . D FalZD SHile D - Le iR oms 0 LOokED GUT
Ve FEOMT D00k e DT e oe oA SOPE L Ui Did o-ND O THEY LID

=S MY MOM, S I0E sriecn NG ome SUL T aUdReds o aCEF T DLARR WalksD
ACFOSS THE STR2s’ =1 e sete o INE 0 o JUT T MEET THE
FOLICE FMAN AND Tole mIa THAE o ks o livimr el -iND HELD
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

vo. (43-)-222 -2

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

)
)
Plaintiff, )
)
vs. ) MOTION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR
} ORDER DIRECTING ISSUANCE
RICK A. ROSS, ) OF SUMMONS
MARK W. WORKMAN, )
CHARLES SIMPSON, )
Defendant. )

COMES NOW the State of Washington and moves the Court

for an order directing the issuance of a summons to the

defendant(s) .
THIS MOTION is based upon the following affidavit.
H. STEWARD MENEFEE
Prosecuting, A Prney
for Gr y§ arbor County
EPH F. WHEELER
uty Prosecuting Attorney:
wssi# 16936
STATE OF WASHINGTON )

) ss.
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY )

JOSEPH F. WHEELER, being first duly sworn on oath,

deposes and says:

That an Information was filed charging the defendant(s)
with a criminal offense and probable cause exists for the

issuance of a summons based upon the following facts:

on January 23, 1991, Jason Scott called the Ocean Shores

Police Department stating that he had just escaped from being

kidnapped.
MOTION FOR SUMMONS - 1
H. STEWARD MENEFEE
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY
P.O. BOX 330
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY COURTHOUSE

MONTESANQ, WASHINGTON 98583
TELEPHONE (208) 248-28351
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The police made contact with Mr. Scott a short time
later. Mr. Scott told the police that he had been kidnapped by
his mother and some men in Kirkland, Washington and then takén
against his will to Ocean Shores. He continued by saying he had
been held by these people in an Ocean Shores condominium for
several days against his will and had just now escaped. The
police asked him where the kidnappers were and Mr. Scott
indicated that they were currently walking across the street
towards the patrol car. Mr. Scott was placed into the patrol
vehicle and the indicated individuals were identified as Kathy
Tonkin, two juveniles and defendants Rick Ross, Mark Workman, and
Charles Simpson.

Ms. Tonkin, upon arrival at the patrol car, informed the
officer that she was Jason Scott’s mother and that she was trying
to save him from a cult church that had brainwashed him. Jason
Scott at this point identified Ross, Workman and Simpson as three‘
of the four men who had abducted him against his wishes.

The four adults were requested to come to the police
station for further investigation and Jason Scott was transported
there by the police.

Upon arrival at the station, Jason Scott gave a formal
written statement, Scott stated that on Friday, January 18, 1991,
he had gone to the residence of his mother in Kirkland. He had
just entered his mother’s garage when several men grabbed him,
carried him downstairs into the residence, put duct tape over his
mouth, handcuffed him and then threw him in the back of a van.

MOTION FOR SUMMONS - 2

H. STEWARD MENEFEE
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY
P.O. BOX 550
GAAYS HARBOR COUNTY COURTHOUSE
MONTESANO, WASHINGTON 98343
TELEPHONE (206) 249-3951
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This van was then driven for several hours until he was
subsequently removed from the van and taken into a room in a
condominium in Ocean Shores. He reported that once in that room,
he was confined in the room against his will, subjected to 24
hours a day surveillance and was repeatedly harassed in the form
of attacks on his religious beliefs.

Jason Scott identified defendants Rick Ross, Mark
Workman, and Charles Simpson as three of the men that had
forceably grabbed him in Kirkland, brought him down to and then
held him in Ocean Shores against his will. Jason Scott was 18
years of age when he was abducted.

That based upon the above-information, the State
pelieves that the three individuals named in the Information
committed the crime of Unlawful Imprisonment.

That the above acts occurred in Grays Harbor County, the
State of Washington, and that a summons to the defendant(s) .

should issue.

JOSEPH F. WHEE
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

WSBX# 16936

UBSCRIBED @: l _C_?E_ day of July, 1993.
RO S W KUY

NOTARY PUBLngfN AND

For Grays Ha S&T Q%Egty
Residing in By U@ 0
Commission expires E;gg:gq

JFW/cjs

MOTION FOR SUMMONS - 3

H. STEWARD MENEFEE
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY
P.0. 8OX 850
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY COURTHOUSE
MONTESANO, WASHINGTON 08583
TELEPHONE (2C6) 249-29351
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| Harbor County,

131wanhinqtnn, by this Informaticn do

SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR GRAYE HARBOR COUNTY

{TEE"1'é~AEJ‘:L

aTATE OF WASBHIKGTONW,

)
1 HO.
Plaintife, y
)
VB } INFORMATION
}
DOB: 11/24/82 }  F.R. NO.
MARK W, WORKMAN, )
DOB1  12/29/54 )
CHARLES SIMFEON, l
DoOB: 0L/29/47 )
H
Defgndant., )
I, H. steward Msnefse, Prosescuting Atterney for Grays

rine(g) of UNLAWFUL IMPRISORMENT cormlitted &8 followWe:

THat the gaid defendants, RLck A. Roas,
Mark W. Workman, and Charles Simpsen, in
Grays Harbor County, Waahington, on or
batwean the 15th day of January, lggl
tha 23rd day of January, 1991, did
xnowWingly restrain Jason Scott, & human

and

in the name and by the authority of the State of
accusa the defendant(s) of the

kalng;

| the dtate of Washington.

TFH/cia

CONTRARY TO ROW SA.40.040 and agalnst the pesace and dignity of

H.

STEWARD MENEFEE
Progecutin ttorney
r j T Harber County
BY:

J ¥. WHEELBER -
o

r
y Prosacuting Attorney
WSBA §16536

M. NTEWARD HEHEFEER
FAGRLELTIRG ATTORKET
B0 BOK TR
pRaE HahBon SOt DRURTRGLEL
WOHTI AHD; WAIEINATSRN hEdhd
THLEEHGHE Wl Bakann

[ ——



RICK ROSS CONSULTANT

January 28, 1994

Judge David Foscue

Grays Harbor Superior Court
P.0. Box 711

Montesano, WA. 98563

Dear Judge Foscue:

It seems important to share some thoughts with you now that
the trial is over. Your rulings did appear political in
nature, a fearful reaction to pressure from religious
fanatics and cult groups. Perhaps, Yyou also had the
self-important idea that somehow your legal opinions would
set precedent. However, there will be no rveview and little
interest, other than the cult groups who will use you as an
example of their power and influence.

I am sickened by your sentencing of my former codefendants.
They are both fine men who tried to save Jason Scott's life
and are hardly "mercenaries." You again pandered to the
cults in this matter. First time offenders convicted of
misdemeanors hardly deserve thirty days in jail and two
yeara probation. They would have been acquitted if the jury
had decided their fate. However, they 1lost ‘faith in
receiving justice in your court.

In the coming months the corruption of the county attorney's
office, the perjury of Jason Scott and witness tampering by
cult groups will be exposed. I think that your actions will
always haunt you if you have a conscience. In your anxious
efforts to please extremists and extend their protection
under the first amendment you forgot your real role, to
Euarantee the consgtitutional right to a fair trial and
justice to those who enter your courtroon.

In the future you will probably be remembered, if at all,
not as an intellectual, or a legal mind, but rather as an
example of how seemingly good men go wrong. It seems to me
that you have reached the top of your career. Unless,
politics, illnew®s or death somehow raise you higher, the top.

floor of the Grayas Harbor County Courthouse sghould be your
limit.

Sincerely,

KSR e



RICK ROSS CONSULTANT

February 20, 1994

Judge David Foscue

Grays Harbor Superior Court
P.0O. Box 711

Montesano, WA. 98563

Dear Judge Foscue:

Enclosed are some articles for your review. The facts are
coming out more and more. People will want to know why
special treatment was afforded to cult groups in your court.

Also, to question specifically the protection you provided
for the Church of Scientology.

Cloeing remarks that I made in your courtroom were carried
by the Associated Press wire service across the country.
Other news services e.g. National and International Religion
Reports ran articles about the verdict. It seems a letter I
submitted to the Daily World was also run.

By the way, Glen Barton attended court proceedings against
deprogrammers in Montana (they were also acquitted). He is
listed in the Eastside Weekly article as the "Director of
Religious Affairs of the Church of Scientology
International." In The Daily World (January 11, 1994) Barton
is quoted as "representing the Deprogramming Survivors."

Hopefully, in the near future more questions will be asked
by the media and others about this court case and you will

have an opportunity to explain yourself. I look forward to
that process.

Sincerely,

<~




The Nation.

October 18, 1993

'BEAT THE DEVIL.

Waco Revisited

The Justice and Treasury Departments are now releasing
their reports on the circumstances leading up to the incinera-
tion of eighty-six Branch Davidians outside Waco on April 19.
The Treasury’s Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms,
which is taking the main fall, deserves everything it gets, but
should be joined in the scapegoats’ gallery by the F.B.I. and
by Attorney General Janet Reno.
~ One of the outside experts recruited by the Justice and Trea-
sury Departments to review the case and peruse internal
documents was Professor Nancy Ammerman of the Candler

School of Theology at Emory University. Am-

merman gives short shrift to the AT.F., which

made no effort to solicit dispassionate insight

into the nature of the Davidians before raiding

their compound in February and thus instigating

the grim drama. The F.B.1. was similarly brusque,

. resolving by mid-March to have no more truck

with “Bible babble”: make no effort, that is, to comprehend

Koresh’s frame of reference. The F.B.1. did consult one per-
son in religious studies, Glenn Hilburn, chairman of the re-
ligion department at Baylor. He offered sound counsel but
was ignored.

* But from the F.B.1.'s own Behavioral Science Services Unit,
Pete Smerick along with Special Agent Mark Young cautioned
their superiors that a “show of force will draw David Koresh
and his followers closer together in the ‘bunker mentality’ and
they would rather die than surrender” They too were ignored,
in favor of the bureau’s special agents in charge—people,
Ammerman says, who considered religious beliefs “usually
a convenient cover for criminal activity.”

Ammerman also confirms, after scrutinizing AT.F. and
F.B.IL records, that career “cult hunters” were deeply involved
in the government’s assaults. She says a man named Rick Ross
“clearly had the most extensive access to both agencies of any
person on the ‘cult expert’ list and he was apparently listened
to more attentively.”” The F.B.I. interview report noted that
Ross has a personal hatred for all religious cults and would
willingly aid law enforcement in an attempt to “destroy a
cult.” The AT.F,, Ammerman discloses, “interviewed the per-
sons [Ross] directed them to and evidently used information
from those interviews in planning their February 28 raid.””

Now, Ross is a man who boasts of having performed many
“deprogrammings’’ down the years. He was frequently inter-
viewed by the media as an “‘expert” during the siege, and in-
deed figured prominently in the Waco Tribune-Herald series
on the Branch Davidians that started February 27. On Feb-
ruary 26 the paper informed the A T.F. that the series would
begin the next day, a Saturday. The AT.F. duly launched its
raid on Sunday, in the shadow of the Tribune-Herald's series
headline, “The Sinful Messiah.” v

Ross acquired at least some of his assertions about the
group from deprogramming sessions in mid-1992 with a for-
mer member of the Branch Davidians, David Block, con-
ducted in the Los Angeles home of Priscilla Coates, head of
the Southern California chapter of the Cult Awareness Net-

work. Evidently Ross or someone else at the sessions trans-
mitted Block’s assertions about the Waco compound to fed-
eral law enforcement. Block’s name as a source is all over the

. initial search warrant presented by the AT.F. to 2 Waco judge.

So the sponsors of the first bloody, entirely unnecessary as-
sault on the Branch Davidians included people—the Cult
Awareness Network and Ross—who, as Ammerman remarks
in her report to the Justice and Treasury Departments, “have
a direct ideological (and financial) interest in arousing sus-
picion and antagonism against what they call ‘cults’”’ To
such sponsors we should add the name of the Waco Tribune-
Herald.

Ross is currently facing charges of unlawful imprisonment
in the state of Washington, arising out of his forcible deten-
tion of another intended deprogramming victim. Ross has a
history of emotional disturbance and is also a convicted jewel
thief, a fact known—so Ammerman tells me—to the feds
when they used him as their prime consultant. Ross’s record
probably inspired confidence, since police and criminals in
many ways share the same psychic turf.

The relationship between the Cult Awareness Network and
such deprogrammers as Ross is inevitably murky, the network
being aware that felonies are sometimés part of the depro-
gramming menu. Another deprogrammer, Galen Kelly, who
worked in security for the network for a while, has just drawn
seven years and three months without parole for kidnapping
a woman in Maryland who, he had the mortification to dis-
cover, was merely the roommate of his intended target.

But Cynthia Kisser, executive director of the network’s na-
tional office, has called Ross “among the half dozen best de-
programmers in the country.” Priscilla Coates was quoted
alongside Ross in the February 27 Waco Tribune-Herald as
saying the Branch Davidians were “unsafe or destructive’”’ In
April, Patricia Ryan, president of the Cult Awareness Net-
work, was quoted in the Houston Chronicle as saying Koresh
should be arrested, using lethal force if necessary.

Ammerman makes some sensible recommendations about
treatment of religious groups, which could usefully be studied
by the press as well as the Justice and Treasury Departments:

[The government agents] should have understood the perva-
siveness of religious experimentation in American history and
the fundamental right of groups like the Davidians to prac-
tice their religion. . . . They should have understood that many
new religious movements do indeed ask for commitments that
seem abnormal to most of us, and these commitments do
mean the disruption of “normal” family and work lives. . . .
They should also understand that the vast majority of those
who make such commitments do so voluntarily. The notion
of “cult brainwashing” has been thoroughly discredited in the
academic community. . . .

And what of Attorney General Janet Reno?

Did one have to be an academic “expert,” like Professor
Ammerman, to understand what a religious group might do
under pressure? Does one have to be a military “expert” to
understand that the firing of CS gas into a house full of chil-
dren is a bad idea? The ultimate irony is that Reno emerged
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from the Waco holocaust with enhanced reputation, as if
“taking responsibility” is such a rare moral commodity in
American political life that it has to be rewarded, however de-
ficient the action for which that responsibility is assumed.

One chilling bottom line is that the deprogramming strat-
egies of the Cult Awareness Network are highly reminiscent
of the strategies used by Reno on supposed child-abusers,
breaking Ileana Fuster and trying to break Bobby Fijnje, co-
ercing them toward mental disintegration.

Women in the News :

The grotesque U.N. mission in Somalia, entirely supervised
by the United States, owes a measure of its descent into hom-
icidal mayhem to none other than April Glaspie, the State De-
partment official whose famous July 1990 exchange with Sad-
dam Hussein may have prompted him to think the United
States would be complaisant toward his invasion of Kuwait.

After a time working for Madeleine Albright, ambassador
to the U.N., Glaspie became senior adviser to the U.N. mis-
sion in Somalia. In this capacity she “openly manifested sym-
pathy for one of Aidid’s most important opponents . .. and
was less than discreet about her hostility to Aidid.”

The quote is from Professor Tom Farer, writing in The
Washington Post about his investigation, commissioned by
U.N. mission head Adm. Jonathan Howe, into the origins of
the June 5 ambush of Pakistani troops. This was the open-
ing round in a U.N. retaliatory escalation that led to the
machine-gufining to death from U.S. Cobra gunships of up
to seventy-five Somali elders, religious leaders, a pregnant
woman and children at a political meeting on July 12, and the
later, similar slaughter of over a hundred Somali men, women
and children on September 9.

At the start of June the U.N. planned to inspect Aidid’s

arms dumps, also the radio station he controlled. Glaspie was

asked to give the go-ahead for this inspection. The U.N. mes-
senger found her at the airport, about to leave the country.
(As U.S. Ambassador to Iraq, she similarly departed on the
eve of the invasion.) She glanced at the piece of paper setting
forth U.N. intentions and said, “I approve this.”

Aidid, warned by the U.N. that the inspection was to take
place, was apparently mindful of Glaspie’s public expressions
of hostility to him and construed the impending inspection
as a direct attempt to destroy his power. An ambush was laid,
twenty-four Pakistani troops killed and the U.N.’s vendetta

against Aidid truly launched. -

" Inthe face of public disquiet, the Clinton Administration
may be reconsidering the Somalia mission. I trust that those
in the American human rights community originally urging
intervention in Somalia will examine their political judgment
in the light of what has happened. The best source continues
to be Rakiya Omaar and Alex de Waal's group, African Rights
(11 Marshalsea Road, London SE1 1EP; 4471 403-3383). De
Waal returned from a trip in the early summer to report that
Belgian troops round Kismayu had killed at least 200 Soma-
lis. De Waal’s phone jumped off the hook with calls from
Belgian journalists desperate to know whether the troops in-

volved were Flemish or Walloon. The Belgian government de-
nounced De Waal but fell silent when, on August 25, Luk
Haakens of Belgium’s Radio 1 interviewed some of the return-
ing paratroopers who volunteered—anonymously-—tales of
brutality and murder in which they or their fellows had been
involved, and said official estimates of Somalis killed by the
U.N. should be mulitiplied by a factor of four or five. I know
of someone in a U.S. Marine sniper unit, previously deployed
on a mission to Iraq, who has written to his father from Som-
alia similarly saying that casualty estimates were kept down
by demanding positive identification of all dead. It seems
clear that this mdn was part of an assassination force target-
ing Aidid and including U.S. Rangers and the Delta Force.

The London Guardian for August 19 carried a letter from
Mohammed Jama Musa reporting that his brother, a former
commissioner of police in Somalia who once worked for the
British in Aden, had been mistaken for General Aidid by
American forces. His house was raided and he was shot in the
chest, stomach and arms. When the Americans realized their
error, he was dumped in a Somali hospital in Mogadishu
(probably Digfer, attacked by U.N. troops on June 17, kill-
ing at least nine patients; the other main hospital was for-
cibly cleared, then ransacked by U.N. forces). He is now
critically ill, and his relatives cannot get a visa for him to get
care in the U.K., even though he is a pensioner of the British
government for his services in Aden.

Women in the News II

Catharine MacKinnon’s boy toy may be Jeffrey Masson,
but her horse toy is Horse Boy. She is being sued by a man
who claims her “dangerous, blooded and spirited” horse
threw him to the ground. The San Francisco Dany Journal
for August 29 reports that David Johnson is
suing MacKinnon for an incident occurring on
October 4, 1992, when he was renting MacKin-
non’s property in Half Moon Bay, south of San
Francisco. He says he had arranged to ride Mac-

Kinnon's horse and that MacKinnon had rep-

resented Horse Boy as having a “harmless” and otherwise
normal disposition. But it seems Horse Boy was inclined to
“bolt, buck, throw and charge” and promptly unseated the
novice Johnson, who fractured his hip and suffered severe
emotional distress.

Further reports filter in of MacKinnon’s performance at
the Human Rights conference in Vienna. After her speech,
outside the hall two Serbian feminists, who had been running
a hot line in Serbia for women and children victims of physi-
cal abuse, protested MacKinnon's blanket denunciation of
all Serbs. Hearing their complaints, a sympathetic woman
marched them up to MacKinnon and said that here were two
women representing the Serbian opposition and that MacKin-
non could at least acknowledge their existence. MacKinnon
turned to the Serbians and said, “If you were an effective op-
position, you wouldn’t be here. You’d be dead.” Let’s get
Horse Boy in the witness box. I bet he has a tale to tell. I as-
sume he was gelded.
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Washington, DC 20530 Iz

and

Ronald K. Noble

Assistant Secretary for Enforcement
Department of the Treasury

1500 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC

Dear Mr. Heymann and Mr. Noble:

I am enclosing herewith my report and recommendations regarding the review of events in Waco. 1
want to express my appreciation to you and to your staffs for their openness and helpfulness
throughout this process.

If you have any questions, or if I can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

Nancy ¥. Ammermiin
VISIg dCOOiEr

'
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REPORT TO THE JUSTICE AND TREASURY DEPARTMENTS
regarding law enforcement interaction with the Branch Davidians in Waco, Texas
submitted by Nancy T. Ammerman
September 3, 1993

The following report and recommendations are based largely on oral briefings conducted on July 1-
2 at the Justice Dcpartment, as well as on August 3 at the Treasury Dcpartment and at the FBI
Training Academy at Quantico. In addition, I have had access to a number of other sources. We
were supplicd with background information on many of the persons in the Investigative Support
Unit, and I was supplied with a list of thc experts consulted by the FBI during the affair. I have
consulted with academic colleagues and have reviewed a good deal of the academic literature on
New Religious Movements. Various political and lobbying groups have sent me information. I
talked with Glenn Hilburn at Baylor, and I spent two hours with Pete Smerick and Gregg McCrary
at the FBI Academy. '

I do not pretend that this represents a full accounting of what happened at Waco. That has not
been my aim. Rather, what follows attempts to assess the nature and quality of the expert advice
available to the agencies involved in this situation and to make some suggestions about how that
advice might better be utilized in the future. '

I. What information sources were available in the Waco affair?

A. The Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco and Firearms. In the months that led up to the February
28 attempted "dynamic entry" at the Branch Davidian compound, the Burcau of Alcohol, Tobacco,
and Firearms (BATF) apparently failed to solicit any social science background information about
the nature of the group with which they were dealing. BATF has no internal behavioral science
division and did not consult with any other behavioral science persons within the government. Nor
did they consult with outside persons in religious studies, sociology of religion, or psychology of
religion. There were, for instance, persons in the Baylor University Department of Religion who
had studied this particular group for much of its history; they were not consulted. Investigators
reviewing the Waco incident have repeatedly told us that BATF simply did not consult with anyone
who might be considered an "expert" on this group or groups like it.

In their attempt to build a case against the Branch Davidians, BATF did interview persons who
were former members of the group and at least one person who had "deprogrammed"” a group
member. Mr. Rick Ross, who often works in conjunction with the Cult Awareness Network

(CAN), has been quoted as saying that he was "consulted” by the BATF. My suspicion is that he
was merely one among many the BATF interviewed in its background checks on the group and on
Koresh. However, it is unclear how information gained from him was evaluated. The Network
and Mr. Ross have a direct ideological (and financial) interest in arousing suspicion and
antagonism against what they call "cults”. These same persons seem to have been major sources for
the series of stories run by the Waco newspaper, beginning February 27. It seems clear that people
within the "anti-cult" community had targeted the Branch Davidians for attention.

Although these people often call themselves "cult experts,” they are certainly not recognized as such
by the academic community. The activities of the CAN are seen by the National Council of
Churches (among others) as a danger to religious liberty, and deprogramming tactics have been
increasingly found to fall outside the law. At the very least, Mr. Ross and any ex-members he was
associated with should have been scen as questionable sources of information. Having no access to
information from the larger social science community, however, BATF had no way to put in
perspective what they may have heard from angry ex-members and cager deprogrammers.

1




B. The Federal Burcau of Investigation.

1. Outside consultants. After the failed raid, handling of the crisis passed to the Federal Bureau
of Investigation (FBI). They had a much broader array of information available, although they still
failed to consult a single person who might be recognized by the social science community as an
cxpert on the Branch Davidians or on other marginal religious movements (sometimes called
"cults”). The official list of outside experts consulted, compiled by the investigative team, includes
three persons in the field of psychiatry who have been regular consultants to the FBI on other cases
(Murray Myron, Syracuse University; Joseph Krofcheck, Yarrow Associates; Park Dietz, University
of California San Diego). From my conversations with the persons in the National Center for the
Analysis of Violent Crime (NCAVC) who worked with the negotiators at Waco, I believe that these
three persons were the most frequently consulted experts throughout the siege. Dietz assisted in
writing the profile of Koresh. Others apparently assisted in recommending strategies to the
negotiators and tacticians. ‘

It is unclear which of these consultants (if any) recommended the psychological warfare tactics
(Tibetan chants, sounds of rabbits dying, rock music, flood lights, helicopters hovering, etc.). None
of the persons associated with NCAVC with whom I have talked claims to have favored these
tactics, but no one was willing to say who recommended them or how the decision was made to use
them.

Three other persons were apparently called in for specific, limited, consultations. Because he was
examining the children who were leaving the compound, Bruce Perry, a Baylor Medical School
psychiatrist, was consulted. A pastor in Virginia (Douglas Kittredge) was consulted on one
occasion, offering assistance in interpreting the scriptural references being used by Koresh. And
CBN talk show host Craig Smith was consulted regarding the airing of the Koresh tape.

Finally, one person in religious studies was consulted by the Bureau--Glenn Hilburn, chair of the
Religion Department at Baylor. He was contacted about one week after the initial raid and was
asked especially for help in interpreting Koresh’s ideas about the "seven seals." He offered ths
negotiators basic tools for interpreting scripture (a set of commentaries and concordances) and
consulted with them on a number of occasions about various biblical interpretations. While
Hilburn is a reputable scholar in church history, he would never claim to be an expert on the
Davidians or on other marginal religious movements. He often offered to help the Bureau get in
touch with others who might offer such expertise, but he was not asked to do so. For instance,
Prof. Bill Pitts, also of the Baylor faculty, had studied the history of the Davidians, but was not
consulted by the FBI. Nor did they seek Prof. Hilburn’s help in locating others, outside the Baylor
faculty, who might help.

In my judgment, this list of outside consultants is sorely wanting. The psychiatrists who were most
intimately involved are undoubtedly experienced in helping the FBI understand "the criminal mind."
This however, was a very different situation, and we have no evidence that any of these men had
background or experience in dealing with a high-commitment religious group. The only experts in
religion that were consulted lacked the kinds of expertise necessary for understanding the dynamics
of a marginal religious movement.

One of the dilemmas faced by the Waco negotiators was the problem of assessing the potential
helpfulness of outside experts. Agents on the scene in Waco described their situation as
information overload. One person referred to the threat of "fax meltdown.” Not only were they
receiving constant information about the situation as it unfolded, they were also being bombarded
with offers of help from all sorts of unknown sources. Many of these were judged to be "crack
pots." Others were probably legitimate and potentially helpful persons. However, the persons on
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the scene had no way (o cvaluatc this information. With no one in the scholarly community at their
disposal to help evaluatc the credentials and experience of these persons, they were forced simply
to discount everything they reccived.

Conclusions. Since the BATF consulted no outside experts and the FBI consulted only a limited
roster, both agencies were then relying primarily on their own internal capabilities. As wc have
seen, BATF has no intcrnal behavioral science personnel. As a result, all of their planning was
based on building up a legal case against the group and planning a para-military type assault on the
compound. In that atmosphere, I believe, it became easy to lose sight of the human dynamics of
the group involved, to plan as if the group were indeed a military target. It also discouraged the
BATF from secking other forms of intervention in the group. Quite simply, the agency pursued the
line of action--armed assault--for which they were best equipped. If they had been better equipped
to pursue interventions based on human science advice, they might have acted differently.

2. Internal advice. The FBI, on the other hand, did have solid Behavioral Science advice
available internally. The Behavioral Science Services Unit, especially its Investigative Support
Unit, at the NCAVC, houses a number of people with considerable working knowledge of marginal
religious groups. For instance, Gregg McCrary, in the Criminal Investigative Analysis subunit, is
well-informed in this area and was on the scene in Waco throughout much of the siege. While no
one there would be considered an "expert” by the usual standards of scholarship (academic
credentials and publication, that is), several have done sufficient reading to have a good basic
knowledge of the nature of religious groups. They know that religious beliefs have to be taken
seriously, and they know that it takes more than understanding an individual personality to
understand the dynamics of a group. They could benefit from additional training and from access
to reliable outside experts (about which I will say more below), but they had the basic social
science knowledge they needed to analyze this situation.

In the early days of the siege, Pete Smerick (along with outside consultant Park Dietz) put together
a profile of David Koresh and of the group. They used materials gathered by the BATF, but knew
they should weigh carefully the reports from former members.

Based on that assessment, Smerick (with Special Agent Mark Young) wrote on March 5, in a memo
to his superiors (the Special Ageats in Charge at Waco and people in headquarters in Washington),

-..For years he [Koresh] has been brainwashing his followers for this battle [between
his church and his enemics], and on February 28, 1993, his prophesy came true.

As of March S, 1993, Koresh is still able to convince his followers that the
end in near and, as he predicted, their enemies will surround them and kil them.

In traditional hostage situations, a strategy which has been successful has
been negotiations coupled with ever increasing tactical presence. In this situation,
however, it is believed this strategy, if carried to excess, could eventually be counter
productive and could result in loss of life.

Every time his followers sense movement of tactical personnel, Koresh

. validates his prophetic warnings that an attack is f orthcoming and they are going to
have to defend themselves. According to his teachings, if they die defending their
faith, they will be saved.

On March 7, Smerick and Young listed the psychological warfare tactics available to the FBI, but
cautioned that these options "would also succeed in shutting down negotiations and convince
Koresh and his followers that the end is near." On March 8, the same pair cautioned that the Mt.
Carmel compound was for the Davidians sacred ground, something they were likely to defend
against the intrusions of people they considered evil (the federal government). Summarizing the
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arguments of pcople using primarily "criminal” or psychological catcgories to explain Koresh, they
wrote, : '

It has been speculated that Koresh’s religious beliefs are nothing more than a con,

in order to get power, money, women, etc., and that a strong show of force (tanks,
APC’s, weapons, etc.) will crumble that resolve, causing him to surrender. In fact,
the opposite very wcll may also occur, whereby the presence of that show of force

will draw David Koresh and his followers closer together in the "bunker mentality”,
and they would rather die than surrender.

They go on to detail the way in which FBI actions are playing into the prophetic scheme of Koresh,
warning that "we may unintentionally make his prophesy [death, or the "fourth seal"} come true, if
we take what he perceives to be hostile or aggressive action.” They note that "mass suicide ordered
by Koresh cannot be discounted.” Then, following their logic through to its conclusion, they point
out that "one way to take control away from him is to do the opposite of what he is expecting.
Instead of moving towards him, we consider moving back. This may appear to be appeasement to
his wishes, but in reality, it is taking power away from him. He has told his followers that an
attack is imminent, and this will show them that he was wrong."

It is my belief that this understanding of Koresh’s ideas was basically accurate and that their
assessment of his likely behavior was on target. While outside experts might have refined this
picture and added nuance to the assessment, the basic direction of the FBI’s own behavioral
analysts was sound.

I1. How was behavioral science advice utilized in Waco?

Clearly the advice of these agents was not heeded. Why? The answer to that question takes us
first to the structure of command and second to the culture and training of the Bureau itself.

Most basically, people representing the Behavioral Sciences Unit were out-ranked and out-
numbered. Within the command structure, people from the Hostage Rescue Team carried more
weight than people who were negotiators. In addition, it is evident that people from the tactical
side were simply trusted more and more at home with the Special Agents in Charge (SACs) in
Waco.

As I understand it, the SACs for this operation were chosen on the basis of proximity, not on the
basis of any special training or experience for an operation like this. Understandably, their primary
skills are in the apprehension of criminals and in the management of personnel. Under normal
circumstances, they can count on key assistance in apprehension of criminals from their SWAT
teams and from Hostage Rescue Teams, and predictably they listened most closely to people who
spoke the language of forceful tactics. This was the territory in which they were most comfortable,
possibly the direction in which they perceived the most potential rewards. There was an
understandable desire among many agents in Waco to make Koresh and the Davidians pay for the
harm they had caused. Arguments for patience or unconventional tactics fell on deaf ears,.

Those ears were deaf for a number of reasons, many of which have to do with the training and
culture of the Bureau. In all likelihood, these SACs had had no behavioral science training since
their very early days training as agents. And then, they were very unlikely to have heard anything
about religious belief systems of group dynamics. Their entire professional world has been
constructed (understandably) around understanding and out-maneuvering criminals. They think
(again, understandably) in terms of individual behavior (hencc the near exclusive focus on Koresh,
rather than on the group) and on criminal wrong-doing (hence the label sociopath for someone
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seen as dangerously at odds with society’s norms). Little, if anything, in their previous experience
prcparcd them for the kind of situation Mt. Carmel prescented them.

The tendency to discount the influence of religious beliefs and to evaluate situations largely in
terms of a leader’s individual criminal /psychological motives is, I believe, very widespread in the
Burcau. In our initial briefings with Daniels, Johnson, Wright, Noesner, and Uteg, the consensus
around the table was that when they encountered people with religious belicfs, those beliefs wcre
usually a convenient cover for criminal activity. While they were willing to consider that this case
might have been different, they were still not convinced that Koresh was anything other than a
sociopath who had duped some people into helping him carry out aggressive criminal activity. They
continued to refer to the people in the compound as hostages, failing to recognize the free choice
those people had made in following Koresh.

Behavior science advice, then, failed to get an adequate hearing. In the culture of the law
enforcement community, neither training nor experience prepares agents for taking behavioral
scientists seriously. And in the crisis situation, behavioral scientists are out-ranked and out-
numbered. As a result, those in charge dealt with this situation as if it were one more familiar to
them--a criminal committing illegal acts for personal gain for whom the threat of force is a
significant deterrent.

III. What, in hindsight, should the BATF and the FBI have taken into consideration in
dcaling with the Branch Davidians?

1. They should have understood the pervasivencss of religious experimentation in
American history and the fundamental right of groups like the Davidians to practice their
religion. On that score, they might have benefitted by reading Jon Butler’s Awash in a Sea of
Faith: Christianizing the American People (Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1990), in
which he gives a detailed portrait of the breadth of religious belief and practice in early America.
Catherine Albanese’s America: Religion and Religions (Wadsworth, 1992) does the same up
through the present. We have simply been a very religious people, and there have always been new
and dissident religious groups challenging the boundaries of toleration.

And alongside all that religious fervor and experimentation has been our First Amendment
guarantee of religious liberty. Only when there is clear evidence of criminal wrong-doing can
authorities intervene in the free exercise of religion, and then only with appropriately low levels of
intrusiveness. For a critical look at the regulatory issues raised by new and marginal religious
groups, an article by David Bromley and Thomas Robbins, "The Role of Government in Regulating
New and Nonconventional Religions" (Pp. 205-241 in The Role of Government in Monitoring
and Regulating Religion in Public Life, edited by James Wood and Derek Davis. Waco, Texas:
Baylor University Press, 1992) might have proven helpful to agents planning a raid on the Waco
compound. :

2. They should have understood that new or dissident religious groups arc often
"*millennialist® or "apocalyptic®. That is, they foresee the imminent end of the world as we know
it and the emergence of a new world, usually with themselves in leadership roles. Among the many
books and articles that would have helped agents understand such beliefs are Paul Boyer’s When
Time Shall Be No More: Prophecy Belief in Modern American Culture (Cambridge:
Harvard University Press, 1992); Susan J. Palmer and Natalie Finn's 1992 article "Coping with
Apocalypse in Canada: Experiences of Endtime" (Sociological Analysis 53(4, winter):397-415);
and Roy Wallis’s edited book Millennialism and Charisma. (Belfast: Queen’s University, 1982),
especially the chapters by Balch and by Wallis.



3. Thcy should have understood that the usual fate of new rcligious movements is quict
cxtinction through natural causes. Only a fraction of those that begin survive as a group morce
than a few years, and an even smaller fraction make it through the crisis that is precipitated by the
natural death of the leader. For helpful background on factors in the success and failure of such
groups, I would suggest the articles by Stark and by Wilson in David Bromley and Phillip
Hammond’s edited volume The Future of New Religious Movements (Macon, Georgia:
Mercer University Press, 1987).

4. They should also havc understood that new groups almost always provoke their
ncighbors. By definition, new religious groups think old ways of doing things are at best obsolete,
at worst evil. Their very reason for existing is to call into question the status quo. They defy
conventional rules and question conventional authorities. Not surprisingly, then, new groups often
provoke resistance. A number of social scientists have examined the relationship between marginal
religious groups and the surrounding society. Among the most helpful are Charles Harper and
Bryan F. Le Beau’s 1993 article, "The Social Adaptation of Marginal Religious Movements in
America." (Sociology of Religion 34(2, summer):171-192); James T. Richardson’s 1993 article
"Definitions of Cult: From Sociological-Technical to Popular-Negative” (Review of Religious
Research 34(4, June):348-356); and the book Richardson edited with Joel Best and David G.
Bromley, The Satanism Scare (New York: Aldine de Gruyter, 1991). These sources help to put
groups like the Cult Awareness Network in context. Such groups are organized "anti-cult"
responses that make predictable charges (such as child abuse and sexual "perversion”) against
groups that are seen as threatening. It is important to see that new religious groups are usually
more threatening to cherished notions about how we all ought to order our lives than to our
physical well-being.

The corollary to their provocation of neighbors is that they themselves are likely to
perceive the outside world as hostile. This almost always takes the form of rhetoric condemning
the evil ways of non-believers, and that rhetoric can sometimes sound quite violent. It may also be
supplemented by rituals that reinforce the group’s perception that they are surrounded by hostile
forces (thus reinforcing their own sense of solidarity and righteousness). It is at least possible
that rhetoric about the BATF as the Davidians’ arch-enemy, the purchase of guns, and practicing
with those guns served just such rhetorical and ritual purposes. That is, as the group talked about
the evils of the federal government and went through the ritual motions of rehearsing a
confrontation with their enemies, they may have been reinforcing their own solidarity more than
they were practicing for an anticipated actual confrontation. The irony, of course, is that their
internal group rhetoric and ritual did eventually come true.

5. They should also have understood that many new religious movements do indeed ask for
commitments that scera abnormal to most of us, and those commitments do mean the
disruption of "normal” family and work lives. Most of us are accustomed to seeing religion as
relevant only to portions of our lives, with wide areas of decision-making (from marriage partners
to what we do at work) kept neatly out of the reach of religious authorities. However, throughout
much of the world and throughout much of human history, such neat divisions have not been the
norm. People have lived in tightly-knit communities in which work, family, religion, politics, and
leisure (what there was of it) fell under one domain. Taking the long view, pot belonging to such a
community is more abnormal than belonging to one. No matter how strange such commitments
may seem to the rest of us, they are widely sought by millions of people. A number of social
scientists have written accounts of everyday life in such religious groups, and those accounts can
help readers to understand the sense of coherence and belonging that outweigh, for the believers,
any freedom of choice they give up. One such recent book is David Van Zandt’s Living in the
Children of God (Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1991).



6. They should also undcrstand that the vast majority of thosc who make such
commitmcats do so voluntarily. The notion of "cuit brainwashing" has been thoroughly
discredited in the academic community, and "cxperts” who propagate such notions in the courts
have been discredited by the American Psychological Association and the American Sociological
Association. While there may be real psychological needs that lead persons to seek such groups,
and while their judgment may indeed be altered by their participation, neither of those facts
constitutes coercion.

An review of the legal issues surrounding allegations of brainwashing can be found in
James Richardson’s 1991 article, "Cult/Brainwashing cases and freedom of religion” (Journal of
Church and State 33:55-74). Alternative views on the process of joining (and leaving) new
religious movements can be found in David Bromley and Anson Shupe’s 1986 article, "Affiliation
and Disaffiliation: A Role Theory Interpretation of Joining and Leaving New Religious
Movements” (Thought 61:197-211); Stuart Wright’s Leaving Cults (Washington: Society for the
Scientific Study of Religion, 1987); and Eileen Barker’s award-winning 1984 book The Making of
a Moonie: Choice or Brainwashing? (Oxford: Blackwell).

7. They should have understood the ability of a religious group to create an alternative
symbolic world. Ideas about "logic* as we know it simply do not hold, but that does not mean that
the group has no logic. The first dictum of sociology is "Situations perceived to be real are real in
their consequences." No matter how illogical or unreasonable the beliefs of a group seem to an
outsider, they are the real facts that describe the world through the eyes of the insider.

8. The agents should have understood that *charisma® is not just an individual trait, but a
property of the constantly-cvolving rclationship between a leader and followers. The leader
is a prophet only so long as members believe him (or her) to be so. And those beliefs are
sustained by the constant interplay between events and the leader’s interpretation of them. So long
as the leader’s interpretations make sense of the group’s experience, that leader is likely to be able
to maintain authority. These interpretations are not a fixed text, but a living, changing body of
ideas, rules, and practices. Meaning emerges daily in the interaction of sacred texts (in this case
the Bible), events, and the imagination of leader and followers. Only in subsequent generations are
religious prescriptions likely to become written orthodoxies.

Among the sources that might have helped in understanding charisma is Timothy Miller’s
cdited.book, When Prophets Die: The Postcharismatic Fate of New Religious Movements
(Albany: SUNY Press, 1991). In his introductory essay in that volume, J. Gordon Melton writes
that the first generation of a new group is "a time of experimentation and rapid change. The leader
must discover the right elements to combine in a workable program, generate solutions to
unexpected obstacles, choose and train capable leaders, and elaborate upon the initial ideas or
vision that motivated the founding of the group....The group formally or informally gives feedback
in the form of approval or disapproval of the leader’s actions. The most successful leaders are
continually adjusting and reacting to that feedback" (p. 11). Other essays in that book examine the
relationship between groups and their charismatic founders, from the Shakers to the Moonies.

Understanding that the relationship between leaders, followers, and practices is a fluid one
might have led agents to take more seriously the possibility of suggesting alternative apocalyptic
interpretations to Koresh. Such a strategy was suggested (and attempted) by Houston theologian
Phillip Arnold and University of North Carolina professor James Tabor. In "The Waco Tragedy:
An Autobiographical Account of One Attempt to Avert Disaster” (forthcoming in From the
Ashes: Making Sense of Waco, edited by James R. Lewis and published by Rowman and
Littlefield), Tabor writes that after considerable study of the interpretations being offered by
Koresh, they concluded that alternative scenarios--still within his system of symbols--were possible.
They hoped that he might reinterpret the "little season"” of Revelation 6:11 as an extended period of
time, that lte might see himself as the writer of the "little book” mentioned in Revelation 10:11--




and, most importantly, that hc might use those reinterpretations to ask for a delay while he wrote
down his insights about the seven seals. Koresh’s response to their radio broadcast and tape
indicated that he indeed had taken up this intcrpretive possibility and had begun to work on a
book. In a letter sent out on April 14, hc said that "as soon as I can see that people like Jim Tabor
and Phil Arnold have a copy, I will come out and then you can do your thing with this beast." That
he was indeed working on such a book is demonstrated by the existence of a computer disk brought
out by one of the survivors who had been typing for him on the day before the fire. Ironically, it
was the actions of the FBI on April 19 that evidently forccd Koresh to return to his earlier
interpretation of the texts--namely that the next event in the unf olding prophetic calendar would be
death for his group, rather than a delay while he wrote his book.

8. And, of course, as soon as the possibility of mass martyrdom became evident, they
should have reviewed the events of Jonestown. There, too, an exceptionally volatile religious
group was pushed over the edge, inadvertently, by the actions of government agencies pushed
forward by "concerned families”. The best account of the Jonestown tragedy is John R. Hall’s 1987
book, Gone from the Promised Land: Jonestown in American Cultural History (New
Brunswick: Transaction). Also helpful is David Chidester’s 1988 account of the religious dynamics
of the People’s Temple, Salvation and Suicide: An Interpretation of Jim Jones, the
Peoples Temple and Jonestown. (Bloomington, Ind.: Indiana University Press).

9. Finally, they should have understood that any group under sicge is likely to turn inward,
bonding to cach other and to their leader even more strongly than before. Outside pressure
only consolidates the group’s view that outsiders are the enemy. And isolation decreases the
availability of information that might counter their internal view of the world. In this case, the
federal government already enjoyed a particularly condemned place in the group’s worldview.
Taking that fact seriously might have changed the minds of federal agents who argued that using
outside negotiators is always a mistake. Persons other than federal agents might have been able to
assume a genuine third-party position in this case, translating and mediating between Koresh and
the outside world. It is ironic to note that the one similar situation the FBI could point us to, in
which they successfully negotiated a peaceful surrender, involved the use of an outside negotiator.

In this case, federal negotiators had a difficult time convincing Koresh to take them
seriously. But even when they did, their talking strategies were constantly undermined by the
actions of the tactical teams. Any success negotiators had in winning the group’s confidence was
completely undermined by continuing application of tactical pressure. If such pressure had been a
specific response to a specific failure of Koresh to respond to negotiating proposals, it might have
had some coherent psychological effect. However, such was never the case., Pressure from
encroaching tanks, psychological warfare tactics, and the like, continually worked at Cross-purposes
with the negotiating strategies. This outside pressure only increased the paranoia of the group and
further convinced them that the only person they could trust was Koresh.

IV. What outside experts might they have consulted?

I'am attaching to this report a copy of a letter from the Society for the Scientific Study of Religion
which includes several names and addresses of people recognized by that academic organization as
experts on new, marginal, and high-commitment religious groups. I am also including in that

appendix several additional names of persons whose research I bave found helpful.

In addition, to help in locating experts and in evaluating the credentials of volunteer "experts”, law
enforcement agencies can turn to the American Sociological Association, the American
Psychological Association, the American Psychiatric Association, the Association for the Sociology
of Religion, or the Society for the Scientific Study of Religion.



V. Conclusions. Knowing thesc things might not have changed the outcome in Waco. It is
unclear to me whether any ncgotiating strategy could have succceded in getting most or all of the
members to lcave the compound. However, paying attention to thesc basic facts about the nature
of religious groups would at lcast have enabled federal agents to have a clearer picture of the
situation they were in. They were not in a hostage rescue situation. They were in a tragic stand-
off with a group for whom they were already the enemy foretold to destroy them.

VI. Recommendations. In order for this sort of thinking to become available in future
situations, several modes of access seem important.

1. Basic training. The training for all agents should include units in the behavioral sciences and
units that give attention to the nature of political and religious groups. These units should
emphasize both the rights of such groups to exist unhindered and the characteristics of high-
commitment groups that may be relevant to future efforts at law enforcement. Such units should
be aimed not so much as making every agent an expert as at sensitizing agents to the complex
human dimensions of the situations in which they may find themselves. When they hear behavioral
scientists advising them later, it will not be the first time they have heard such voices in the law
enforcement community.

2. Advanced training. Incidents like Waco are, fortunately, relatively rare. Not everyone in
federal law euforcement needs to be an expert on such situations. However, it appears that there is
a need for a standing group of specialists in managing this sort of crisis. Rather than turning to
whoever happens to be the local SAC, the FBI (and similar federal agencies) should have a small
corps of crisis managers available. These persons should have received advanced training both in
the various tactical measures at their disposal and in the insights available to them from the
behavioral sciences.

3. Training and ecxpertisc for other federal agencies. An expanded Behavioral Sciences unit,
perhaps not lodged in a single agency, might make a broader pool of behavioral science
information available on a regular basis to all federal law enforcement agencies. I was particularly
struck.by the fact that ATF has no such unit. No one ever had the responsibility of imagining what
the people in the compound were like, how they might be thinking, etc. With dozens of federal law
enforcement agencies, it would not be cost effective to set up behavioral science units in each one,
but all of them need such expertise available to them.

4. A broader pool of "experts® who can be consulted. Not all sorts of expertise are needed all
the time. But agencies should not be caught in a moment of crisis wondering who to call and how
to assess the credentials of those who call them. It is essential that behavioral scientists inside
federal law enforcement and behavioral scientists in the academic community forge expanded
working ties. People in law enforcement have for too long distrusted the "ivory tower” position of
academics who do not have to make "real world" decisions. They have too long insisted that only
someone who is really an insider to law enforcement can give them advice. For their part,
academics have for too long discounted the experience and wisdom of persons working in law
enforcement because it did not come in standard academic packages. It is my sense that this
incident provides an opportune moment for overcoming both those problems. Law enforcement
people are more aware than ever of the need for additional insight and training, and academics are
more awire of their obligation to the public.

That new cooperation might take a number of forms. The various training facilities for
federal law enforcement might host a-series of consultations in which a small group of academics
and a small group of agents work together for 2-3 days on problems and potential problems facing
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law enforcement. Academics, for their part, might organizc scssions at annual professional
mcetings at which such questions are raised and to which law enforcement people are invited. In
addition, pcople teaching in the various academies should be encouraged to read morc widely and
to draw in outside experts whenever possible. Such on-going collaboration would have the benefit
of acquainting the two communities with each other so that each would be better prepared for
cooperation in a time of crisis.

Most concretely, it is essential that federal law enforcement develop an expanded list of
experts on which it can call. These people need not be on contract. They simply need to be people
the agencies already know to be legitimate, reliable, and willing to cooperate with them. The sorts
of activities I am suggesting above would aid in the development of such a list. In addition, the
various professional associations could also be helpful. It is essential that persons in federal law
enforcement use this occasion to think pro-actively about the kinds of situations they are likely to
cncounter in the future and to seek out now the expertise they will need in confronting those
situations.

VI. A last word.

Finally, the presence of expert knowledge is of no use if behavioral scientists are kept marginal to
the actual decision-making being done. For knowledge about human behavior to have any effect,
scientists must be involved early and often. They must have at least as much "clout” in a situation
as the person commanding the f irepower. And, it is my sense that it may be important for the
behavioral scientists to have some autonomy, to be something of an outside eye. Once a team of
enforcement persons has begun to formulate a plan for dealing with a group, that plan is likely to
take on a life of its own. The same dynamics that hold the religious group together also hold the
enforcement group together. They are as determined to stick together against their "enemy"” as is
the group they are facing. Having a built-in *yellow flag” can sometimes avoid catastrophe.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

WESTERN DISTRYICT OF WASHINGTON

JASON SCOTT,

Plaintiff, JURY DEMANDED

vs.

RICK ROSS, a/k/a RICKEY ALLAN
ROSS, MARK WORKMAN, CHARLES
SIMPSON, CLARK ROTROFF, CULT
AWARENESS NETWORK, A California
Non~Profit Corporation, AND JOHN
DOE 1 - JOHN DOE 20,

- Defendants.
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COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES FROM
VIOLATION IGHTS

Plaintiff, JASON SCOTT, alleges:
Jurisdiction and Venue

1. Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to
(a) 28 U.S.C. § 1343(a) (1) and this Court’s supplenental
Jurisdietion over six related state law claims pursuant to 28
U.S.C.§ 1367(a): and (b) 28 U.S.C. §1332(a). Venue is proper
under 28 U.S8.C. § 1391(b) in that a substantial) part of the
events giving rise to plaintiff’s claims occurred in this
district.

2. This action is to recover damages pursuant td 42

U.8.C. § 1985(3) which prohibits conspiracies to deprive any

person or class of persons of the equal protection of the laws
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the United States or of the equal rights, privileges and
immunitles of a citlzen of the United States. FPurther, it is an
action between plaintiff, a citizen of the State of Washington,
and defendants, citizens of the States of Arizona and Xllinois.
The amount in controversy in this dispute exceeds $50,000.
NATURE OF THE ACTION

3. This action arises out of the kidnapping-for-hire,
abduction, restraint and unlawful confinement of plaintiff Jason
Scott ("Scott") by defendants, for the purpose of forcing Scott -
to renounce his religious beliefs. As heresinafter alleged in
full, in January, 1991, defendants forcibly abducted Scott from
Kirkland, Washington; transported him, bound and gagged, to Ocean
Shores, Washington: held Scott captive for 5 days and 5 nights,
in a room with barred windowa and guards at tho doore; and
subjected Scott to a nearly-constant barrage of verbal abuse
intended to force Scott to renounce his faith. Scott’s captors
intended to transport Scott from the State of Washington to
Albany, Ohio, to continue the abuse; Scott managed to ascapoe from
his kidnappers only by convincing them that he had been
"persuaded® by their physical and mental abuse to give up his
freely-chosen religious beliefs.

PARTIES AND VENUE

4. Plaintiff Jason Scott 1s, and at all times relevant to
this complaint was, over the age of 18, a citizen of the United
States and a resident of Bellevue, Washington. Scott is a member
of a Christian religioues organization known as The Life
Tabernacle Church, and, as such, believes in its principles and

teachings., The Life Tabernacle Church is a member of the United
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Pentecostal Churches.

5. Defendant Rick Ross, u/k/a/ Rickey Allan Ross, is a
resident of Phoenix, Arizona and is engaged in the business of
“"deprogramming, " ie., the kidnapping, abduction, restraint and
confinement of individuals, in an attempt to force them to
renounce their religious beliefs, and to adhere to different
religious beliefs acceptable to defendants.

6. Defendant Mark Workman is a resident of Flagstaff,
Arizona. At all times mentioned herein, defendant Workman acted
as an agent and accomplice of defendant Ross and assisted him in
committing the acts hereinafter alleged.

7. Defendant Charles Simpson is & resident of Phoenix,
Arizona. At all times mentioned herein, defendant Simpsoﬁ acted
as an agent and accomplice to defeondant Ross and aseisted him in
committing the acts hereinafter alleged.

8. Defendant Clark Rotroff is a resident of Flagstaff,
Arizona. At all times mentioned herein, defendant Rotroff acted
as an agent and accomplice of defendant Rosg and assisted him in
committing the acts hereinafter alleged. .

Q, Defendant Cult Awareness Network ("CANY) is a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
California with its principal placc of bueinese in Barringten,
Illinois. CAN attempts to conceal the location of its principal
place of business in Barrington, Illinois by using as its address
a maildrop in Chicago, Illinois.

10. Defendant CAN definee iteelf in its articles of
incorporation as an educational, non-profit corporation. 1In,

fact, however, it is a hate group, a propaganda and lobbying
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machine which has the actual purpose of destroying those
religious groups with which it diéagrees and which it disparages
as "destructive cults." CAN’s definition of “destructive cult"
is broad enocugh to encompass virtually any group and would
embrace within its terms groups such as the United States Marine
Corps and Qirtually any football team. CAN’s list of such
"cults" inciudes literally hundreds of minority religions of
which the present leaders of CAN disapprove. CAN disparages thef
Life Tabernacle Church as a "destructive cult." '

‘ 11l. To achieve its true purpose of destroyinq_religions
with which CAN’s hierarchy does not'agrée, CAN ﬁés sought by |
every possible means, legal or not, to eliminate from society
religious organizations it deems to'be'"déstfuctive cults." CAN
engages in media and lobbying caméaigns_to publicize false and
malicious statements which are designed to deceive the general
public about the hundreds of minority religions which it has

branded *"destructive cults." CAN-affiliated "deprbér&mmers"
including, inter alia, defendant Ross, will, for a hefty fae,
charged to a family terrified by CAN'’s prbpaganda, kidnap or
otherwise detain a member of a minority religion and attempt toﬁv?'
"persuade" him or her, usiﬁg tactics such as kidnapping,
violence, false imprisonment, and duasi-hypnotic repetition of
disinformation supplied by CAN, to renounce his or her faith.
All of these tactics, and more, were used on Scott.

12. At all times herein mentioned, défendant Ross acted as
an agent of defendant Cult Awareness Network, and in'cémmittiﬁg

the acts hereinafter alleged, acted with the full and complete

authorization, knowledge, consent and ratification of defendant
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Cult Awareness Network.

13. Derendants John Doe 1 - John Doe 20 partlicipated alony
with the named defendants in the conduct alleged herein.
Plaintiff will amend this complaint to allege their true names
and capacities when ascertained. Plaintiff is informed and
believ;s and therefore alleges that each of these fictitiously
named defendants is responsible in some manner fof the
occurrences herein alleged, and each of them proximately caused
plaiﬁtiff's injuries as herein alleged.

. . sac ound

14. Plaintiff is informed and beiieves.and therefore
alleges, that in or abouthanuéry; 1991, Kathy Toﬁkin, mother of
plaintiff Scott, and a practicing memberfbf the‘Life Tabernacle
Church, was persuaded by representatives of CAN that she should
ieave.the Life Tabernacle church and denounce it as a "cult."
Ms. Tonkiﬂ's three sons, includiné plaintiff, were not initially
persuaded by CAN‘s propaganda. Plaintiff is informéd‘and
believes and therefore alleges, that CAN’s represontaﬁivcs
thereafter advised Ms. Tonkin to contact Rick Ross, and urged her;="
to hire him. The CAN representatives were aware that Ross had in-
the past used force, abduction, kidnapping, and imprisonment to
"perguade" persons to donounce their faiths. These
representatives knew or should have known that, by recommending

Ross to Ms. Tonkin, they were ensuring that plaintiff would

suffer the harm hereinafter alleged. Frightened and convinced by

CAN’c nagative disinformation, Me. Tonkin agraaed to pay, and did
pay, defendants $27,000 to commit the tortious and illegal acts i
set forth below. '
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15. 1In or about January, 1991, defendants, and each of
them, made plans to, and did in fact travel from Arizona to
Washington, for the purpeose of kidnapping andvabducting plaintiff?
scott. ' _ _

16. After arriving in the State of Washihgton, defendants,
and each of them, traveled to a house located at 12908 N.E. 78th
Place in Kirkland, Washington, where they’waited for plaintiff
8cott to arrive on January 18, 1991.

17. When plaintiff arrived at the house in Kirkland,
washington in the early evening 6f'J$nuary 18, 19921, deféndants
Workman, Simpson and Rotroff jumped on plaintiff and wrestled him
to the ground. They dragged plaintiff inside the house, down a
set of stairs, and restrained him with handcuffs. Then, at the
direction of defendant Ross, Workﬁan, Simpson and Rotroff dragged
plaintiff outside through the sliding back door of the house, -
across a cement patio, and into a waiting van. When plaintiff
resisted entering the van, defendant Ross helped the other three
individual defendants to shove plaintiff into the back of the
van, tearing plaintiff’s hands off of the door handle to which
plaintiff clung in a desperate attempt to resist abduction.

18. . Inside the van, defendants, and each of thenm,
restrained plaintiff face down. Roﬁghly ordering plaintiff to
shut up and stop praying, they tied plaintiff’s ankles with a
nylen strap, and gagged him by placing a 2-inch wide strip of
duct tape across his face from ear to ear.

19. Defendante, and each of them, transported plaintiff in
the van for some hours, preventing plaintiff from ascertaining:

his travel route by pinning him to the van’s floor and blocking
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his view out either the back or front window. Enroute,
defendants treated the bewlldered and térrified plaintiff to:
horrifying Vietnam "torture stories.®* Plaintiff felt his hands
go cold and nﬁmb from the tight pressure of thé handcuffs. His
back, legs and upper body were bruiesed and sore from the dragging
he had enduring across floors, stairs and a~cemen£ patio.

20, Eventually the van stopped, at an isolated lécafion
unknown at the time to plaintiff, but which he later learned was
located in Ocean Shores, Washington. flaintiff was threatened
not to make any “stupid moves," and his ankle restraints were
loosened just enough to permit him to walk into the isoléted' ’
house, with one defendant holding the nylon strap as a "leash"
and another holding tightly to the handcuffs which'held
plaintiff’s hands and arms pinned.

2l. Inside the house, defendénts, and each of fhem, forced
plaintiff up the stairs and into é bathroom. Plaintiff was
restrained in a stall shower. His handcuffs were loosened,
leaving dark, awollen rings around his wrists. Dlaintiff waaz
forced by defendants to =it in the bathroom’s shower or bathtub
while another room was "prepared" for him. |

22. When defendants escorted plaintiff into the room they
had prepared, he found himself in é room containing two double
beds, dressers, and nightstands. All of the drawers had been
renoved from the dressers and_nightstands. Thick nylon straps
had been placed over the windows in a mesh-like pattern. The
room containad no telephone. When plaintiff took off his shoes,
they were confiscated. The room had two doors, but each was

guarded by one of the defendants.
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23. Defendant Ross informed plaintiff that he had been
kidnapped for the purpose of forcing him to laave.the Life
Tabernacle Church by "ohangingvhis nind." Ross told plaintiff
that the process of forcibly changing piaintiff's nind would be
as hard as plaintiff chose to make it. Plaintiff demanded that
he be permitted to call the police. Ross refused, and threatened
that if plaintiff “caused any trouble, " he would be ‘handcuffed to
the bed. Plaintiff’s assertion that he was eighteen and entitled |
to choose his religious beliefs was ignored. Ross then proceeded
to ridicule plaintiff about plaintiff’s beliefs, his church, his |-
pastor. Ross then began verbally assaulting plaintiff, degrading
plaintiff’s chosen methods of worship, the doctrinal beliefs of:
the Life Tabernacle Church, and'pléintiff's béliefs in God, the
Bible, éulvation, holiness and baptism. Ross’e verbal assault
continued until late into the night. ﬁheh plaintiff.was finally ‘
permitted to sleep, a guard slept in fronﬁ 6f.each of the room’s’
two doors to prevent any escape. |

24. Prom January 18, 1991 until thuary 23, 1991,
defendants held Scott prisoner in the Ocean Shores room without
any opportunity for escape. Scott was not permitted to leave the
room, except to go to the bathroom. When he went to the
hathroom, thrae of the defondants accompanied him: two were
stationed outside each dcor to the bathroom, and a third joined
plaintiff in the bathroom. Whenever plaintiff was awake, he was
subjected to verbal ridicule and abuse by defendant Roés, or was
forced to watch an endless succession of vidaotapes, which
plaintiff is informed and believes and therefore alleges were

provided to Ross by defendant CAN, which ridiculed and degraded
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many minority religions. Plaintiff was huniliated, degraded and
abused by defendants with no hope of relief. He decided to feign
acquiescence, in the hope that his captors wouid become careless,
and give him an opportunity to escape.

25. On or about January 22, 1991, in the early evening,
plaintiff convinced his c;ptors thal he was réady to renounce his
faith. His captors permitted him to leave the room in which he
had been imprisoned, play cards, Watch television, and play ping
pong. But plaintiff was never left alone;'at least one of
defendants was always presenl Lo guard hiﬁ, And prevent'his
aescape. The ﬁightAended with Scott sleeping in his prison,
guards at the doors. | .

26. On danuarQ 23, 1991, plaintiff remdinea cooperative
with hié captors, still hoping to escape. He spent the day
forcéd to watch still more videos, this time about "New Age"
religions, and channeling. He developedﬁnausea and diarrhea. He
overheard his captors making-plans to fly him to Ohio for further
instruction, but continued his efforts to convince them that he
had fully renounced his religion. His ploy succeeded.

Defendants suggested that they all go out to dinner. Defendants,
and each of them, drove plaintiff to a restaurant in Montesanto,
Washington. At his earliest opportunity, plaintiff exéused
himself to go to the men’s room. He ran out of the front door of
the restaurant, and called the police from a telephone across the
street.

27. After committing the acts alleged in paragraphs 13 -
25, supra, defendants Ross, Rotroff, Simpson and Workman were

arrested by local authorities and were released on bail on or
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about January 24, 1991. They promptly departed the State of
Washington and have not returned slnce that time, except for
brief periocds to attend legal proceedings.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Conspiracy to Vioéate Civil

28. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in
paragraphs 1 through 27, gupxa, and realleges said paragraphs as
though set forth fully herein.

29. In or about January, 1991, defendants CAN, Ross, -
Workman, Rotroff, Simpson and John Doe 1 - John Doe 20, acting
out of an irrational hatred and invidiously discriminatory class-
based animﬁs toward the Life Tabernacle Church, and other
minority religions, and with the deliberate design, purpose and
intent to harm and injure plaintiff in his person and to deprive
him of his right to interstate travel, entered into a conspiracy
to deprive plaintiff of the equal protection of the laws of the
United States and the equal rights, privileges and immunities of
a citizen of the United States solely because of plaintiff’s
nembership in the Life Tabernacle Church, and for no other
reason. Pursuant to and in furtherance of the foregoing
conspiracy, defendants committed overt acts in furtherance

thereof, as specifically alleged in paragraphs 14 through 27,
supra.

30. As a direct and proximate result of the foregoing acts
of defendants, and each of them, plaintiff sustained grave and
severe injuries to his person and was deprived of the equal
protection of the laws of the United States and of the rights,

complaint
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privileges and immunities quaranteed to all citizens of the
United States, including, but not limited to, the right to
interstate travel and to practice and believe in the religion of
his cgoioe, namely the Life Tabernacle Church, free from force,

violence, threats, retaliation or intimidation.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Assault and Batterv) =

31. Plaintirct ingorporates by reference the allegations in
paragraphs 1 through 27, and 29 throuwgh 30, inclusive, and
realleges said paragraphs as though set forth fully herein.

32. From January 18 through January 23, 1991, inclusive,
and continuocusly during that Lime, defendants and each of them
committed numerous and repeated batteries upon plaintiff by
handouffing him, taping his mouth with duct tape, shackling
plaintiff’s leygs with nylon cord, seizing plaintiff, dragging
plaintiff down stairs and across cenrent, forcing him into a
vehicle, confining and restraining plaintiff in a building for
five days, using force and violence upon plaintiff to prevent him
from leaving the premises and by inflicting multiple cuts and
bruises upon his body.

33. Defendants’ actions alleged in paragraphs 14 - 27 above
intended to cause and did cause harmful or offensive contact
and/or apprehension by plaintiff of such contact.

J4. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ above:-
alleged conduct, plaintiff sustained physical injury, pain,
suffering and mental anguish. Plaintiff also incurred expenses
for necessary medical treatment and lost wages for the period

that he was unable to work because sf his confinnmnnt by
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defendants and/or his injuries suffered.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(False Imprisonment)

35. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in
paragraphs 1 through 27, 29 through 20, inclusive, and realleges
sald paragraphs as though set forth fully herein.

36. From January 18 through January 23, 1991, inclusive,
defendants and each of them, willfully, intentionally,
deliberafely and unlawfully confined plaintiff, first in a van,
then in a building located in Ocean Shores, Washington, and
prevented and restrained him from leaving through force, threats
ot torce, violence and intimidation, handcutffing plaintiff,
gagging his mouth with duct tape, locking the windows and doors
of the building and keeping plaintiff under 24-hour surveillance.

37. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ above-
alleged conduct, plalintirr sustained physical injury, pain,
suffering and mental anquish. Plaintiff also incurred expenses
for necessary medical treatment and lost wages for the period
that he was unable to work because of his confinement by
defendants and/or his injuries suffered.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Qutrage)

18. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allagations in

paragraphs 1 through 27, 29 through 30, 32 through 34 and 36
through 37, inclusive, and realleges said paragraphs as though
set forth fully herein.

39. As a direct and proximate result of the acts of
defendants alleged herein, plaintiff has suffered, and will
continue to suffer severe and extreme pain, anguish, distress,

Ccomplaint
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shock, fright, humiliation, fear and grief.

40. The conduct of defendants, and each of them, as alleged
herein was so ocutrageous in character and extreme in degree, that
it exceeded all possible hounds of decency and is to be regarded
as atrocious and utterly intolerable in a civilized community.

FYIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violation of Civil Rights,
49.60. seq.

41. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in
paragraphs 1 through 27, 29 through 30, 32 through 34, 36 through
37 and 39 through 40, incluasive, and roalleges caid paragraphs as
though sat forth fully herein.

42. Defendants, and each of them, undertook the actions
described, depriving plaintiff of his personal freedom,
imprisoning him, and assaulting his person, entirely because of
plaintiff’s religious beliefs, with which defendants disagreed.
This discrininatory conduct is despicable, and is barred by RCW

49.60.10 et.seq.

43. Ae a direct and proximate result of the foregoing acts
of defendants, and each of them, plaintiff sustained grave and
severe injuries to his person and was deprived of the equal
protection of the laws of the State of Washington and of the
righte, privileges and immunities guaranteed to all aitizens of
the State of Washington and of the United States, including, but
not limited to, the right to move freely in places of public
accommodation and to practice and believe in the religion of his
choice, namely the Life Tabernacle Church, free from force,
violence, threats, retaliation or intimidation.

///
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SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Neqligence)

44. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in
paragraphs 1 through 27, 29 through 30, 32 through 34, 36 through
37, 39 through 40 and 42 through 43, inclusive, and realleges
said paragrephs as though set forth fully harain.

45. Defendant CAN holds itself out as a group which
provides information to the public and which refers the public to
persons who will allegedly aid them in their efforts to
understand the religioue practices and beliefs of others.

46. Defendant CAN negligently, and without regard for the
safety and well-being of plaintiff, recommended to plaintiff’s
mother, Kathy Tonkin, that Tonkin hire defendant Ross to
"deprogram® plaintiff, knowing that Ross’s "deprogramming” was
likely to include the tortious and illegal acts alleged herein,
and without regard for plaintiff’s health or well-being.

47. As a direct and proximate result of CAN’s above-alleged
negligence, plaintiff gustainaed physical injury, pain, suffering
and mental anguish. Plaintiff also incurred expenses for
necessary medical treatment and lost wages for the period that he
was unable to work because of his confinement by defendants

and/or his injuries suffered.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(¢ivil conspiracy)

48. Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1
through 27, 29 through 30, 32 through 34, 36 through 37, 39
through 40, 42 through 43, and 45 through 47, inclusive, and
rcalleges thocc paragraphe as though fully set forth herain.

Complalint
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49. In or about January, 1991, defendants CAN, Ross,
Workman, Simpson, Rolroff, and John Doe 1 = John Doe 20 entered
into a conspiracy to persuade Kathy Tonkin to finance the illegal
and vicious assault on plaintiff’s person and beliefs which is
set forth at length herein.

50. Pursuant to that conspiracy, defendants committed the
overt acts described in paragraphs 13 ~ 28, supra, kidnapping,
assaulting, and imprisoning plaintiff for the purpose of altering
his religious beliefs.

51. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ above-
alleged conduct, plaintiff sustained physical injury, pain,
suffering, mental anguish, grief, humiliation and shock.
Plaintiff also incurred expenses for necessary medical treatment
and lost wages for the period that he was unable to work because
of his confinement by defendants and/or his injuries suffered.

V4 RELI

HWHEREFORE $

Based upon the foregoing, plaintiff Jason Scott requeste
that judgment be entered against defendants Cult Awareness
Network, Rick Ross, Mark Workman, Charles Simpson; Clark Rotroff,
and Does 1>- 20 as follows:

1. Awvarding plaintiff genaral damages for his pain,
suffering and mental anguish in an amount to be established at
the time of trial but in no event less than the minimum
jurisdictional amount for this court.

2. Awarding plaintiff special damages for his medical
expenses and lost wages in an amount to be established at the

time of trial but in no event lass than the minimum
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jurisdictional amount for this court.

3. Awarding plaintiff punitive and exemplary damages in an
amount to be established at the time of trial.

4. Awarding plaintiff his statutory costs and attorneys’
fees incurred in this action.

S. Granting plaintiff such other relief as is just and
proper.

Date: January 14, 1994 BOWLES & MOXON

e /]
‘gi')a

JB&rtilson

6255 Sunset Blvd.,
Suite 2000

Los Angeles, CA 90028
(213) 953=3360

Attorneys for Plaintiff
JASON SCOTT
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 68 =—Ifveny

=——FREltivzp
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON |
AT SEATTLE SFpP2g 1995
rien, AT 360wy,
JASON SCOTT. oA -
o?:'u-,,
Plaintiff,
CASE NO. C94-0079C
V. -

| b VERDICT FORM
RICK ROSS, a/k/a RICKEY ALLEN
ROSS, MARK WORKMAN, CHARLES
SIMPSON, CULT AWARENESS NETWORK,
a California nonprofit corporation,
and JOHN DOE 1-JOHN DOE 20,

Defendants.

L
VVVVVVVVVVVVVVV

1. Do you find that any of the Defendants were negligent and that such negligence was a

proximate cause of injury to the Plaintiff?

Yes No
A. Defendant Rick Ross \/
B. Defendant Mark Workman _\[ —_
C. Defendant Charles Simpson _\l -

D. Defendant Cult Awareness Network |/

ORDER -~ 1
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2. If you answered yes to question npumber 1, what percentage of the total combined negligence

is attributable to each Defendant whose negligence was found in question number 17

A. Defendant Rick Ross " 70 %
B. Defendant Mark Workman D %
C. Defendant Charles Simpson - (D %

D. pefendant Cult Awareness Network l ZZ %
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3. Do you find that any of the Defendants were involved in a conspiracy to deprive Plaintiff

his civil rights' of freedom of religion or freedom of interstate travel and that such conspiracy

caused injury to the Plaintiff?

A. Defendant Rick Ross

B. I?_c_fcndam Mark Workman

C. Defendant Charles Simpson

D. Defendant Cult Awareness Network

ORDER -- 3

Yes No
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4. Do you find that any of the Defendants committed the tort of outrage against the Plaintiff? -
That is, do you find that any of the Defendants intentionally or recklessly acted in a way that is
$0 outrageous in character md 50 extreme in degree as to go beyond all possible bounds of

decency and to be regarded as atrocious and utterly intolerable in a civilized community?

Yes No
A. Defendant Rick Ross _\L —
B. ;)efenda;zt Mark Workman \/
C. Defendant Charles Simpson l/

D. Defendant Cult Awareness Network _g \Y4

ORDER -- 4
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5. 1f yoﬁ have answered yes to any of the questions above, what do find to be the total amount

of the Plaintiff’s damages?

s875,000
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1] 6. If you have found that any of the Defendants conspired to deprive Plaintiff of his civil rights

I

A. Defendant Rick Ross s .2,8500, 000

B. Defendant Mark Workman {_&_EQ_MD

" C. Defendant Charles Simpson ., S_QEQDOD | |
D. Defendant Cult Awareness Network S_é_aaaj O 00

Foreperson’s Signature and Date
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT GPUREAimZSIACT coumy
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON WiSmingron
AT SEATTLE - G

JASON SCOTT,

Plaintiff,
CASE NO. C94-0078C

ORDER
RICK ROSS, et al.,

n

)
)
)
)
)
v. )
)
)
)
Defendants. )

)

12

" This @atter comes before the Court on the following motions:
(1) defendant Cult Awareness Network's (hereinafter "CAN") motion
* for judgment as a matter of law, a new trial, or a nevw trial
* conditioned on a remittitur; (2) CAN's and defendant Rick Ross’
e motions to stay execution of judgment; (3) defendant Rick Ross’
11 motion fqr Q new trial or amendment of judgment; and (4) plaintiff
19 Jason Scott’s motion for an award of attorney’s fees.
1 I. PROCEDURAL BACRKGROUND
2 In January 1994, Mr. 8cot£ filed this action requesting a jury
2; trial on a variety of claims against CAN, Mr. Ross, Mr. Mark
23 Workman, Mr. Charies Simpson and ﬁr: Clark Rotroff.* Each of the

24
lprior to trial, plaintiff entered into a settlement agreement

with Mr. Rotroff for an undisclosed sum.

25

26 || ORDER ~-- 1
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claims stemmed from the abduction and involuntary religious
deprogramming of Mr. Scott. Prior to trial, the Court narrowed the
claims to conspiracy to violate Mr. Scott’s civil rights under 42
U.S.C. § 1985(3) (hereinafter "§ i985(3)"), the tort of outrage,
and negl;gence. .

At the close of trial, the jury returned a verdict agaznst each

of the defendants on virtually all the remaining claims.? The

Jury ayarded compensatory damages in the amount of $875,000.00.

Pursuant to the civil rights claim, the jury awarded punitive
damages in the.amount of $1,000,000.00 against CAN, $2,500,000.00
against Mr. Ross, and $250,000.00 each against Mr. Simpson and Mr.
Workman.

Mr. Ross and CAN now challenge the jury’s £indings and move the
Court for an order staying execution of the judgment.
TI. STANDARD OF REVIEW: JUDGMENT AS A MATTER OF LAW AND NEW TRIAL

On a motion for judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 50, the Court
must determine "whether the evidence, considered as a whole and
viewed in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party.,
reasonably can suppert only a verdict for the moving party."”
Gillette v, Delmore, 979 F.2d 1342, 1346 (sth Cir. 1992) (emphasis
in‘oriéinal). 1f substantial evidence supports a verdict for the
non-moving party, judgment as a matter of law is inappropriate.

13, '"Substantial evidence" requires a showing of "such evidence as

‘315 the only exception, the jury found that CAN’s actions did
not const;tute the tort of outrage.
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a reasonable mind might accept as adequate to support a

conclusion." Los Anceles 1and Co. v. Brunswick Corp., 6.F.3rd

1422, 1425 (9th Cir. 1993).

. Under Fed. R. Civ. P. 59, a new trial may be granted "if the
verdict is contrary to the clear weight of the evidepce, or...to .
prevent, in the sound discretion of the trial judge, a miscarriage
of justice.® Murphv v. Long Beach, 914 F.2d 183, 187 (sth Cir.
1990) (citations omitted). In making this determination, thé Court
may simply weigh the evidence and need not view it from the '
perspective most favorable to the non-moving party. Air-Sea

Forwarders, Inc. v. Air Asia Co., 880 F.2d 176, 150 (sth Cir.

19889).
III. CAN’S TRIAL MOTIONS

CAN asserts that the evidence produced at trial does not
support the jury’s findings- that CAN acted negligently or conspired
against Mr. Scott under § 1985(3). CAN also challenges the award of
punitive damages and the amount assessed against it. 'The Court
shall consider each claim separately.

A. NEGLIGENCE
CAN claims the evidence on negligence did not support a finding

that Ms. Shirley Landa acted as CAN’s agent with respect to the

events in question. See Nordstrom Credit, Inc. v, Department Of

Revenue, 120 Wash.2d 935, 940, 845 p.2d 1331 (1993) (agency must be
established with respect to the particular transaction out of which
the injury arises). CAN asserts that the most the evidence shows

ORDER -- 3
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is that Ms. lLanda generally 'acted as a contact person and volunteer
for CAN on other occasions. |

"The Court concludes that the evidence supports the jury’s
£inding on the negligence.claim against CAN. CAN’s attempt to
distance itself from Ms..Laﬁda'é actions and Mr. Scott’s
deprog}amming through the use of phrases suqh aé *contact person*
and *volunteer" belies the great weight of the evidence. For’
example, there was an abundant showing that Ms. Landa was an gcfive
member of CAN, the contact person for CAN in Washington during the
time of the events in question, and under CAN's contrel and
supervision during this time.? Further, evidence also showed that
Ms. Landa acted in accordance with CAN préctices by distributing
information on cults and referring Mr. Scott’s mother, Ms. Kathy
Tonkin, to Mr. Ross for deprogramming. This combination of
factors, along with the rest of- the evidence contained in the
record, makes judgment as a matter of law or a new trial on the
negligence‘claim unwarranted.

B. CONSPIRACY TO VIOLATE CIVIL RIGHTS

CAN asserts that the evidence at trial was also insufficient to

support & f£inding that CAN took part in a conspiracy to deprive Mr.

Scott of his civil rights under § 1985(3). As a basis for this

3The Court notes that the main support for the CAN's argument
that Ms. Landa was acting for another organization comes from Ms.
Landa herself. Given the numerous i{1lustrations of Ms. lLanda’ bias
and hostility, as well as the inconsistencies in her testimony, the

Court finds that the jury was entitled to disregard this testimony.

ORDER -~ 4




AD T2
Rev 822)

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
18
20
21
22
a3
24
25

26

argument, CAN reasserts that the evidence does not support a
finding that Ms. landa acted as CAN’s agent. CAN also claims that
the record does not show that Ms. Landa, or anyone else at CAN,
knowinély participated in the plaﬁ to abduct Mg. Scott, deprogram
him, and deprive him of the right to interstate travel. .

Again, the Court concludes that the evidence suffiéiently
supports the jury’'s determinaticn that CAN knowingly paftiéipated
in the decision to abduct Mr. Scott and deprive him of the fight to
interstate travel. Moreover, the evidence conclusively eétablished
that the decision was motivated by a discriminatory animus towards
his religious affiliation.* For example, the evidence showea that
Ms. Landa referred Ms. Tonkin to Mr. Ross, met with the
deprogramming "team" during their initial trip to Washington, and
met with her sister and Ms. Tonkin to discuss any legal recourse
for removing Mr. Scott from. his church.® There was also
substantial testimony that the conspiracy included a clear goal to
hold Mr. Scott against his will, prevent him from pursuing a
mission outside the country, and transport him to across state
lines to a retreat for ex-members of religious groups.

Accordingly, judgment as a matter of law or a new trial on the

civil rights claim against CAN would be inappropriate.

‘The Court has already rejected CAN’s contention regarding Ms.
Landa‘’s agency status.

SThe Court also notes that further evidence in the record
linked CAN to the conspiracy in a number of ways unrelated to Ms.
landa’s actions alone.
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. C. PUNITIVE DAMAGES

on the award of punitive damages, CAN asserts that: (1) it
cannot be held liable for punitive damages stemming £rom Ms.
Landa‘s conduct; (2) the record does not support a £inding of the
type of motive necessary for punitive damages; and (3) the amount .
of the award was unreasonable. CAN also argues that the award was
prompted out of the passion of an inflamed Jjury.

In order to sustain a finding of punitive damages against a
principal for the acts of its agent, 3 it must be found that the
agent acted in a managerial capacity or that the prlnczpal

authorized or ratified the acts of the agent. Mitchell v.-Keith,

752 F.2d 385, 389-51 (sth Cir. 1985). This authorization or
ratification must be made with knowledge that the agent acted out
of ill-will, spite, for the purpose of injuring, or with complete
indifference to the plaintiff's safety and rights. Id., Jury
Instruction No. 25. -

1f punitive damages were appropriately assessed, the amount
must still comport with standards of due process. In determining
whether an award violates due process, the Ninth Circuit has
endorsed a three stage process. Morgan v, Woesener, 997 F.2d 1244,
1256 (9th Cir. 1993). First, the Court must determine whether the
jury was adequately jnstructed. Id. Second, the Court must review

the award for excessiveness. Id. The third stage is appellate

review. 14,
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CAN does not object to the adegquacy of the jury instructions on
punitive damages. Rather, CAN asserts that the award is excessive.
In reviewing for excess, the Court must look to factors bearing on
reasonableness. JId, at 1257. These reasonableness factors
include, but are not limited to; (1) whether there ig a reasonable
relationship bétween the harm caused and the award; (2) ﬁhe degree
of reprehensibility of the conduct as well as the conduct’'s
duration and frequency; (3) the profitability to the defendant, (4)
the financial position of the defendant; (5) all costs of
litigation; (6) the imposition of criminal sanctions against'the
defendant; and (7) the existence of other civil awards versus the

defendant for the conduct. Pacific Mut. Life Ins. Co. V. Haslip,

499 U.S. 1, 21-22, 111 S.Ct. 1032, 1045 (1991).

The Court finds that there is sufficient evidence to support
the jury’s f£inding that Ms.- Landa’s actions were authorized or
ratified by CAN. Again, by way of example, CAN admitted to its
control ‘and supervision of its contact persons. CAN officials
stated that these persons could be removed -for violation of policy.
However, Ms. landa was not removed for her actiocns and remains a
CAN contact person.

As noted above, testimony also established that Ms. landa,
acting in accordance with CAN'sg-practices, disseminated
inflammatory information on cults and referred Ms. Tonkin to a
known "involuntary deprogrammer.” As the evidence demonstrated, it
was within the knowledge of CAN and Ms. Landa that these practices

ORDER == 7
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would lead to Mr. Scott’s abduction in this case. Thus, the Court
finds that the evidence also supports the jury’s determination that
CAN's ratification of Ms. Landa’s acts was done with knowledge of
their malicious nature as well aézthe deliberate disregard to Mr.
Scott’s rzghts. .

Finally, the Court concludes that the amount of punitive

damages awarded against CAN was reasonable, within the boundaries

.of due process, and not improperly prompted by passion. CAN's

argument against the award relies most heavily on the fact that it
is a non-profit corporauion and was forced into bankruptcy by this
judgment. However, these financial factors are not necessafily
determinative and are heavily ocutweighed by other factors in this
case. |

Initially, the Court notes that thé reprehensibility of CAN’s
conduct goes far to justify the amount of the award. The continued
use of euphemisms such as ninvoluntarily deprogramming" does not
alleviate the fact that the actions in furtherance af the
conspiracy involved the forceful abduction and retention of an
adult against his will. Nor do the references to the goal of
*educating® the public answer the virtually undisputed evidence
.that materials on *"cults" will be negative and highly inflammatory
by definition. The evidence showed that without regard to this
fact, and despite an admitted lack of personal knowledge of Mr.
Scott’s church or his ability as an adult to rationally choose his
own'religion, Ms. Landa sent these "cult" materials to Ms. Tonkin.

ORDER ~-- 8
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other factors tend to show the reasonableness of the award as

well. For instance, the evidence illustrated that the defendants’

" actions caused Mr. Scott to suffer physically. More importantly,

the evidence firmly supports a finding that the entire
deprogramming episode shook his emotional stability gnd rendered
his family llfe non-existent. Finally, it is undisputed that CAN
does not face criminal charges ©or further civil l1iability for its
actions. Thus, having carefully considered these and the resg of
the relevant factors, Fhe Court concludes that the amount of the
punitive damages assessed against CAN was reasonable and
appropriately supported by the evidence.
IV. MR. ROSS’ HOTIOQ FOR A NEW TRIAL

Mr. Ross claims that a new trial is warranted due to error in
the jury instructions, failure to exclude Mr. Scott’s counselor’'s
testimony, and lack of evidence supporting damages. I1f the Court
is unwilling to grant a new trial on the merits, Mr. Ross afgues
that a new trial should be held on the damages issue alone. Again,
the Court shall discuss the specific issues separately.

A. JURY INSTRUCTIONS

Mr. Ross claims that & new trial igs warranted due to error in
the Court’s instructions to the jury. He asserts that the
instructions should have included language that the § 1985(3) claim

required an element of ';nvidiously discriminatory class-based

animus.® Griffin v. Breckenridaoe, 403 U.S. 88, 102, 91 S.Ct. 1750,
1798 (1971). He also claims that the instructions improperly

ORDER -~ 9




1|l allowed the jury to consider whether the defendants’ actions

2ll violated Mr. Scott’s First Amendment right of freedom of religioen.

3]l United Brotherhood of Carpenters & Joiners, Local 630 v. Scott, 463

4 ﬁ.S. 825, 830; 103 S.Ct. 3352, 3357 (}983). . .
S Mr. Ross' reliance on the ianguage in Breckenridge is

61 misplaced. Although class-based discriminatory animus is

7! undoubtedly required, the Supreme Court has not given the term

8| rinvidiously discriminatory class-based animus" the type of

(Ve

talismanic effect suggested by Mr. Ross. In the present case, the

10{ court finds that Jury Instruction 21 contained the proper § 1985(3)

11| giscriminatory standard based upon Nr. Scott’s religious

12* affiliation. Specifically, the instruc;ion stated that "there must
13| pe some intentional purpose toO discriminate against plaintiff’s

141 religion as the basis for the conspirators’ action. The

15| conspiracy, in other words,” must have been aimed at depriving

’5{ pla;ntlff pecause of his religion, members of plaintiff’'s religion,

7| or other gimilar religions equal enjoyment of the rights secured by

18f 1aw to all persons." Jury Instruction 21; Cf. Sever V. Alaska Pulp
9| corp., 978 F.2d 1529, 1536 (sth Cir. 1992) (stating that the classes

20 || - protected under § 1985 include those who have been singled out by
21|l the Court’s as "suspect® or rquasi-suspect").

22 Similarly, the Court £inds that Mr. Ross’ objection that the
23| instructions improperly allowed the jury to consider Mr. Scott’s

28| freedom of religion does not justify a new trial. As stated above,
25| gury Instruction 21 jdentified the type of discriminatory animus

26 | ORDER -- 10 ' 1
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required under the law. Indeed, such instruction was necessary to
ensure that the jury did not consider whether the conspiracy was
aimed at Mr. Scott personally or simply at depriving him of the
right'to interstdte travel. This instruction was immediately
followed with instructions stating Mr. Scott’s assertion on the
right to interstate travel, clearly designating this assertion as

an element of the conspiracy claim, and stating that Mr. Scott

.needed to prove all elements of the § 1985(3) claim by a

preponderance of the evidence.®

The Court also concludes that the decision to instruct the jury
on the claims of negligence against the individuals does not
warrant a new trial. The need for instructions on the individual
negligence claims was clear to the parties prior to trial. The
Court had previously held that the complaint sufficiently stated a
claim of negligence against’ the individual defendants. As such,
the Court finds that instructing the jury and allowing Mr. Scott’s
counsel to submit supplemental instructions did not‘unfairly
surprisé or prejudice any of the defendants. In this regard, it is
worth noting that Mr. Ross did not object to the content of the

negligence instructions on individuals.

‘With regard to the amount of proof on these elements, the
Court again notes that there was ample evidence supporting the )
finding that Mr. Ross acted with the purpose to deprive Mr. Scott
of the right to interstate travel due to discriminatory feelings
towards his religious affiliation. )

ORDER =-- 11




&0 72
Rev &'

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
18
20
21

a3
24

25

B. EXCLUSION OF WITNESSES

The Court finds that the decision to allow the testimony of Mr.
Scott's counselor does not warrant a new trial. The Court
determined that Mr. Ross was gufficiently aware of the intent to
call a counselor and receivéd adequate discovery in ?his rggard. R
Moreover, the testimony only.added additional support to the
evidence concerning the amount of damages Mr. Scott incurfe@.
Given the amount of evidence produced against Mr. Ross on the .
substantive claims and the amount of damages, a new trial would be
inappropriate. .

C. COMPENSATORY AﬁD PUNITIVE DAMAGES )

Mr. Ross objects to the amount of both the qompensatory and
punitive damages awarded. Mr. Ross claims that the evidence was
jnsufficient to support the amount of compensatory damages, the
amount of punitive damages was unreasonable, and the jury’s award
was motivated out of passion.

| Con;idering the extensive testimony on the destruction of Mr.
Scott’'s family life as well as his physical and emotional problems
after the deprogramming, the Court £inds that evidence does not
justify a new trial or & reduction of compensatory damages. Again,
numerous witnesses verified the extent of these injuries. However,
the parties agree that the compensatory damages should be offset by
the amount of the settlement with Mr. Rotroff. See Husky Refining
Co. v. Barmes, 119 F.2d4 715, 716 (sth Cir. 1941); RCW 4.22 et seQ.

ORDER =-- 12
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Accordingly, the Court ordefs Mr. Scott’s counsel to submit
documentation of this settlement amount. |

" As to punitive d;mages, Mr. Ross also argues thﬁt the award was
excessive. Séecifically; Mr. Ross asserts that thé damages bear no
relation to thg harm suffered or to the amount necessary to deter .
his future conduct. The Court disagrees. |

The Court concludes not only that there is a sufficient f
relationship between the harm and Mr. Ross' conduct, but that the
remaining reasonableness factors also weigh heavily towards
upholding the jury’s punitive damages awarh. As noted“abové, the
evidence supported the large award of compensatory damages.
Moreover, Mr. Ross’ use of terminology cannot avoid the
uncontradicted evidence that he actively participated in.the plan
to abduct Mr. Scott, restrain him with handcuffs and duct tape, and
hold him involuntarily while demeaning his religious beliefs.?

A large award of punitive damages is also necessary under the
recidivism and mitigation aspects of the factors cited in Haslip.
Specifiéally, the Court notes that Mr. Rost himself testified that
he had acted similarly in the past and would continue to éondﬁct
*deprogramnings™ in the £uture.. Further, Mr. Ross faces no future

criminal or civil liability for his conduct.

“With regard to Mr. Ross’' role in this affair, the Court notes
that there is no credible support for the contention that he was
merely another participant in a plan wholly developed and
controlled by Ms. Tonkin.

ORDER =-- 13




1 Finally, the Court notes each of the defendants’ seeming

2|l incapability of appreciating the maliciousness of their conduct -

(A ]

towards Mr. Scott. Rather, throughout the entire course of this

4 litigation they have attempted to éortray themselves as victims of
Mr. Scott’s counsel’s alleged agenda. Thus, thé largq award given
by the jury against both CAN and Mr. Ross seems reasonably .
necessary to enforce the jury’s determination on the OppfeSSiveness

of the defendants’ actions and deter similar conduct in the future.

O O N O W»

Accordingly, the Court f£inds that both the compensatory and
10| punitive damages awards were reasonable and well founded in the
1|l evidence. .
12 V. MOTION TO STAY JUDGMENT
13 Both CAN and Mr. Ross mbved the Court for an order staying the
14|l exercise of the judgment in this matter until after the decision on
15l the Rule 50 and Rule 59 motions. These motions are moot.
16 VI. MOTION POR ATTORNEY’S FEES
7 Mr. Scott requests attorney's fees in the amount af
18| $225,915.00. This request is made pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988
18 || which provides that a Court may award attorney’s fees to a
20 brgvailipg party in a § 1985 claim. 42 U.S.C. § 1988 (b).
21 In response to the reguest for fees, defendants CAN and Mr.
. 22| Ross notified the Court th#t they have declared bankruptcy since
23| the enéry of judgment. A&s such, they correctly contend that any
24 decisi%n on the award of attorney's fees against them is
25 | automatically stayed under bankruptcy law. 11 U.S.C. § 362(a). In

26 | ORDER -- 14
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order to ensure the ability to make adeguate factual findings on
the fees and prevent potential prejudice arising from any award
against defendants Mr. Workman and Mr. siﬁpson, this Court shall
stay consideration of the attorney’s fees issue until the
discontinuation of or relief from the automatic stay in CAN's and .,
Mr. Ross'’ bankruptcy proceedings.

' VII. CONCLUSION

In summation, the Court hereby ORDERS as £ollows°

1) CAN’‘s Motion for a Judgement as a Matter of Law or a New
Trial is DENIED;

2) Mr. Ross’ Motion for a New Trial or for Reduction in Damages
is DENIéD in part, and GRANTED in part. Attorneys for Mr. Scott
are ORDERED to submit verification of the amount of the settlement
with Mr. Clark Rotroff. The award of compensatory damages shall be
offset in the amount of this settlement; |

3) CAN’s and Mr. Ross’ Motion for Stay of Judgment is MObT;'

4) Mr. Scott’s Motion for Attorney’s Fees is STAYED from
consideration in this Court pending the discontinuation of or
relief from the automatic stay in the CAN and Rick Ross bankruptcy
p}oceedings.

SO ORDERED this 2 7day of November, 1995.

M C

The Honorable John Coughenour
Unite d States Dzstract Judge

ORDER -~ 15
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21). Payments to Debtor - 0.00
22) Other:Distributions - 0.00

(excjuding to debtor)

C

| .“‘.' S E D
IN 3
Al ?
" A oo

If you do not transmit data electronically, forward this form (BCL00B) to:

Administrative Office of U.S. Courts
ATTN: Statistice Division
Washington, DC 20544



' UST-4 PHX, 10-91 -
FILED,
IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT w7 IV ERNIGHT

FOR THE DISTRICT O W
F ARIZONA 146 £51995
Y EN
In re: ) CHAPTER 7 ’uw'.zibgw‘?\%a 2
) ForrsupToY COURT
ROSS ) CASE NO. 95-09523-PHX-@BN= STRICTOFARIZON
RICK ALAN ) .
)
) TRUSTEE’S REPORT OF
; NO DISTRIBUTION
Debtor (&) )
)
I, ROBERT VUCUREVICH , having been appointed trustee of the

estate of the above named debtor(s), report that I have neither received any
property nor paid any money on account of this estate; that I have made a
diligent inquiry into the financial affairs of the debtor(s) and location
of property belonging to the estate; and that there is no property available
for distribution from the estate over and above that exempted by law or
that has been abandoned pursuant to the provisions of 11 U.S.C Section 554
and/or Section 725.

Pursuant to FRBP 5009, I hereby certify that the estate of the above-
named debtor(s) has been fully administered.

I request that this report be approved and that I be discharged from any

furthexr duties as trustee.

DATED: //’j _/; B 9*9.—

ROBERT VUCUREVICH
Trustee
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF ARIZONA

In Re: Chapter 7
NO. 95-09523-PHX-GBN
Filed 10/18/95

ROSS, RICK ALAN

ROSS, RICKY ALAN
FRNM NVERNIGHT BOX

Debtor(s) NOY O & 1995
oh KB

APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM TRUSTEE  Fem =0
AND DESIGNATION OF REQUIRED BOND

ROBERT VUCUREVICH of PHOENIX, ARIZONA,
is hereby appointed Interim Trustee for the estate(s) of the above named
debtor(s) as of the filing date referenced above. Unless a trustee is
elected at the meeting of creditors to be called pursnant to Section 341
of Title 11, United States Code, in the above rafereuced case, the
Interim Trustee shall serve as Trustee.
This case is covered by the blanket bond for Chapter 7 case Trustees,

a copy of which is on file with the United States Trustee.

ADRIANNE KALYNA
UNITED STATES TRUSTEE

November 3, 1995
Dated MICHELE R. HANKINS
ASSISTANT UNITED STATES TRUSTEE




United States Bankruptcy Court
District of Arizona

Inre RICK ALAN ROSS Case No. 85-09523~-PHX~GBN

Debtor
Chapter, 7

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

This statement ig 1 be comnpleted by every debtor. Spouses filing a joint petition may file a single statement on which the inforination for
hoth spousds is vombined. If the casc is filed under chapter 12 or chapter 13, 8 married debtor must furnish information for both spouses whether
or not u joint petition is filed, unlcss the spouscs are scparated and a joint petition is not filed. An individual debtor cngeged in business as a sole
proprictor, partner, family farmer, or self-employed professional, should provide the infornation requested on thir statement concerning all such
activitics ag well as the individual's personal affairs.

Questions | - 15 are to be completed by all debtors. Debtors that are or heve been in business, as defincd below, alsa must comnplete
Questions 16 - 21. If the snswer to any question is ""None," or the question Is not applicable, mark the box labeled ""None'. If additional space
it needed for the answer 1o any queation, usc and aftach a scparate sheet properly identified with the case name, case number (if known), and the
number of the quostion.

DEFINITIONS
“In business, " A debtor i3 "in business” for the purposc of this form if the debtor is a corporation or partnership. An individual debtor is "in business"
for the purpose of this form if the debtor is or has been, within the two years immediately preceding the filing of the this bankruptey case, any of
the following: an officer, dirsctor, managing executive, or person in contral of a corporation; & pertner, other than & limited partncr, of a partncrship,
a sole proptictor or self-employed.

“Insider.” The tern “insider” includes but is not limited to: relatives of the debtor; general partners of the debtor and their relatives; corporations of
which the dehtor is an officer, director, or person in control; officcrs, directors, and any porson in control of a corporate debtor and their relatives;
affiliates of the debtor and ingiders of such affiliates; any maneging agent of the debtor. 11 U.S.C, § 101(30).

1. Income from employment or operstion of business
one  Statc the gross amount of incomne the debtor has received from employment, trade, or profession, or from operation of the dobtor's busincss from
] the bepinning of this calendar year 10 the datc this case was cowunenced. Stule also the gross amounts received during the twu years
immediately preceding this calender year. (A debtor that maintains, or has maintained, financial rocords on the hasis of a fiscal rather than &
calender year may report fiscal year income. Identify the beginning and ending dates of the debtor's flscal year.) If a joint petition is filed, state
income for each spouse scparately. (Married debtors filing under chapier 12 or chapter 13 must state income of both spouses whether or not
@ joint petition ig filed, unless the spouses are scparaicd and 2 joint petition is not filed.)

AMOUNT SOURCE (if more than ono)
$20,000.00 1995 (YTD) INCOME FROM EARNINGS
$24,814.00 1994 INCOME FROM EARNINGS
$41,813.00 1993 INCOME FROM EARNINGS

2. Income other than from employment or operstion of business
one  State the amount of income reccived by the dohtor other than from employment, trade, profession, or operation of the debtor's business during
N the tiwb yesrs immediately preceding the commenceiment of thig cage, Give particulars, If & jaint petition is fllcd. state income for cach spousc
vrrorelalu Magred dehtars_filing nindex chantar 12 or ghgnter 13 jqust state income for cach soouse whether or nat & joint petition is filed,




Nonc  b. List all payments made within one year inmediately preceding the comumencement of this case to or for the bencfit of creditors who arc or
were insiders. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include payments by either or both spouses whether or not a joint
petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and 8 joint petition ig not filed,)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR AND AMOUNT STILL
RELATIONSHIP TO DEBTOR DATE OF PAYMENT AMOUNT PAID OWING

4, Suits, executions, garnlshments and attachments
Nonec & Listall suits and administrative proccedings to which the debtor is or was a party within one year inmediately preceding the filing of this
a benkruptcy casc. (Mamied debtors filing under chaptor 12 or chapter 13 must include information conceming either or both spouses whether
or not & joint petition is filed, unless the spouses arc separated and s joint petition is not filed.)

CAPTION OF SUIT NATURE OF COURT OR AGENCY STATUS OR
AND CASE NUMBER PROCEEDING AND LOCATION DISPOSITION
JASON SCOTT VS RICK CIVIL LAWSUIT SEATTLE JUDGMENT

ROSS, ET AL, C-94-0079

None  b. Desoribe all property that has becn attached, gamighed or seized under any legal or equitable process within one year immediately preceding
n the cothmenceinent of this case. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include infortnation concerning property of either
or both spouses whether or not & joint petition is filed, unloss the spouses are scparated and a joint petition is not filed.)
NAME AND ADDRBSS OF PERSON FOR WHOSE DESCRIPTION AND VALUE OF
BENEFIT PROPERTY WAS SEIZED DATE OF SEIZURE PROPERTY

§. Repossessions, foreclosures and returns
None  List all property that bas been reposscssed by a creditor, sold at a foreclosure cae, transferred through a deed in lieu of farsclosure ar retumed
u to the seller, within one year immediately preceding the commencemont of this cese. (Mamicd dehtors filing under chapler 12 or chapter 13
must include information conceming property of either or both spouses whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated
and a joint petition is not filed.)

DATE OF REPOSSESSION,
NAME AND ADDRESS OF FORECLOSURE SALE, DESCRIPTION AND VALUE OF
CREDITOR OR SELLER TRANSFER OR RETURN PROPFRTY

6. Assignments and receiverships
None 2. Describe any assignment of property for the benefit of creditors made within 120 days immediately preceding the coirunencement of this case.
n (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include any asgigninent by either ar both spouscs whether or not u joint petition
is filed; unless the spouses are separatcd and a joint petition ig nat filed.)

DATE OF
NAME AND ADDRESS OF ASSIGNES ASSIGNMENT TERMS OF ASSIGNMENT OR SETTLEMENT

None b, List all property which has been in the hands of a custadian, recciver, or court-appointed official within ane year immnediately preceding the
commencement of this case. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapier 13 must include information concerning property of either or
both spiouscs whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses arc scparated and a joint petition is not filed.)

NAME AND LOCATION
NAME AND ADDRESS OF COURT, DATE QF DESCRIPTION AND VALUE
OF CUSTODIAN CASE TITLE & NUMBER ORDER OF PROPERTY

7. Gifty
None  Listall gifts or charitable contributions made within one year iinmediately preceding the commencement of this case cxeept ordinary and usual
R gifts to family members aggregating less than $200 in value per individual family member and charitable contributions aggregating less than
$100 per recipiont. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include gifts or contributions by cither ar both spouses whether
or not a joint petition is filed, unloss the spouses arc scparated and a joint petition is not filed.)

NAMB 4\ND ADDR[SS OF RELATIONSHIP TO DESCRIPTION AND
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION DREBTOR, IF ANY DATE OF GIFT VALUE OF GIFT
8. Losses

None  List ull losses from firc, theft, other casualty or gambling within one year iinunediately preceding the commencement of this cese or since the
| commencement of this case, (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include losses by cither or both spouges whether or
not e jaint petition is filed, unless the spouses are scparated and a joint petition is not filed.)
DESCRIPTION OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND, IF
DHSCRIPTION ANN VALUE LOSS WAS COVERED IN WHOLE OR IN PART
OF PROPERTY BY INSURANCE, GIVE PARTICULARS DATE OFLOSS

Copyrignt (c) 1563 - Hewt Case Solutions, Inc. - Evanston, (L « {800) 4828037 Bankruptey Filing Sysiem



9. Payments related to debt counseling or bankruptcy
None  List all payments made or property tansferred by or on behalf of the debtor to any persone, including attorneys. for consultation conceming
O dobt consolidation, rclief under the bankruptey law or preparation of the petition in bankruptey within one yesr immediately prceeding the
comumenceinent of this case.

DATE OF PAYMENT, AMOUNT OF MONEY
NAME AND ADDRESS NAME OF PAYOR IF OTHER OR DESCRIPTION AND VALUE
OF PAYEE THAN DEBTOR OF PROPERTY
ROBERTL. DEVERS, ATTORNEY ATLAW $450.00

7207 N. TTH ST.
PHOENIX, AZ 85020

10. Other transfers
None  a. Listsll other property, other than property transferred in the ordinary courss of the busincss or financial affairs of the debtor, transferred either
m absolutely or a5 security within one year immediatoly preceding the commencement of this case. (Maricd debtors filing under chapter 12 or
chapter 13 must include trangfers by either or both spouses whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spauscs are seperated and e joint

petition is not filed.)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF TRANSFEREE, DESCRIBE PROPERTY TRANSFERRED
RELATIONSHIP TO DEBTOR DATE AND VALUE RBCEIVED
UNKNOWN 10/94 1994 SATURN--NET APPROXIMATELY $6,000
NONE

11. Closed financial accounts
Nonc  List all financial accounts and instruments held in the name of the debtor or for the benefit of the debtor which were closed, sold, or otherwise
a uansfefred within one year immediately preceding the commenceincnt of this case. Includc cheeking, savings. or other financial sceounts,
certificates of deposit, or other ingtruments; shares and sharc sccounts held in banks, credit unions, pension funds, cooperatives, associstions,
brokerage hauscs and other financial institutions. (Married debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 mugt include infonnation concerning
accounts or instrunents held by or for either or both spouses whether or not a joint petition is filed, unless the spouses arc scparated and a joint
petition is not filed.)

TYPE AND NUMBER OF
ACCOUNT AND AMOUNT OF AMOUNT AND DATE OF SALE
NAME AND ADDRESS OF INSTITUTION FINAL BALANCE OR CLOSING
FIRST INTERSTATE BANK CHECKING ACCT--$600.00 BALANCE 10/95
24TH ST & INDIAN SCHOOL APPROXIMATELY
PHOENIX AZ
FIRST INTERESTATE BANK SAVINGS ACCT W/$600 APPROXIMATELY 10/95
24TH ST & INDIAN SCHOOL
PHOENIX AZ

12. Safe deposit boxes

None  List each safe deposit or other box or depository in which the debior has or had securities. cash, or other valushles within ane year immediately
preceding the commencement of this casc. (Marricd debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include hoxes or depositories of either
or both epouses whether or not a Joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and a joint petition is not filed.)

NAMES AND ADDRESSES
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BANK OR OTHER  OF THOSE WITH ACCESS DESCRIPTION DATE OF TRANSFER OR
DEPOSITORY TO BOX OR DEPOSITORY OF CONTENTS SURRENDER, IF ANY
FIRST INTERESTATE BANK MYSELF PAPERS ONLY
40TH ST & THOMAS
PHORNIX AZ *

13. Setoffs
None  List all setolfs made by any creditor, including a bank, against 8 debt or deposit of tho debtor within 90 days preceding the commencement
. of this asse. (Marricd debtors filing under chapter 12 or chapter 13 must include infornation conceming either ar both spougee whether or not
2 joint petition is filed, unless the spouses are separated and o joint petition is not filed.)
NAME AND ADDRESS OF CREDITOR DATE OF SETOFF AMOUNT OF SETQFF

Copyright () 1963 « Béat Case Salulions, Inz. - Evanalan, IL - (300) 4923037 8anknpley Flling Syslem



14, Property held for another person

None  List all property owncd by another person that the debtor holds or controls.
DESCRIPTION AND VALUE OF
NAME AND ADDRESS OF OWNER PROPERTY LOCATION OF PROPERTY
15. Prior address of debtor
None  Ifthe debtor has moved within the two years immediately preccding the commencement of thig case, list all premises which the debtor accupied
u during that period and vacated prior 10 the commoncemnent of this case, If & joint petition is filed, repont also any separate address of either
spouse,
ADDRESS NAME USED DATES OF OCCUPANCY
16. Nature, location and name of business
None  a. If the debtor is an individual, list thc names and addresses of all businesses in which the dehtor was en officer, dircctor, partner, or managing
0 exceutive of 8 corporation, partnershxp. sole proprietorship, or was a sclf-employed professional within the two years immediatcly proceding
the commencement of this case, or in which the debtor owned 5 percent or more of the voulng or equity sccurities within the two years
iinmedlately preceding the commencement of this case.
b. If the debtor is a partnership, list the names and addresses of all businesses in which the debtor was a partner ar owned $ percent or inere
of the voting securitics, within the two years immediatcly preceding the commencemnent of this case.
¢. If the debtor is a corporation, list the names and addresses of all husinesses in which the debior was a partner or owned 5 percent or more
of the voting socurities within the two years immediately preceding the commencement of this case.
BEGINNING AND ENDING
NAME AND ADDRESS NATURE OF BUSINESS DATES OF OPERATION
RICK ROSS CONSULTANT 3/86 TO PRESENT
17. Books, records and finsncisl statements
None . List all bookkeepers and accountants who, within the six years immediately preceding the filing of this bankrupicy case, kopt or supervised
N the koeping of books of secount and records of the debtor.
NAME AND ADDRESS DATES SRRVICES RENDERED
None  b. List all firms or individuals who. within the twa yesrs iminediately preceding the filing of this hankrupley casc, have audited the books of
u account and records, or prepared 2 financial statement of the debtor,
NAME AND ADDRESS DATES SERVICES RENDERED
None  c¢. List all firms or individuals who, at the time of the commenceinent of this case, were in possession of the books of account and records of
a the debtor, If any of the books of account and records are nat available, explain.
NAME ADDRESS
RICK ROSS AT RESIDENCE
None  d. List all financial institutions, creditors and other perties, including mercantilc and trede agencles, 10 whom a financial statement was issucd
n within the two years immediatcly preceding the commencainent of this case by the debtar,
NAME AND ADDRESS DATE ISSUED
18. Inventaries
None  a. Ligt the dates of the las: two inventories taken of your property, the name of the person who supervised the tsking of cach inventory, and
n the doller amount and basis of each inventory.
INVENTORY DOLLAR AMOUNT OF INVENTORY
DA'I'F OF INVENTORY SUPERVISOR (Specify cost, market or other basis)
None b List thc name and address of the person having possession of the records of cach of the two inventories reported in a., above,
NAME AND ADDRESS OF CUSTODIAN
DATE QF INVENTORY OF INVENTORY RECORDS
19. Curreat Partners, Officers, Directors and Shareholders
None  a. If the debtor is a permership, list the nature and percentago of parincrship interest of cach member of the pnrmcrchxp

NAME AND ADDRESS NATURE AND PERCENTAGE OF INTEREST
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None
|

None
None
]

None
n

b. If the debtor is & corporation, list all officers and directors of the corporation, and cach stwockholder who directly or indireetly owns, controls,
or holds 5 percent or more of the voling seouritics of the corporation.
NATURE AND PERCENTAGE
NAME AND ADDRESS TITLE OF STOCK OWNERSHIP

20. Former partners, officers, directors and shareholders
2. If the debtor is a parinership, list each mnember who withdrew from the partnership within one year imuncdiately proceding the commencement
of this case.

NAME AND ADDRESS DATE OF WITHDRAWAL

b. If the debtor is & corporation, list all officers or directors whose relationship with the corporation terminated within one year iimnediately
preceding the commencctment of this case,
NAME AND ADDRESS TITLE DATE OF TERMINATION

21. Withdrawals from a partnership or distributions by a corporation
If the debtor is a partnership or corporation, list all withdrawals or distributions credited or given to an insider, including componsation in any
form, bonusas, loans, stock redemptions, options exerciscd and any other perquisite during une year fimunediately preceding the commencement
of this case,
NAME & ADDRESS AMOUNT OF MONEY
OF RECIPIENT, DATE AND PURPOSE OR DESCRIPTION
RELATIONSHIP TO DEBTOR OF WITHDRAWAL AND VALUE OF PROPERTY



Inre RICK ALAN ROSS

United States Bankruptcy Court
District of Arizona

Case No. 95-09523~-PHX-GBN

Indicate a8 to cach schedule whether that schedule is attached and state the number of pages in cach. Report the totals from Schedules A

Debtor
Chapter, yi

SUMMARY OF SCHEDULES

B, D, B, F, ], and J in the boxcs provided. Add the amounts from Schedules A and B to determine the total amount of the dehtor's asscts.
Ada the amounts from Schedules D, E, and F to determine the total amaunt of the debtor's liabilities.

AMOUNTS SCHEDULED
EDULE ATTACHED | NO. OF ASSE LIABILITIES oTH
NAME OF SCHEDULE (YES/NO) | SHEETS SSETS ITIES ER
A - Real Property Yes 1 500.00 SR e A
el i : AL s $iad 4 '§Z'
R NP
B - Personal Property Yes 3 5.405.00 #@ : ;
C - Property Claimed as Exempt Yes 1 il
D - Creditors Holding Secured Yes 1 !
Claims &
E - Creditors Holding Unsecured Yes 1 : ﬁ,
Priority Claims 0
F - Creditors Holding Unsecured Yes 3 : ’:
Nonpriority Claims i
G - Executory Contracts and Yes ]
Unexpired Lesses
H - Codebtors Yes l i
R AR S @{
1+ Current Income of Individual Yes 1 1,880.00
Debtor(s)
I - Current Expenditures of Yes 1 ; S i 2,181.00
Individual Debtor(s) e e
R O O R IO
Total Number of Sheets of ALL Schedules i‘ {z%gté ;‘;!3%; ¥ ‘« : i ﬁ”g A%
SR A R BRI R e
P T e
5,905.00 s m%ﬁ i
‘. Total Assets g:%;ﬁ i ':5?‘553'{!{ Sigeh
Total Libilities 3,173,278.00

Copyright (c) 1993 - Best Onse Solutions, Inc. « Evanaton, IL « (800) 482-8037 Bankruotey Filing System



Inre RICK ALAN ROSS Case No. 95-09523-PHX~GBN
Debtor

SCHEDULE A — REAL PROPERTY

Bxcept as dirccted below, list all real property in which the debtor has any legal, equitable, or futurc interest, including all property owned 28 o
cotenant, community property, or in which the debtor has & life estate. Include any property in which the debtor holds rights and powers exercisable for
the deblor's own benefit, If the debtor is marricd, state whether husband, wifc, or both own the property by placing an “H," "W," "J," or "C" in the column
labeled "Husband, Wife, Joint, or Comimunity." If the debtor holds no interest in real property, write "None" under "Description and Locstion of Propenty.”

Do not include interests in exeoutory contracts and uncxpired leases on this achedule. List them in Schedule G - Executory Contracts and Unexpired
Lenses.

If an entity claims o have a lien or hold & secured intorest in any property, state the amount of the secured claim. (Sce Schedule D.) If no entity
tlaims 10 hold a socured intercst in the property, write "Nanc" in the column labeled “"Amount of Secured Claim."

1f the debtor is an individual or if » joint petition is filed, state the amount of any exemption claimed in the property only in Schedule C - Propesty
Claimed as Exempt.

g Y

- . Nature of Debtor's W o interestin Amount of
Description and Location of Pro : Pro . without
p perty Interest in Property é Deducg:?ény Securod Secured Claim
Claim or Exeinption
CEMETERY PLOT - 500.00 0.00
Sub-Total > 500.00 (Total of this page)
Total > 500.00
_0_ cantinuation sheets atached to the Schedule of Real Property (Report also on Sumnary of Schedules)

Copyright () 1683 - Bem Case Solutions, inc. - Evansten, IL - (00} 4928037 Benkruptey Fliing Symem
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Inre RICK ALAN ROSS Case No. 95-09523-PHX~GBN
“Debtor

SCHEDULE B — PERSONAL PROPERTY

Except a5 directed below, list all personal property of the debtar of whatever kind. If the debtor has no property in one or more of the categories, place
an "x" in the appropriate position in the colwumn lahcled "Nonc." If additional space is needed in any category, attach a separate sheet properly identified
with the case name, casc nunber, and the number of the category. If the deblor is married, state whether husband, wife, or both own the property by plasing
an "H," "W," "I," or "C" in the column lsbeled "Husbend, Wife, Joint, or Community.” If the debtor is an individual or & joint petition is filed, state the
smmount of any cxcmptions claimed only in Schedule C - Property Claiined as Exempt,

Do not liat interests in executory contracts and uncxpired leases on this schedule. List themn in Schedule G - Exccutory Contracts and Unexpired Leascs.

If the property is being held far the debtor by someone else, state that person's name and address under "Description and Location of Property."

N ‘li!’ Dc%m?mln Market Value of
Type of Property g Description and Lacation of Property ] wﬁiot!h’out %',';""c‘gn:':g;"y'
B C  Sccured Claim or Excmption
1. Cashon hand X
2. Checking, savings or other financial X

accounts, certificates of deposit, or
shares in banks, savings and loan,
thrift, building and loan, and
homestcad associations, or credit
unions, brokerage houses, or

cooperatives,
3. Security deposits with public REFUNDABLE RENTAL SECURITY DEPOSIT . 125.00
utilities, telephone companies,
landlords, and others.
4, Mousehold goods and furnighings, STEREO, TV, APPLIANCES, 2 CHAIRS, - 1,650.00
including audio, videa, and DINETTE W/CHAIRS, LAMPS, 2 END TABLES,
computer equipment, TV, FANS, BOOKCASE, SOFA AND LOVESEAT,
2 BOOKCASES, MICROWAVE, KITCHENWARE,
SPEAKERS, MISC DECORATOR ITEMS
5. Books, pictures and other art BOOKS ($150), ART (3200), CD'S (8150), - 550.00
objects, antiques, stawmp, coin, VIDEOS ($50)
record, tape, cownpact disc, and
other collections or collcotibles.
6.  Wearing apparcl. CLOTHING - 250.00
7. Furs and jewelry, 3 POCKET WATCHES . 30.00
8 Fireanns and sports, photogrsphic, BIKE - 50.00
and other hobby cquipment.
9. Intorests in insutance palicics. $25,000 TERM LIFE POLICY W/HEALTH - 0.00
Neme insurance cotnpany of cach INSURANCE POLICY

policy and ltemizc surrender or
refund value of each.

Sub-Toml>  2,655.00
(Total of thig page)

2 continuntion sheets anached to the Schedule of Personal Property

Copyright (2) 1963 - Best Case Solutians. Ina. - Evanaten, IL . (B00) 4928027 Bankruptcy Filing System



Inre RICK ALAN ROSS

Case No. 95-09523-PHX-~GBN

Dehtor

SCHEDULE B — PERSONAL PROPERTY

(Continuation Sheet)

H Current Market Value of
Deoscription and Location of Property \}I D'&%;ﬁm&;&m;ﬂy‘
C

Secured Claim or Excmption

10.

1

12,

13.

15.

16,

17.

18

19.

Sheet

N
Type of Property _ g
E
Annuities. Iiemize and neme each X

issuer,

Interests in IRA, ERISA, Keogh, or X
other pension or profit sharing

plens. ltemize.

Stock and interests in incorporeted X
and unincomporated businesses,

Itemize.,

Interests in partnerships or joint X

ventures, Itemize,

. Government and corporste bonds X

and othcr negotiable and
nonnegotiable instruments.

Accounts receivable.

Alimony, maintenance, support, and X
praperty settlements to which the

debtor is or mey be entitled. Give
partioulars.

Other liquidated debts owing debtor X
including tax refunds. Give
particulars.

[iquitable or future interests, life X
estates, and rights or powers

oxcreisable for the benefit of the

debtor other than those listed in

Schedule of Real Property.

Contingent and noncontingent X
interests in cstate of a decedent,

death benefit plan, life insurance

policy, or trust,

1 of _2 _ continuation sheets attached

a—

10 the Schedule of Personal Praperty

Copyright (¢) 1963 - Best Case Solutione, ine. - Evansion, IL - (800) 4928037

Sub-Tmal > 0.00
{Total of this page)
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Inre RICK ALAN ROSS

[}

CaseNo.___95-09523-PHX-GBN

Debtor

SCHEDULE B — PERSONAL PROPERTY

(Continuation Sheet)

Type of Property

Description and Locetion of Property

H Current Market Value of
W Debior's Interest in Property,
b withoyt Deducting any

C  Secured Claim or Excmption

20. Other contingent and unliquidated
claiins of every nature, including
tax refunds, counterclaims of the
dobtor, and rights to setoff claitns,
Give estimated value of cach,

21. Patents, copyrights, and other
imetlectual property. Give
particulars.

22, Licenses, franchises, and other
general intangibles, Give

particulars,

23. Automobiles, trucks, trailers, and
other vehicles and accessories,

24. Boats, motors, and accessorics.
25. Aircrafl and accessories.

26. Office equipment, fumishings, and
supplies.

27. Machinery, fixtures, equipiment, and
supplies used in busincss.

28, Inventory.
29. Animals,

30, Crops - growing or harvested. Give
particulars,

31. Fanning equipment and
implemments.

32, Farm gupplics. chemicals, and foed.

33, Other personal propecty of any kind
not already listed,

Sheet _ 2 of _2__ continuation shests anached

10 the Schedulc of Porsonal Property

3 mZ0Z

X

1987 TOYOTA TERCEL

3 DESKS, 2 CHAIRS, FAX, COPIER, WORD
PROCESSOR, FILE CABINET, LAMPS, MISC.

LUGGAGE

- 1,800.00

- 850.00

- 100.00

Subh-Total > 2,750.00

(Total of thig page)

Copyrighl (c) 1993 - Best Case Solutions, Inc. - Evanston, IL « (800) 4628037

Total>  5,405.00

(Report alsn on Swmmary of Schedules)
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Inre RICK ALAN ROSS Case No. 95-09523-PHX~GBN

Debtor

SCHEDULE C —PROPERTY CLAIMED AS EXEMPT

Debtor ¢lects the exemptions to which dobtor is cntitled under:
[Check one box]

11 USC. §522(b)(1): Exemptions provided in 11 U.S.C. §522(d). Note: Thosc exemptions are available only in certain states.

11 US.C. §522(b)(2):  Excmptions aveilable under applicable nonhankrupicy federa) laws, sute oF local law where the deblor's domicile hag
been located for the 180 days immediately preceding the filing of the petition, or for a longer portion of the 180-day
periad than in any other place, and the debtor's interest s a tenant by the cntirety or joint tenant W the extent the interest
ig exempt from process under spplicable nonbankrupiey law.

BOOKS ($150), ART ($200), CD'S ($150), ARS 33-1125(5) 250.00 550.00
VIDEOS ($50) ’

CLOTHING ARS 33-1125(1) 500.00 250.00
3 POCKET WATCHES ARS 33-1125(6) 100.00 30.00
BIKE ARS 33-1125(7) 500.00 50.00
1987 TOYOTA TERCEL ARS 1125(8) 1,500.00 1,800.00
3 DESKS, 2 CHAIRS, FAX, COPIER, WORD ARS 3301130(1) 2,500.00 850.00
PROCESSOR, FILE CABINET, LAMPS, MISC.

REFUNDABLE RENTAL SECURITY DEPOSIT ARS 33-1126(C) 1,000.00 125.00
REGULAR HOUSEHOLD FURNISHINGS ARS 33-1123 4,000.00 1,650.00

0 oontinvation shects attached 1o Schedule of Property Cisimed as Exempt

Copyright (¢) 1993 - Baat Cane Sciutions, Ine, - Evanaien, 1L - (800) 4928037
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Inre RICK ALAN ROSS Case No, 95-09523-PHX-GEN
Debtor

SCHEDULE D — CREDITORS HOLDING SECURED CLAIMS

State the name, imailing address, including 2lp code, and account nwnber, if any, of all cntities holding claimg securcd by property of the dobior as of
the date of filing of the petition. List creditors bolding all types of secured interests such as judgment licns, gamishments, swatuiory liens, mongages, decds
of trust, and other security interests. List croditors in alphabetical order to the cxtent practicable. If all sccured creditors will not fit on this page. usc the
continuation sheet provided.

1f any entity other than a spousc in a joint casc may be jointly liable on a claiin, place an "X" in the colwnn labeled “Codebtor," include the entity on
the appropriate schedule of creditors, and complete Schedule H - Codebtors. If & joint petition is filed, state whether husband, wife, both of them, or the
marital community may be lisble on cach claim by placing an “H," "W," "1 ar "C" in the column labcled "Husband, Wife, Joint, or Coinmunity "

If the claim is contingent, place an "X" in the colymn Jabeled "Contingent. If the claim is unliquidated, place an "X" in the columnn labeled
"Unliquidated.” If the claim is disputed, place an "X" in the columnn labeled "Disputed.”" (You nay nced to place an "X" in more than one of these three
columns.)

Report the total of all clalms listed on this schedule in the box labeled "To1al" on the last shect of the completed schedule. Repont this total also on
the Summnary of Schedules.

O Cheek this box if debtor has no creditors holding secured claims to report on this Schedule D.

cly DATE CLAIM WAS INCURRED,  |C|ujp| AMOUNT OF
CREDITOR'S NAMB AND MALING (D [ NATURE OF LIEN, AND NINIT WITHOUT UNSECURED
ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIPCODE (B | 7 DESCRIPTION AND MARKFT VALUE TIk[S| oEDUCTING PORTION IF
R(C SUBJECT TO LIEN T|Q|D| COARESR ,

Account No. 50516-4
COMMERCIAL CREDIT PURCNASE MONEY SECURITY INTEREST
9201 N 29TH AVE,
#62 . VCR
PHOENIX AZ 85051

Value $ 75.00 320.00 245.00
Aoccount No,

Value §
Account No,

Value §
Account No.

Value $

Subiotal
0 i I
. continuation sheets atiached (Total of this page) 320.00
Toul 320.00
(Repart on Swnary of Schedules)

Copyright (e) 1903 - Gest Case Solutions, inc. - Evanston, IL - (800} 492.8037 Banknupity Flling Sysiem



Inre RICK ALAN ROSS Case No.___95=09523-PHX-GBN
Debtor

SCHEDULE E — CREDITORS HOLDING UNSECURED PRIORITY CLAIMS

A complete list of claims entitled 1o priority, listed scparatcly by type of priority, is to be set forth on the sheews provided. Only halders of
unsecured claims entitled to priority should be listed in this achedule. In the boxes provided on the attached sheets, siate the nane and mailing
address, including zip code, and account number, if any, of ell entitics holding priority claims against the debtor or the property of the debior, as
of the datc of the filing of this petition.

If any entity other than a gpouse in & joint case may be jointy liable on a claim, place sn "X" in the column labeled "Codobtor," include the entity
on the appropriste schedulo of creditors, and complete Schedule H - Codebtors. If a joint petition is filed. state whether husband, wife, both of themn,
or the marite] community may be lisble on cach cleim by placing en “H," "W," "}," or "C" in the column labeled "Husband, Wife, Joint, or
Community."

If the clabn is contingent, place an "X" in the calumn Jabeled "Contingent." If the claiin is unliquidated, place an *X" in the column labeled
"Unliquidated.” If the claim is disputed, place an “X" in the column labeled "Disputed.” (You msy nced to place an *X" in more than one of these
three coluwnns.)

Report the total of clains listed on each gheet in the box labeled “Subtotal" on each sheet. Report the total of all cleimns listed on this Schedule
E in the box labeled "Total" on the last sheet of the completed schedule. Repeat this wtal also on the Sunmary of Schedules.

B Check this box if debtor has no creditors holding unsecured priority claiins to report on this Schedule E.
TYPES OF PRIORITY CLAIMS (Cheek the appropriste box(es) below if claims in that category sre listed on the attached sheets.)
O Extensions of credit in an involuntsry case

Claims arising in the ordinary course of the debior's business or financial affairs after the commencement of the cage but before the earlier of
the appointinent of & trustee ar the order for relicf. 11 US.C. § 507(a)(2).

O Wages, salarles, and commlssions

Wages, salaries, and cownunissions, including vacation, severance, and sick leave pay owing to employces, up 0 a maximum of $2000 per
employce. eamed within 90 days immediatcly preceding the filing of the ariginal petition, or the cessation of busincss, which ever occurred first,
10 the extent provided in 11 US.C. § 507 (3)(3).
0 Contributions to employee benefit pians

Money owed to employee benefit plans for services rendercd within 180 days imunediatcly preceding the filing of the originel petition, or the
cessation of business, whichcver occurred first, to the extent provided in 11 U.S.C. § SO7(8)(4).

O Certain farmers and flshermen

507((3[;%: of certain fanmers and fishennen, up o 2 maximum of §2000 per fanner or fisherman, against tho debtor, as provided in 11 US.C. §
a)(5).

O Deposits by Individuals

Claims of individuals up to a maximum of $900 for deposits for the purchase, leass, or rental of property or services for personal, family, or
household usc. that were nat delivered or pravided. 11 U.S.C. § 507(a)(6)

] Taxes snd Certaln Other Debts Owed to Governinents] Units
Taxcs, custoins duties, and penaltios owing io federal, statw, and lacal governmental units as set forth in 11 US.C § 507(2)(7).
O Commitments to Maintain the Capital of an Insured Depository Institution

Claims based on commitments to the FDIC, RTC, Director of the Office of Thrift Supervision, Comptroller of the Currency, or Board of Govemors
of the Federal Resorve System, or their prodecessors Or successors, to maintain the captial of an insured depasitory ingtittion, 11 US.C. § 507(a)(8).

0 continuation sheots attached

Copyright (¢) 1883 - Best Opse Solutionn, Inc. « Evension, IL - (800) 462.8037 Bankrupley Filing Syslem



Inre RICK ALAN ROSS _ CaseNo.__ 95-09523-PHX-GBN
Debtor

SCHEDULE F — CREDITORS HOLDING UNSECURED NONPRIORITY CLAIMS

State the name, mailing address, including 2ip code, and account number, if any, of all entities holding unsecurcd claims without priority against the
debtor or the property of the debior, as of the dete of filing of the petition. Do not include claims listed in Schedules D and E. If all creditors will not fit
on this page. use the continuation sheet pravided. . )

If any entity other then @ spouse in a joint case may be jointly Liable on & cluim, place an "X" in the coluinn labeled "Codebtor,” include the entity on
the appropriate schedule of creditors, and complete Schedule H - Codebtors. If a joint petition is filed, state whether husband, wife, both of them, or the
maﬁmr community may be liablo on cach claim by placing an "H," "W," "J." or "C" in the column labeled “Husband, Wife, Joint, or Community."

If the claim is contingent, place an "X" in the column labeled “Contingent.” If the claim is unliquidated, place an "X" in the colunn labeled
“Unliquidated." If the claim is disputed, place an "X" in the column leheled "Digputed.” (You may need to place an "X" in more than one of these thres
columns.)

Report tota) of all claims listed on this schedule in the box labeled “Total" on the Jast sheet of the completed schedule. Report this towl algo on the
Summary of Schedules.

[J Check thig box if debtor hag no creditors holding unsecured nonpriority claiins to report on this Schedule F.

DATE CLATM WAS INCURRED AND

. H
CREDITOR'S NAME AND MAILING W|  CONSIDERATION FOR CLAIM. IF CLAIM
o

ADDRESS INCLUDING ZIP CODE AMOUNT OF CLAIM

1S SUBJECT TO SETOFF, SO STATE.

o iaicielel
O Z 0
Oz
gom—n

Account No. 3728-850592-42002

AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT CARD
P O BOX 630001 .
DALLAS TX 75363

10,000.00

Account No, 5254-0211-5072-9422

BANK OF AMERICA CREDIT CARD
COLLECTION DEPT -
P O BOX 52326

PHOENIX AZ 85072

5,630.00

Account No. 4226-801-057-263

CHASE BANK CREDIT CARD
100 W UNIVERSITY .
ATTN COLLECTION SUPPORT
TEMPE AZ 85281

2,400.00

Account Na. 4]128-0031-9132-8692

CITICORP CREDIT CARD
CENTRAL BANKRUPTCY -
7920 NW 110TH ST

KANSAS CITY MO 64153

8,582.00

Subtotal

(Total of this page) 26,612.00

_2 __continuation sheets attached

Copyright (¢) 1993 . Bout Cawe Solylions, Ine. - Evaneton, IL - (800) 4928037 Banknploy Filing System
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Inre RICK ALAN ROSS

Case No.

95-09523-PHX~-GBN

SCHEDULE F —CREDITORS HOLDING UNS

Dehtor

(Continuation Sheet)

ECURED NONPRIORITY CLAIMS

CREDITOR'S NAME AND MAILING
ADDRESS INCLUDING ZIP CODE

i delel

DATE CLAIM WAS INCURRED AND
CONSIDERATION FOR CLAIM. IF CLAIM
1S SUBJECT TO SETOFF. SO STATE.

[e IO% -1

—HoHZ0
O ZC
gon—g

AMOUNT OF CLAIM

Account No. 61-667-896-7

DILLARDS
P O BOX 52067
PHOENIX AZ 85072-2067

CREDIT CARD

1,110.00

Account No.

ELIZABETH TURNER SMITH
DEREK VANDERWOOD
7500-212TH ST

SUITE 214

EDMUNDS WA 98026

ATTORNEY SERVICES

570.00

Account No,

ETHEL ROSS
STION3ISTWAY
#3317

PHOENIX AZ 85016

LOAN

17,500.00

Account No, 572-431-697-0

J C PENNY
4580 PARADISE BLVD NW
ALBUQUERQUE NM 87201

CREDIT CARD

461.00

Account No,

JASON SCOTT, C/0 KENDRICK MOXON, ESQ.
MOXON & BARTILSON

6255 SUNSETY BLUD

SUITE 2000

HOLLYWOOD CA 90028

JUDGMENT ON LAWSUIT

3,125,000.00

Sheetno. __1 of _2 _ aheets attached to Schedule of
Creditors Holding Unscoured Nonpriority Claims

Copyright (o) 1863 . Bem Cese Solulions, inc. « Evaneton, IL - (800) 4920027

(Total of this page)

Subtotal

3,144,641.00

Bankruptoy Fiiing Syslem




Inre RICK ALAN ROSS

CaseNo.__95-09523-PHX-GBN

Debror

SCHEDULE F —CREDITORS HOLDING UNSECURED NONPRIORITY CLAIMS

(Continuation Sheet)

C ClUID
. H DATE CLAIM WAS INCURRED AND NIN| I
CREDITOR'S NAME AND MAILING Dlw CONSIDERATION POR CLAI, TF ELAI |11 5
R
Account No. 3038-6038-1
NEIMAN MARCUS CREDIT CARD
P O BOX 720848 .
DALLAS TX 75372-0848
1,100.00
Aoccount No, 86-0086-7512
ROBINSON-MAY CREDIT CARD
P O BOX 52098 -
TPHOENIX AZ 85072-2098
605.00
Account No.
Account No.
Account No.
Sheetno. _2  of_2 _ sheets nttached 10 Schedule of Subtotal
Creditors Holding Unsccurod Nonpriority Claims (Total of this page) 1,705.00
Total
- 3,172,958.00

Copyright () 1983 - Best Case Solullons, Inc. - Evenston, IL - (800) 492-8037

(Report on Swinmary of Schedules)

Bankruptey Flling Systam




Inre RICK ALAN ROSS

1

CaseNo.___95=09523-PHX-CRN

Debtor

SCHEDULE I — CURRENT INCOME OF INDIVIDUAL DEBTORC(S)
The column labeled "Spouse" must be completed in all cases filed by joint debtors and by a married debtor in 2 chapter 12 or 13 case whether
or not a joint petition ls filed, unless the spouses are separated and 2 joint petition is not filed.

Debtor's Mantal Staus: DEPENDENTS OF DEBTOR AND SPOUSE
[ NAMES AGE RELATIONSHIP
None.
Single
EMPLOYMENT: : DEBTOR SPOUSE
Occupation CONSULTANT
Name of Employer SELF-EMPLOYED
How long employed 9 YEARS
Address of Employer
INCOME: (Estimate of average monthly income) DEBTOR SPOUSE
Current monthly gross wages, salary, and commissions (pro rate if not paid monthly)  §, 2,000.00 $ 0.00
Estimated monthly overtime . .. ... ... e $ 0.00 s 0.00
SUBTOTAL . . . i e e s rS 2.000.00 $ 0.00 ]
LESS PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS
a. Payroll taxes and social seourlty . ... .. oo $ 120,00 $ 0.00
B IRSUIANCE . . ottt v e e $ 0.00 $ 0.00
CUnlon dUEs ... e 3 0.00 $ 0.00
d. Other (Specify)____ $ 0.00 $ 0.00
SUBTOTAL OF PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS . ......... ... . .o, 3 120.00 3 0.00
TOTAL NET MONTHLY TAKEHOMEPAY ........ ... .o vt $ 1.880,00 $ 0.00
Regular income from operation of business or profession or farm (attach detailed
statement) ... ... .. P $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Income from real Property . ... . ... ... $ 0.00 $ 0.00
Interest and dividends . ... ... . .. $ 0,00 3 0.00
Alimony, maintenance or support payments payable to the debtor for the debtor's use
or that of dependents listed above ... ... ... ... ... . oo oi e s 0.00 $ 0,00
Social seourity or other government assistance
Specity) e $ 0.00 $ 0.00
............. 3 0.00 3 0.00
Pension or retirement INCOME . .. . v v e e v in cvn e e $ 0.00 5 0,00
Other monthly income
Speeify) e $ 0.00 ) 0.00
............ s 0.00 3 0.00
TOTAL MONTHLY INCOME [ § 1.8¥0.00 [ 0.00

TOTAL COMBINED MONTIHLY INCOME

$___1.880.00

(Report also on Summary of Schedules)

Describe any increasc or decrease of inore than 10% in any of the above categories anticipated to oceur wi thin the year following the filing

of this docuinent:

Copyright (¢) 1993 - Bexl Cese Solutlona, Ine. - Evansion, I\ - (800) 482-8037

Bankruploy Filing System



Inre RICK ALAN ROSS Case No. 95-09523-PHX-GBN

Debtor

SCHEDULE J — CURRENT EXPENDITURES OF INDIVIDUAL DEBTOR(S)

Camplete this schedule by estimating the average monthly expenses of the debtor and the debtor’s family. Pro rate any payments
made bi-weekly, guarterly, semi-annually, or annually to show monthly rate.

0 Check this box if a jolnt petition is filed and debtor’s spousc maintains & separate houschold. Complete a separate schedule of
cxpenditures labeled "Spouse.”

Rent or home mortgage payment (include ot rented for mobilehome) . ..... ................ L3 476,00
Are real estate taxes included? Yes No X
Is property insurance included? Yes No X
Utllities: Electricity and heating fuel . ... ... ... . i i i e $ 0.00
WRLET BN SBWET . . .o v e e e e e 3 0.00
T PO . o e S 250,00
oker___ $ 0.00
Home maintenance (repairs and UpKeep) .. . ... .. i $ 0,00
BOOd L. e $ 300.00
Clothin g . . . e e e e b 75.00
Laundry and dry eleanming . . .. . ... 0 e e e e e $ 50,00
Medical and dental expenses . . . ... L 5 30,00
Transportation (not including car payments) . ... ... .o e 3 150,00
Recreation, clubs and entertainment, newspapers, magazines, €1¢. . .. ........................ $ 100.00
Charitable contribUtONS .. .. . .. e Ly 50.00
Insuranoe (not deducted from wages or included in home mortgage payments)
HOTneOWNEr'S OF TS . vt e i e e S 15,00
O $ 10.00
Health ... e e e $ 130.00
D $ 70.00
Other__ e — $ 0,00
Taxes (not deducted from wages or included in home mortgage payments)
(Specify) . | 000
Installment payments: (In chapter 12 and 13 cases, do not list payments to be included in the plan.)
N $ 0.Q0
otker___ $ 0.00
Ohwer_____ s 0.00
Alimony, maintenance, and support paidto others ... .. ... ... . ... ... e L3 0.00
Payments for support of additional dependents not living at yourhome .. ................. ... $ 0.00
Regular expenses from operation of business, profession, or fann (attach detailed statement) ... . ... $ 0.00
Other_____MIS BUSINESS COPIES, POSTAGE, TYPING, SUPPLIES, SERVICRSETC . ....... ) 475.00Q
TOTAL MONTHLY EXPENSES (Report also on Summary of Schodules) . ................... 3 2,181.00

[FOR CHAPTER 12 AND 13 DEBTORSONLY]

Provide the information requested below, including whether plan payments are to be made bi-weekly, monthly, annually, or a1 some
other regular interval.

A. Total projected mORthly iNCOINE . . ... oot v et e e $___NA

B. Total projected monthly expenses . . ... ... $__ N/A

C. Exoessincome (Aminus B) . ......... .ottt $__N/A

D. Total amount to be paid intopleneach . ... $__ N/A
(interval)

Copyright (o) 1083 - Besl Case Solulions, Inc. - (800) 402-8037 Bankrupicy Filing Systam
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PORM 1. VOLUNTARY PETITION

7 GHN

il ren

United States Bankruptcy Court
District of Arizona

VOLGNEARY
PETITION

IN RF (Name of dedtor-)f IndIVIdual, unter Lasi, Firer, Migdin)
ROSS, RICK ALAN

NAME OF JOINT DEBTOR (Soousel (Last, "’W’fﬂ 3 “ m .‘ﬁ

ALL OTHER NAMES used by 1he Subter In the Tast € vears
RICKY ALAN ROSS

v .
ALL QTHER NAMES uewd by the joint deirtor in the st 5ﬂc£ - W l!“ tH

U.S. BaA!
DISTRIAT H’,'(%PITZOOYHA

S0C. SEC./TAX 1.0, NO {It mare than ane, state ait]
527-94-6359

BOC., SEC/TAX 1.D. NO (it more than ane. mate all.)

STREET ADDRESS OF DEBTOR (Ne. and strust, oity, state, and 2ip cody)
DEBTOR HAS HIGHLY VOLITAL PROFESSION WHICH
CREATE RARM TO HIM IF DISCLOSED

COUNTY ol residance o¢ principat pixoe af busineas

STREET ADDRESS OF JOINT DEBTOR (No. and straet, city, atate, and 2ip code!

COUNTY st reaidonte ar sAncipal place of Dusiness

MAILING ADDRESS GF DEBTOR I dtfierent from strset addruse}
P O BOX 32906
PHOENIX, AZ 85064

MAILING ADDRESS OF JOINT DEBTOR {If ditterent from streel acdrees!

LOCATION OF PRAINCIPAL ASRETS OF AUSINESS DEBTOR ilf diffarent from abavel

VENUE (Ceci ane e

n Osbtor han been domisiled ot haa had x rosi incipal plnce of busi o
prinamal aseete Ia the Distret tar 180 dayw lmmnm-lv pracsding the dite ot thia
netition or bor & lenger vt of such 180 dwys than in Any other Distriot.

=] Thete is = bankruptay cane concerning debtor's Atfilinte, genwral partaar, of partasrahin
pendiivg in the Distrlct.

INFORMATION REGARQING DEBTOR (Check apalicabis boxwe}

TYPZ OF DEBTOR (Cheek onv box!

N Individunl O  Cornoration Publiciv Haid

O Jelnt {Husband & Wife} O Corperaticn Not Publioly Held

O Partnershin 8 Municipaity

QO Other

NATURE OF DEBT ICheck ont Bex)

B Nen.usiness/Canuumer O Businese (Compiste A & B butew!
A. TYPE OF BUSINESS (Chwek one Doxi

O  Farming Q  Tranonoriation O Sommadity Breker
3 Pratassionn QO  Manautasturing/ Q Ceonstruction

0 Rewll'Whelwanis Mining G Aeat Eatets

D Ralirost O  Stackbroker O Orher Business

B. BRIEFLY DESCRIBE NATURE OF BUSINESS

CHAPTER O SECTION OF BANKRUSTCY CODE UNDER WHICH THE PETITION 19 FILED
{Choek one Bext
8 Chaptor 7
0O Chaptar 8

C  Chapter 11
O  Chaptar 12

D Chapter 13
O Bas. 304 . Case Ancillery 10
Forelpn Pracepding
SMALL BUSINESS (Chapter 11 onlyl
O Daebtor a 4 amill businuss ps dofind in 1L US.C. Q‘O‘l
O Debditer is untt eisets te by considered & smail dusiness under 11 U.E.C. S\ 121(#). (Optional}

EILING FEE (Chetk ane Dex)

B Filing tew attwched

O Filing fee 1 be pald in (netalimente (Aoplizable 1o individuals only.) Must attach signed
apoiication tor the court's considsratian cartifying that the deliter Is unatile 10 pay 1ee
wxcop! in inetaliments. Auls 1005(b). Sens Otfigisd Ferm No. 3.

NAME ANU ADUREBS OF LAW FINM OR ATTORNEY
Petition prepared by Office of R. L. Davars
7207 N. Tth St.
PHOENIX, AZ 85020

Toimphone No. (602) B70-3328

NAMEISI OF ATTORNEY!S! DESIGNATED TQ REPRESENT THE DEBTOR

NONE-PRO SE

STATISTICALADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION (28 U.8.C. § 304
maes anly - Chaek ioabls boxes]

W Bubtor 1a nai rapresented by #n stiarney. ToepRons ne. of deblor nat repressnted Dy an
4toraey:

D Dudter setimates that tunds will by uvalisple ter distribution 1o unsveured oreditora. THIZ SPACT EOR COURT USE ONLY
§  Debtor extimates that, after any vxempt property ie nd administrative pid, there will be no funds
i 1or butlen to .,
ESTIMATED NUMBER OF CREDITORS
118 18:48 50.90 100-198 200-909 1000\aver
n « 0 2] (=] Q a
ESTIMATED ASSETS (In thetisande of dollare!
Undyr 60 5049 100409 $00.999 1000-9398 10,000.99,000 100,000-0ver
L U 4] 2} Q Q Q
ESTIMATED UABILITIES tin thoussnds ot dollarel
Under 60 60-A9 100-499 500-999 1000.998Y 10,000-99,000 100,000-cver
2] =] 0 (=] L ju) o
EST. NO OF EMPLOYEES (CH 11 & 12 ONLY)
0 119 20.9% 100-899 1.000-aver
Q a ] Q Q /’
EST. NO OF EQUITY SECURITY MOLDERS (CH 11 & 12 ONLY) /'
] 119 20.99 100.4088 800.0ver /
Q [y} Q a [}
P el ekt e e - N W] [P RP—




RO8S, RICK ALAN

Neme of Dabte,

Case No

{Eaun uos only)

FILING OF PLAN
For Chepler B, 11, 12 and 13 caewe anly. Cheek apprapriste box.

O A cepy of the debrer's plan duted is Witached,

O Debtor intands te filv x plan within the tirme allowsd Sy 8
PRIOR BANKRUPTCY CABE FILED WITHIN LAST & YEARS (It more than onw, attach additlanst shest!

te, ruly, or order of the sount,

Locatien Where Filed Case Number Date Filog
- None =~
PENDING BANKAUPTCY CASE FILED BY ANY SPOUSE, PARTNER, OR AREILIATE OF THE DEBTON {1 more than onw, aiteen nsditionnl shaet)
Neme of Dabtor Caav Number Dme
- None -
Reintionohip Oietrict Juage

REQUEET FOR RELIES

Deblor is vligible for and reguonta rallef in eccortance with the chapter of thin 11, United Statee Codw, spacificd in this petifien,

BIGNATURES

ATTORNEY

X

Signature Dute

INDIVIDUALLJOINT DEBTOR(S)

1 declare under penalty of perjury that the information provided in this
potition is true and correct,

CORPORATE OR PARTNERSMIP DEBTOR

I declare under penalty ofpexjur& that the information provided in this
petition ir true and corrnct, and s

at 1 have besn authorizad to flle thi

-~ petition on behalf of the debtor.

N

Corer Rl

Signature ot DuR‘rR;C!( ALAN ROSB
L0 —/G-73

Signature ot Autharized Individunl

Bute Print ar Tyow Name of Authorizea Individus
x Title of individual Authorized by Oabior te Pile this Purition
Signaturs of Jaint Dedter
Dty
Dme 11 dwbtor ly n cornoratlen Niing under chapter 11, ExNIDIt "A" is atunshad and mute » part of thie patition

7O BE COMPLETED BY INDIVIOUAL CHAPTER 7 DEBTOR WITH PRIMARILY CONSUMER OEBTS
(Sve P.L, 98-369 § 322)

| am awnre that | may nroceed under ehapter 7, 11, 12, or 13 of titiw 11, United Statws Cods, underatand the relinf
nvailnble UNdur vech suoh chapiur, and chooee to procesd under chapter 7 of suoh ritle.

1 | 4™ reproasntud by un attorney, exhibit "B® hxa besn completed,

(O /693
Date

Signature of Joint Debler Date

EXHIBIT “B" [To be compinted by atracnwy for individual chapter aedloris) with primarily consuraer dubte.)

1, the m1tomney ter the detiorisl named in the foregeing pefition, duciary 1that | Rave intarmed the debler(s) 1nat Iw,
$he, of thovl may proeesd under chapter 7, 11, 12, or 13 of titte 11, United Statea Code, ma Nivg explained the rellet
nvuilnble under each euch chapter.

X
Signature of Attorney

Date

CRRTMFICATION AND SIGNATURE OF NON-ATTORNEY
BANKRUPTCY PETITION PREPARER (Sps 11 U.B.C. § 110)

| ourtity thal | am & binkrutoy petitin prapersr e defined in 31 U.8.C. §110,
that | prepars0 this document for aempensation, and that | hive providey the
Swdtor with 2 eopy ef (hie document.

Printwd or Typed Nums o Bankrupicy Petition Proparer

8ocial Swourity Number

Address Tal. No,

Numen and Soelal Geanrity numbers af all athwr individugle wha propares of
ansivted [ pronering this doauirent:

1l more than one person praamed this dacument, attazh addiflennl siginwd
shewte conforming to the upnrapriate Ottien! Form for ench purgen,

X
Signature of Bankrurtoy Petition Preparer

Ab ptey pelition ‘¢ failure te cemply with the provisiona ot ¥tle 19 and
Redural of Bankruptey Procsdiire may resull in fines of imprsenmen of beth.
11USC §110; 18U.S.C, J158




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT P
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK ress Co y

O NO ses e r
NXIVM CORPORATION, Formetly Known s t Rem Ove 0RO g’ﬁl‘ Coygy
EXECUTIVE SUCCESS PROGRAMS, INC. and NAY )
FIRST PRINCIPLES, INC, Al o FiLep
el C
Plaintiffs, WNZ‘?,( 76 203
- against - " QAEHM 7
Civil Action

THE ROSS INSTITUTE, RICK ROSS a/k/a

“RICKY ROSS”, JOHN HOCHMAN and - O -5 'Q.\é" .U k} ?l 6

'STEPHANIE FRANCO,

Defendants. CTIM Y4 DRH

Plaintiffs, NXIVM Cotéorarion. formerly known as Executive Success Programs, Inc. and Pisst Peciples,
Inc., by and chrough their attorneys, Tobin and Dempf, LLP, as and for a‘! complaint against defendants TT;: Ross
Insticute, Rick Ross, John [Flochman, and Stcphanic Franco, staces and alleges the following:

Introduetion

I This is an action against the defendants for their wrongfully obtaining ttadematked proprictary
materials of plaintiffs in violation of the trademasks, pending patents and .a writeen confidentiality agreement, and
then uilized the materials in a false, deceptive and misleading manner to obtain commercial benefit to themnselves

‘and at the expense of plainciffs.

| Jurisdiction

2 This is an action of a civil nature in which the marerial causes of action an& issues of law ot fact
are alleged under IS US.C. §1121, et al, and this Court has original jusisdiction thereof.

3. Putsuant w IS U;S.C Section 1121, this case is properly wahm this Cowrt pursuant to.che
original federal quesﬁon jurisdiction of this Cour:t. Jurisdiction of the New York State common law claims arise
from the pendent jurisdicrion of this court.

The Parties

4. Ac all times relevant herero, plaintiff NXIVM Corporation, formetly known as Executive Success

Progeams, Inc. (hereinaftcr referred to as- “Executive Success”), was a foreign corporation formed and existing under

TOBIN AND DEMPF, LLP = ATTORNEYS AT LAW.- 33 ELK STREET - ALBANY, NEW YORK 12207




the laws of the‘ State of Delaware authorized to do business in the stace of New York, wich its principal plice of
business locared ar 455 New Karner Road, Albany, New York 12205,

S. At all vmes relevane hereto, plaintiff First Principles, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Firsc
Principles”) was a foreign corporation formed and cxisting under the laws of the Stace of Delaware authorized to do
busines.; in the state of New York, with its ptincipal place of business located at 455 New Karner Road, Albany,
New York 1220S.

6. Upon information and belief, and at all times relevant hereco, defendant The Ross Instituce is a
not-for-profit organization created and existing under the laws of the State of New Jersey.

7. Defendant The Ross Institute does business in the State of New Yotk with fespect to the macerials
subject to this claim, snd knowingly disseminates from its website the materials sﬁbjccc to this litigation for
distribution to the geographic confines of the Northern Disttice of New York. |

8. Upon information and belicf, defendant Rick Ross (a/k/a “Ricky Ross”) is an individual residing
in the State of New Jersey. |

9. Defendant Rick Ross has knowingly disseminated materials subject to this action within the
jutisdiction of the Norther District of New York.

I0. Upon informarion and belief, and at all times televant hereto, defendant John Hochman was a
licensed psychiacrist, with his ptincipal place of business located at 9911 West Pico Boulevard, Suite 660, Los
Angelos, Califormia 90035. | |

IL Defendant John Hochman does business in the State of New York, and knowingly provides on che
websites of defendants Rick Ross and The Ross Institute (“www.cultnews.com” and “www.rickross.com”) materials
subject to this claim for dissemination within the geographical confines of the Northern Districc of New York.

12, Defendant John Hochman knowingly authorized the dissemination of the materials subject to this
licigation to be regularly accessed from the jurisdiction 'of the United States District Court for the Northern Districe

of New York, and to be downloaded within the jurisdiction of the United States District Courr for the Northern

District of New York.

TOBIN AND DEMPF, LLP - ATTORNEYS AT LA\}- 33 ELK STREET - ALBANY, NEW YORK 12207




I3. Upon information and belief, and ac all cimes relevanc hereto, defendant Stephanic Frarico'is an
individual residing at 36 Darlington Road, Deal, New Jersey 07723, and comumitred the actions upon which this
claim is based within the jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Northern District of New York,

The Facts

14, Exccutive Success operates professional business training programs to train businesspeople ar the
highest level of their professions, or those seeking to advance within business organizations, to develop analytical
tools, logical approaches to problem-solving, and other training and analysis techniques.

Is. Executive Success preseats business training pmgram throughout the United States, including
Alaska, California, Colorado, Arizona and New York, and have provided executive training prégrams in Mexico.

16. Executive Success trains business Mgas and chief executives of nationwide companics and
managers of state agencies wich up to forty business professionals carning upwards of a million dollars p;:t ycat at any
one time participating in the program ac one of the Executive Success training sitcs. Included in its business training
have been Sheils Johason, the co-founder of the Black Entercainment Network (BET), the loader of the lurgest
business restructuring firm in the world, ;nd the formet first lady of Mexico.

17. Executive Success is currently building a 70,000 squarc foot facility in upstate New York, where
it will center all of its programs, exccutive offices, and staff, which staff now number in excess of three hundred.

18. First Principles, Inc. has developed ¢omprehensive trademack, copytight and proprietary written
muaterials which, at all cimes pertinent hereto, have been exclusively licensed to Executive Success (hereinafter referred
to as “provected materials”)

18. The prorected matcrials ace all essential and matetial to the business of Executive Success and First
Principles.

20.  The principal protected materials for the training program is a weitten manual developed by
plainciffs and which is tradematked, copyrighted and pxl-opr'u-cary in nature.

2L All ensollees in Exccutive Success programs are required to sigh a Confidendiality Agrecment
agreeing to respect the confidentiality of the materials made available or provided to entollees, and accede to the

issuance of an injunction against the dissemination of thosc materials.
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22. During a training progtam, Executive Success made available to defendant Stephanic Ftihico
protected muterials owned by First Principles and licensed exclusively to Executive Success that are protected by both
trademark and copyright, and which were proprietary on the part of First Principles and Exccutive Success during
the course of her participation in the Executive Success program in 2001.

23.  Defendant Stepbanic Franco signed a written confidenciality agreement’ with Executive Success
agrecing that the materials were confidential and not to be disseminatcd.

24.  Defendant Ross Institute and Rick Ross were individually or collectively paid to obtajin the
tradcmarked, copyrighted and protected materials of plaintiff from defendant Seephanie Franco.

28, Unknown to Executive Success, defendant Stephanie Franco breached the agteement thac she had
signed, and disscminated to Rick Ross and The Ross Institute a sec of the protected materials.

26. In addition, the protected matetials contained trademark and copyright notification p;rc-pﬁnced on
all pages of the protected macerials. |

27. Defendant Rick Ross acknowledged in a July 29, 2;003 Albany Times Unfon article and on the
websires of defendants Rick Ross and The Ross Institute that he has obtained a set of the protected marerials.

28.  Despite knowing that the protected materials that it obtained from defendanc Stephanie Franco
were tradematked, copyrighted and subject to a confidentiality agreement, defendants Rick Ross and The Ross
Institute obtained and utilized the protected materials for cheir own commercial purposes and disseminated the
protected materials to defendant John Hochman, who, upon information and belief, was paid by Rick Ross and/ot
The Ross Institute to utilize, analyze and then disclose the protected materials or. sclect portions of the protected
materials of plainciffs.

29. Defendant John Hochman obtained commercial benefic in obtaining the protected materials and
disseminaing the protected matetials on'the intsenet through Rick Ross and The Ross Institute to market
themselves o the public. |

30.  Defendant John Hochman hes specifically acknowledged thac he obtained and ucilized che
plainciffs’ protected materials, which was done in violation of the trademark and copyright protections and the

confidentiality agreement, and, upon information and belief, in awareness of the confidentiality agreement, and
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preparcd and issued a written report which utilized the protecred materials, distorted che contents of the prttegted
materials, misquoted and misdescribed the protected materials, and then provided said written report om the
protected materials to The Ross Institute and Rick Ross which detailed these distortions on the internec.

3L Rick Ross and The Ross Insttute, aware that the plaintiffs’ materials were trademarked,
copytighted, proprietary and confidential, disseminated the Hochman analysis that defendancs Rick Ross and/ot
The Ross Institute had funded on its website for distribution on the intcmet to obtain commercial benefit

32.  The Hochman report describing the protected materials thar Rick Ross and The Ross Instituce

present on their website and which any individual accessing the website can obtain is false and mislcading, and

utilizes legally protected materials of plaintiffs in a distortive way and in violation of the trademark and copyright of

plaintiffs, the agreement signed by defendant Stephanie Pranco and the Lanham Act

33. Defendants have placed false descriptions of plaintiffs’ materials on a website ownedlby defendant
Rick Ross called “cultnews.com” and chasacterized plaintiffs’ business training progtam as “mind control” and
“cult” activitics, and included plaintiffs on an alphabetized list of orgax;iza.tions including the Arian Brotherhood, the
Al-Quaeda and the Free Love Ministries.

34. Defendanc John Hochman, Rick Ross, The Ross Instituce and Stephanie Franco have conspired
cach with the other to breach the confidentiality agreement of defendant Franco, violate plaintiff's trademark and
copyright, and utilize the proptietaty materials of phintifﬁ in violation of the Franco agreement, and to then disvore
the contents of the protected marerials for commercial gain in violation of the Lanham Act.

35.  Defendants Rick Ross and The Ross | Instituce obtain commercial gain using the protccted
matetials to atract consumers and buyers to their websice to purchasc and usilize services and materials of The Ross
Institute, Rick Ross and John Hochman.

36, Dlaintiffs will be irreparably harmed by the utilization of its protected marerials and information
by defendants. A search undet the internct search engine “Google” utilizing any number of combination of names
including Executive Success produces Rick Ross and The Ross Institute as an intcrnet portal to obtain false,

distorted and protected information about Ezccutive Success and the contents of its programs.
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37.  Anyonc from the United States or overseas who would be interested in Execunive Sucess' who
access the websice of defendanes Rick Ross and The Ross Institute will find proprietary information of plaintiffs,
and there is no ability for plaintiffs to derermine for certain the extent of which individuals who access the site have
refused to utilize the services of ot participating in Executive Success programs.

38.  Individuals who have signed up for participation in the executive training program in the Albany,
New York area have cancelled their tegistzations as a direct result of the dissemi;'lation of the falsc information by
defendants and its inclusion on defendants’ “cult” website. | |

39.  Individuals have refused to associate their names with plaintffs as a direct resulc of the
dissemination of the false information by defendants. The townspeople where plaintiffs are seeking approval for
their new building have contacted the Town Planning Board citing to defendants’ websices and characterizing
plaintiffs as a cule Three prominent business and govemmentlleade:s who had Jent their names to ‘plainciffs for
marketing have requested that plainGiff remove their names citing to defendants’ website charactcrizations of
plainciffs as 2 “cult”. |

40, Competitors of plainciffs, of which there are many in the ficld of professional development, would
have the capability of accessing che sice and obtaining the fase materials and using what they obtain either as a
eriticism of plaintiffs or to duplicate certain aspects of plaintiffs’ protected marerials which arc proprietary in natute.
of 1o use the misstatements to compete against the plaindfbs:

41, Plaintiffs will suffer irreparable hamn by the actions of defendants Rick Ross, The Ross Institure,
John Hochman and Stephanic Franco, and have no adequate remedy ac law.

AS AND EOR A FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST THE
DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFES STATE AND ALLEGE THE
FOLLOWING
42, Dlaintffs repeat, reiterace and fe-allcge each and cvery allegation contained in patagraphs of this
complaint designated “1” through “41”, inclusive with the sarne force and effect as iF hereinafter set forth in full.
43.  Defendants The Ross Insttucs, Rick Ross, John Hochman and Stephanic Franco made falsc and

misleading representations in writing about the natute, characteristics and quality of the plainciffs’ serviccs.
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44.  The mistepresentations were made by defendants on the intetnet and newspapers in corumtyce in
connection wich plaingiffs’ services.

45.  The usc of the interner by .defendanrs resulted in the dissemination of the false materials to the
purchasing public.

46.  The miscepresentations were made as part of and in the context of commercial advertising and
promotion of the defendants by the defendants.

47.  The misteprescntations were made for the purpose of influencing consumers to buy services of the
defendancs.

48. The mistepresentations by defendants cause the plaintiffs to kriow that damages will resule from
the false representations influencing consumers to buy sexvices of the defendans.

AS AND FOR A SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST THE
DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFES STATE. AND ALLEGE THE
FOLLOWING

49.  Plaintiffs repear, reiterate and re-allege each and ev?ry allegation contained in paragraphs of this
complaint designated "1” through “48" inclusive wich the same force and effect as if hereinafter sec forth in full.

50. Defendants The Ross Institue, Rick Ross, John Hochman and Stepbaoie Franco individually and
collaboratively made falsc and misleading scavemnents in writiog about the nature, charactetistics and quality of the
plainciffs’ services.

SI.  That defendants willfully conspired and engaged in the aforesaid overt actions in furtherance of
thei conspisacy to barm plaintiffs. |

52.  That the above actions of defendants were in direct violation of 15 US.C. §I125.

§3.  The misccpresencations by defendants cause the plaintiffs to know that damages will result from
the false representations influencing consumers to buy services of the defendancs.

AS AND FOR A THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST THE
DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFFS STATE AND ALLEGE THE
FOLLOWING: .

54 Plainciffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation contained in paragraphs of this

complaint designated “1” through “S3", inclusive wich the same force and effect as if hereinafter sev forth in full.
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SS. Defendants The Ross Institute, Rick Ross, John Hochman and Stephanie Franco individually and
collaboratively published portions of plaintiffs’ protected materials of a proprietary nature.

56. Thac defendancs willfully and knowingly urilized and published proprietary materials of plainciffs
in full violation of the trademark of plaintiffs.

57. That the above actions of defendants were in direct violation of 15 US.C. §I128.

8. The mistepresentations by defendants cause the plaintiffs to know thac damages will result from

the false representations influencing consumers to buy services of the defendants.

AS AND FOR A FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST THE

DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFES STATE AND ALLEGE THE

FOLLOWING: -
Breach of Contract (Pendent Claim)

59.  Plainciffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege cach and every allegation contained in paragrsphs of this
complaint designated “1” through “58”, inclusive with the same fo.rcc and effecr as if hereinafter sec forch in full

60.  Thar, at all times televant hereto, the confidentiality agreement between defendant Sttp}’lanie
Franco and plaintiff Executive Success was a legal and binding agreement between defendant Franco and plaintiff
Executive Success.

6I.  Defendant Stephanie Franco breached the agteement in umerous and varied substantial ways
including, but not limited to, providing defendants Rick Ross and/or The Ross Institute with a copy of plaintiffs’
protected materials.

62.  That by tcason of the foregoing, the plaintiffs have sustained substancial damages for breach of

contract.

AS AND FOR A FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST THE
DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFFS STATE AND ALLEGE THE
FOLLOWING

Conversion (Pendent Claim)
63. Plaintiffs repear, tciterate and rc-allege each and every allegation contained in paragraphs of this

complaint designated “1” through “62”, inclusive with the same force and effec as if hereinaftor set forth in full
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64. Thar defendanes Rick Ross and The Ross Institut, wndividually and in conspiracy with defesdancs
Stephanic Franco and John Hochman, converted to themselves and others money and other specific property and
value belonging to the plaintiffs or to which the plaintiffs maintained an interest superior to that of each of said
defendants.

65.  That the specific property converted by defendants included the trademarked, copyrighted,
proprictaty and confidential materials of plaineiffs.

66.  That defendants’ receipt and possession of the aforementioned protected materials was an
unauthorized control over said materials belonging to the plaintiffs and/or to which the plaintffs had a superior
interest to defendants. -

67. That each and all of the aforesaid actions weze engaged in by defendants incencionally, wantonly
and in flageanc disregard for the rights of the plainsiff. '

68. That by reason of the defendants’ conversion of said protected matetials, the plaintiffs have
sustained substantial damages. |

AS AND FOR A SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST THE
DEFENDANTS, PLAINTIFFS STATE AND ALLEGE THE
FOLLOWING:

| Fraud (Pendent Claim)

69.  Plaintiffs repeat, reiterate and re-allege each and every allegation contained in paragraphs of this
complaint designated “I” through “68", inclusive with the same force and effect as if hereinafter sct forth in Kl

70.  Defendants Jobn Hochman, Rick Ross, The Ross Institute and Stephanie Franco have conspised
each with the other to breach the confidentiality agreement of defendant Franco, violate plaintiffs trademark and
copyright, and ucilize the proprietary matetials of plaintiffs in violation of the Franco agreement as detailed above.

71. That defendants i(new and actively engaged in )thc aforesaid action, and did so with the intcation
to deceive and/or deftaud the plaintiffs. |

72 Thar the plainciff was deceived by the actions of defendant Stephanie Franco and, as a result, have
suffeted substantial damages.

73. WHEREFORE, plaincifF seek to obtain a preliminary injunction for the following relief:
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a temporary and prcliminaty injunction order against defendants Rick Ross and Thé Ross
Institure directing that said defendants remove from their websites www.tickross.com and
www.cultnews.com and any website with which they have association any information
pertuning to the NXIVM Corporation, Executive Success Programs, Inc. and First
Principles, Inc.'s materisls and information including, bur not limited to, description of
the program, description of program materials, stacements about the program or program
materials, usc of the names NXIVM Corporation, Executive Success Programs, Inc. and
First Principles, Inc, and any and all other information pertaining to NXIVM
Corporation, Executive Success Progtams, Inc. and Firse Principles, Inc. pending trial of
this action;

a temporary and preliminaty injuaction order agaiast all of the defendancs preventing all
of the dcfendants from usilizing, displaying, telaying, describing, caplaining,
characrerizing, disseminating, and/or commenting on any of the NXIVM Corporation,
Executive Success Programs, Inc. and First Principles, Inc. materials, information, coursc
descriptions or other information pertaining to any other person or party and through any
means whether it be emails, conversations, websitcs, cotrespondence, statements orally or
in writing, or any other method of communication;

a temporary and preliminary injunction order against all of the defendants that the
original and any and all copies of the NXIVM Corporation, Executive Success Programs,
Inc. and First Principles, Inc. protected materials in the possession of all defendants be
immediately returned to counsel for the plaintiff, and thar any notcs, writings or othcr
documents pertaining to the materials in the possession of defendants be rcrurned to

plaindiff's eounsel;

that a preliminary injunction issue pending trial;

compensatory damages in the sum of $2,430,000.00 against the defendants on each cause
of action;

punitive damages in the sum of $7,290,000.00 on each cause of action: and
such other and further relicf as this Court deerns just, proper and equitable.

Plainriffs hereby demand a jury erial wich respect to both liability and damages.

Dated: Auguse 5, 2003

TOBIN aid DEMPE,

Kevin A. Luibrand

Bar Roll No. 102083
Artorneys for Plaintiffs
Office and P.O. Address:

33 Elk Screet

Albany, New York 12207
Telephone: (518)463-1177
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Name: HARYANTO SOEDARPO

Address: .
; Sex: M Height: 511
License: D00052211 e #8 Eyes: BRO Weight: 140
DOB: 10/30/1967 ’

Ul 1

ApoT This document is a certified duplicate of the information contained in the computer storage

devices of the Department of Transportation, Motor Vehicle Division, in accordance with Arizona
Revised Statutes section 28-444.



National SSN Header Search Results

National SSN Header Search Results

This search cost: $7.50

Client Reference: (none)

Query Information
Search Type: SSN
Bureau: Third Source
SSN: 600819067

Third Source Results
HARRY SOEDARPO SS: 600-81-9067
20 RIVER CT APT 2211 DOB: 10/30/68
JERSEY CITY NJ 073102211 SP: CHRISTINA

RPTD: 7-02 TO 9-02 4X

321 8TH ST APT 4
JERSEY CITY NJ 073021921
RPTD: 7-01 TO 4-02

PO BOX 32906
PHOENIX AZ 850642906
RPTD: 11-98 TO 9-00 2X

3039 N 38TH ST
PHOENIX AZ 850187031
RPTD: 6-01

33333 38TH
PHOENIX AZ 85018
RPTD: 5-01

3915 E CAMELBACK RD APT 116
PHOENIX AZ 850182619
RPTD: 1-99 TO 5-99

HARYANTO SOEDARPO, HARRY SOEDARPU,
SOEDARPO HARYANTO
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National SSN Header Search Results

This search cost: $7.50

Client Reference: (none)

Query Information
Search Type: SSN
Bureau: Third Source
SSN: 527946359

Third Source Results
RICK A RQOSS SS: 527-94-6359
PO BOX 32906 DOB: 11/24/52
PHOENIX AZ 850642906 SP: P

RPTD: 10-93 TO 7-03 2X

20 RIVER CT APT 2211
JERSEY CITY NJ 073102211
RPTD: 7-02 TO 8-02 2X

321 8TH ST APT 4
JERSEY CITY NJ 073021921
RPTD: 7-01 TO 10-01

3039 N 38TH ST
PHOENIX AZ 850187031
RPTD: 8-99 TO 4-01 1X

4131 N 24TH ST STE C206
PHOENIX AZ 850166256
RPTD: 1-94

5122 N 31ST WAY UNIT 233
PHOENIX AZ 850164511
RPTD: 10-91 TO 10-93

3915 E CAMELBACK RD
PHOENIX AZ 850182633
RPTD: 5-96 TO 5-00

3039 N 33RD ST APT 8
PHOENIX AZ 85018
RPTD: 5-00

PO BOX 3996
PHOENIX AZ 85001
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RPTD: 5-00

PO BOX 329
PHOENIX AZ 850010329
RPTD: 5-00

RICK ALAN ROSS, RICK ROSS, RICK A ROSE,
RICK ROSE, RICK F ROSS
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